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THURSDAY, MARCH 28, 1974 AT THE HOUR OF 9:30 O'CLOCK A.M. 

SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 

---000---

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: lIm Dennis Carpenter, . Chairman 

of the Senate Subconunittee on Civil Disorder. I'd like to 

introduce before we begin here Senator Harmer, additionally 

a member of the committee, and Senator Ayala, who is a new 

member of the conuni ttee who ViaS appointed last week to fill 

a vacanc~r on the corrunittee and Senator Wedworth, the other 

member, will be along shortly. 

This hearing relates to some continuation of 

information seeking that the committee is concerned with 

relative to violence in our prison system and the overflow 

thereof into society in general. 

Our penal institutions are now experiencing probably 

the worst seige of violence in their history. In the past 

two years we've had over sixty fatalities including six prison 

staff members and more than three hundred stabbings. Indica­

tions are that there are problems, violent problems that we 

think deserve our examination. 

According to prison authorities, some of whom we 

will here from today, the majority of these incidents are the 

result of activities perpetrated by four major gangs within 

the prison and ~ang members outside the prison and other 

revolutionary ~roups concentrating on the recruitment of 

inmates for radical purposes. It appears that these groups 
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ar~ ll!r:hl.y orr:anh'.ed anu highly mot1 vated as :lndicated by 

the continual violence a~ainst our system in general and the 

prison system in particular. 

The gangs allegedly have gained some control over 

illegal activities within the prison and are now attempting 

to control street crimes involving such things as narcotics 

from within our penal institutions. This indicates that they 

have reached an organ,izational level of some sophistication 

and consequently reached a level of violent activities that 

constitute a threat to the safety of citizens in general and 

criminal justice and the penal system in particular. 

Any system of criminal justice and punishment cannot 

be permitted to be subverted by the persons who are the objects 

of that system, in this case the inmates of pellal institutions. 

It is the intention of this subcommittee and with 

the very deep cooperation of the California Department of 

Corrections and their agencies to determine as fully as 

possible the nature and extent of this problem. 

Additionally we hope to determine what measures 

might be taken by the state Legislature through recommendations 

of thl15 subcommittee to deal effectively wi~h the problem 

and either put an end to or learn as much as possible about 

this p~ison ter~orism and related violence inside and outside 

the system before it becomes an even greater threat,threatening 

the well being of all of our citizens. 

I'd like to thank the Cali fornia Depa!'ltment of 
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':,~:c if.1petus for tr.ts .' 'f;'::3~i.f':~tio?-l uy 1,~~iG committee. I hone 

to control and ovcrCO~0 these violent problems. 

With that preface Ild like to note that Senato~ 

':ledworth, our fourth member, has arrived and that Vle ',lil.l.. 

go right ahead with tl": .. vlitr,3sses we have scht;;duled. The 

first witness is S:;t. ~',~.':"liam Hankins of the California 

Department of Corrections stationed at San Quentin. 

Sgt. Hankins, would you come forward, please. 

Flease be seated ~~e~e. 

Sgt. Hankins, .:::an YO·J. tell us a little bit about your 

background and your area of responsibility in the depa.rtment. 

MR. HANKINS: Yes, sir. I've been with the Department 

of Corrections for seven~een years at San Quentin, the last 

ei~ht and a half years spent as the liason officer at San 

Quentin. 

CHAIR~,1AN CAnPJ~WrER: \,Jhat doe::~ a lias on officer do? 

MR. HANKINS: Gathering of infor~ation, liaoon with 

outside law enforcemen~, various 4~encies within our own 

department. 

CHAIRMAN CAl, L'):~:hlER: Do you have SOl'ile opening re;::arKs 

of your own that you w~nt ~o ~a~e or do yo~ merely want to 

respond to our ques~lons? 



,VllL J'iAi 1i\I;~~) : I d ien 1 t prE:parc= a statement. I 

intended to re~rond to questlons. 

CHAIRIVJAJ~ CAHPENTEH: Did you understand the nature 

of ou'!' inquiry In p;eneral relating to the gang violence and 

the gang operations within the prison? 

MR. HANKINS: Yes. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Perhaps then. we could comrr.ence 

more cons!;ructivGly by askinr; you to identify the groups and 

their ~eneral nature as you see them fro~ your point of view. 

MR. BANl<INS: Yes. 1 thj.nk the groups we! re talking 

abCH.lt are the Mexican ~~af:ta or M. A., Nuestra Familia or the 

N.F . .'1 the Aryan Brotherhood and the Black Guerrilla Family. 

We had tracen of the Mexican Mafia back in 1957 

where.it startea at uuelle Vocational Institution in 7'racy. 

I, myself, didnlt notice too much organization being formed 

unt,j.l' early '66 at San Quentin. At this time I started 

identifying people we had at San Quentin who were identified 

to me as members of the Mexican Mafia. 

At this time the Mexican Mafia, in the early stages, 

\'lere involved in hip;hj acking of the inmate canteen, petty 

stuff within the lnsti~ution or dealing in drugs. They always 

preyed on other races, Caucasians and Blacks. They never dld 

fool,with inmales of tneir own race. Then at San Quentin 

after '66 we starce~ navin~ a series of incidents that was 

'uir$cted toward otn.::·Y' iVlexicC:;:1s. 'Ithe first one that I recall 

was an incident involving Sonny P1na who was assaulted and 

-4-

, '\ 

•• 

• • 

•• 

• • 

• • 

• • 

• • 

• • 

• • 

the maln yard at San Quentin. 
killed by the Mafia members in 

At this time the rest of' the Mexican population got 

Thi s was the first assault on a Mexican 
up pretty tight. 

was another g~oUp that started 
inmate. About this time there 

or less for self-protection of the 
forming which was more 

Mexicans. This was the start of the format10nof Nuestra. 

Fam:tlia. 
This went on and there was another assault by the 

i te Again, this caused the 
Mexican Mafia on another nma . 

a little and prepare for what they 
other group to enlarge 

felt, I guess, was the inevitable. 

t where one of their Then we had an inciden occur 

f 1968 When this 
members was assaulted in the latter pa.rt 0 . 

that broke the camelIs 
occurred this was more or less the straw 

The following day members of the 
back between the two groupS. 

to a s the Nuestra Familia, laid 
which we now refer new group, 

d when Mafia members returned 
in wait in one of the blocks an 

th e e assaulted. I think we ended 
from the weekend movie ey w r 

t Il This is where 
t peop le stabbed, one fa a y. up with seven een 

between the two groupS erupted that 
the war 
It was the formation of the Nuestra Familia 

goes on today . 

which started to 

become strong from that point on. 
When that occurred a lot of your Mafia members were 

That turned the traffic in the main 
locked up at this time. 

and they sta~ted in turn dealing 
population to the other group 

in narcotics. 
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The Aryan Brotherhood has been around for quite a 

number of years. \ve' ve known it under different names. They 

were at one time the old Nazi faction in the prisons. Now 

they've brancheo. out and become what we now know as tlv:' 

Aryan Brotherhood. They have aligned themselves with the 

Mexican Mafia in the war against the New Family. 

We also have the Black Guerrilla Family which sprung 

up recently. I look at it as a mixture of blacks from the 

Muslims, Black Liberation !;.rmy, Republic of New Africa, Black 

Panther Party that have become disenchanted with these r,roups 

on the streets that have come together in a prison settin~ and 

they have become the Black Guerrilla Family. They in turn have 

aligned themselves with the New Family. These are the four 

groups that we now are talking about. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Well, so much for their ori~ins. 

As you see them from the San Quentin point of view, let me 

ask you this: Are they -- they all seem to have their origins 

in ethnic or racial motivation and identification. 

MR. HANKlNSi Well, the make-up of the Mexican Mafia 

is primarily from the East Los Angeles section. The make-up 

of the Nuestra Familia is primarily valley Mexicans with a 

heavy concentration in San Jose, Salinas, Santa Barbara areas. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Does this geof,raphical identifi-

cation before they were in prison have a strong bearing on 

what group they intend to associate with? 

MR. HANKINS: That's co~rect. 

----------------------------------....................................... %~ -
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CHAII{MAN CARpgN'l'lm: Do any of the other Senators 

have questions on the subject of the ori~in. 

Senator Wedworth? 

SENATOR WEDWORTH: Sergeant, you say you've been 

aware of this or San Quentin has been aware of this since 

1969, late sixties? 

1966. 

MR. HANKINS: No, I said this is when it started. 

SENATOR WEDHORTH: You were aware of that. 

MR. HANKINS: I am now. I became aware of it in 

SENATOR WEDWORTH: That there was a real problem or 

that you'd better look into it or what? 

MR. HANKINS: No. It was just starting then. It 

was the formation of the organization. 

SBNATOR WEDWOHTH: You mentioned stabbings and at 

least one fatality. 

MR. HANKINS: Yes, sir. 

SENATOR WEDWORTH: How many of these people have 

been charged and tried? 

MR. HANKINS: I can't recall. 

SENATOR \-JEDWORTH: Have some? 

MR. HANKINS: Over the years or are you talking about 

the initial incident? 

SENA'l\)H WElJVJOR'J.'H: Over the years. 

MR. HANKINS; Oh, yes, there's been numerous 

members from both faetions tr:led. 
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SENATOR WE:DWORTl-I,: How about a ballpark fir;ure? When 

you say II numerous ," vtYhat does that mean? rPen? Ifwenty? 

MR. HANKINS: Dh, I would estimate ~robably twenty-five 

or thirty. 

SENATOR WEDWORTH: Have there been convictions? 

MR. HANKINS; Yes. 

SENATOH WE01tIOR'rH: Thank you very much. 

SENATOR AYALA: You mentioned seventeen years. Is 

that the total number of years your career spanned at San 

Quentin or have you been other places part of that time? 

MR. HANKINS: No. Seventeen years with the Department 

of Corrections all at San Quentin. 

SENATOR AYALA: All at San Quentin. 

MR. HANKINS: That's correct. 

SENATOR AYALA: You also mentioned that the Mexican 

Mafia for the most part was centered in a geographical area: 

East Los Angeles~ Salinas, San Jose, Santa Barbara, so forth. 

What about the other organizations? Do they have a tendency 

to come f'j:'om geographical areas like the Mexican Mafia? 

MR~ HANKINS: Well, I said the Mexican Mafia came 

primarily from the East Los Angeles area. The New Family came 

from the valley area. 

SENATOR AYALA: Oh. Also the Aryan Brotherhood, 

you mentioned -- I didn't catch somethin~ about the Nazi 

prisoners. What is the connection between the two? 

MR. HANKINS: I 5;3,id the Aryan Br'otherhood we can go 
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back to the same type of people we knew through the years in 

prison r;an~s. They graduated from one to the other such as 

the a~uebird Ganp; into what we knew as the old Nazi Party and 

into the A~yan Brotherhood. 

CHAIRMAlil CARPENTER ~ Senator Hal"mer? 

SENATOR HARMER: Sergeant, we had testimony at a 

prior hearing of other groups that existed which I notice 

you ha.ven't mentioned. Is there some reason for your not 

making reference to any other group, or in your opinion are 

they not worth the trouble or are these groups you mentioned 

the only ones we I re concerned w:tth? 

MR. HANKINS; Well, these are the four major prison 

groups. 'vIe do have other groups ''lithin the prison such as the 

Muslims, but these are the four groups that I mentioned 

because they are the four that we are having difficulty with. 

SENATOR HARMER: Let me ask you specifically: Is 

thr:l Symbionese Liberation Army at San Qu.entin? 

MR. HANKINS: I 

SENATOR HARMER: Let me preface the statement, 

Sergeant. I know that you requested not to be asked questions 

about the activities of the S.L.A. and I don't intend to 

pursue it. I simply want to know if they exist at San Quentin. 

IvtR. HANKINS: There is a connection. 

SENATOR HAHMER: Thank you. 

CHAIRrlEN CARPENTER: Sergeant, let me ask you some­

thing about these groups and their relationship to other 
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---~.j ----------------------------------
institutions in California. I think we can take notice of 

the fact that they exist in all the various felony institutions 

at least or maximum security institutions. Is part of your 

responsibility the question of communication between members 

of these gangs at SaIl Quentin and other institutions in 

California? And how is this communication carried out? 

MR. HANKINS! Communica.tion between the inmate r.;roups 

is carried ou.t in a number of ways: throue;h visitors, letter 

writing) through mail drops, they use coded terms in their 

letters, rlewspaper publications from the underground-type 

newspapers. Many, many ways. Through certain attorneys 

that have contact throughout the system. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: What about communication between 

inmates who are members of the gangs and street members who 

are discharged who are out of prison and so forth. 

MR. HANKINS: There still are communic'ations carried 

on through th~ mails and through visits. 

CHAIRMAN CARPEN'l'ER: Okay. 1'm tryin~ to f\et a't 

the issue of the nature of the relationship between the 

inside group and the outside group. Is there a responsibility 

of the department to follow the outside activities? 

MR. HANKINS: Yes. We work in liason with outside 

law enforcement. Is this what you're getting at? If we 

continue to pass on information that we may gather from out-

side agencies --

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Well, let's ~et into this issue: 
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We have been told in prior hearin~s that the flow of informntion 

either throur:h attorneys, wives and friends and other visitors 

and the mail and so forth constituted a very Bubstantia1 amount 

of the communication process. What inspection rights does the 

Department have now on incoming mail? What inspection rights 

does it have relative to attorneys bringing their briefcases, 

their legal documents and 50 forth into the prison. Could you 

explain for us \,lhat limitations there al"e? 

MR. HANKINS: We are allowed censorship of the mail 

but not attorney mail. Attorney mail is not inspected under 

2600 of the Penal Code. Publications that are sent in are 

inspected. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Excuse me. You say attorney 

mail is not inspected. What constitutes attorney mail? Are 

you talking about an envelope "\'11 th a letter in it or what if 

it's a box? 

MR. HANKINS: You can open these in front of the 

inmate if you have reason to inspect them. You have to open 

them in front Qf the inmate. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: \~el1) I assume in the case of 

a box or a oarton you would do that as a matter of course? 

MR. HANKINS: That's correct. Attorney mail has 

to be Signed by the attorney and deSignated as legal ~ai1. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: It is signed on the outside 

of the envelope so you know? 

MR. HANKINS: That's correct. 

-11-



ClllI.U\MJ\N CARPEN'llgH: lIow do you know the person 

s1p;nlnp; 1s a lawyer? Is h11l name rep:istered with you, with 

the department? 

MR. HANKINS: Well, the ones that we aren't sure are 

lawyers we check with the Bar Association. They should have 

a copy of their slgnature on file at the institution. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER; If they desire to be corresponding 

with an inmate. Do they have to have an attorney-client 

relationship with a specific inmate? 

MR. HANKINS: No, they do not in all cases. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Then anybody who happens to be 

a lawyer in our society can write any inmate in the prison 

any time he wants to or send him anythin~ he want~ to through 

this privilege without restriction. 

MR. HANKINS: That's correct. 

CHAIFU'IlAN CARPENTE:R: Does that pose a proolem with 

regard to these gangs? 

MR. HANKINS: Yes, it does. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Is it your interpretatioD.of 

the Penal Code that they have that right as you currently 

practice it irrespective of any attorney-client privilege 

or relationship? 

tv1R. HANKINS: These are the rules that are handed 

down to us. 

CHAIRMAN CAHPENTER: Are you familiar with an 

organl,zation known as Venceremos? 
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MR. HANKINS: Yes, I am. 

CHAIRl1AN CARPENTER: Could you tell us something 

about it? 

MR. HANKINS: Well, the Venceremos came into bein~ 

around 1970, '71. It had splintered off from a group known 

as the Revolutionary Union. When they splintered off under 

the leadership of H. B. Franklin their belief's were that the 

Revolutionary Union was too slow moving in that the Revolution·­

ary Unionfs thinking was that they believed in revolution in 

this count::'y and the armed overthrow of this country, but 

they felt that it would take fifteen years to effect this. 

During this fifteen-year time span they believed their time 

should be spent in infiltrating the working ranks and 

gathering more followers as they went. 

The Venceremos Ol"ganization felt this was too slow 

moving. They felt that revolution CG~ld be effected within 

a three-year time span. At this time they planned using the 

Black P~~ther Party as the armed vanguard of the revolution. 

Their plans called for mass demonstrations, sniping of police 

stations, bombing of buildings, etc. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Before you go further with that. 

When we talk about them in this context you say that the 

revolutionary groups are advocating violent overthrow and 

so forth, can you relate that to these organizations or to 

inside prison activities and the violence. I mean, do they 

recruit inmates during their incarceration or what have you? 

-13-



rm. HAiiKING; Correct. This 1s what I was about to 

get into. 

CHAIRMAN CAHPEN'J.1fm: Go ahead. 

MR. HANKINS: '.Phere was a tie between known Venceremos 

O~ganization members and certain inmate leaders of various 

I f m <:!peak1ng· of the !>1exican ~1afia and Nuestra Familia. gX'oups. ..~ ." 

They were in Communication through letters and visits trying 

I think that their to recruit inmates into their groups. 

feeling was they would like to bring the two groups tonether, 

effected between the two groups and have them get a truce 

come together under their leadership, under their director. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTEH: Where does all that stand today, 

if you know? 

MR. HANKINS; or course, the Venceremos Organization 

haa pUblicly said that they had disbanded, there was a split 

in the group. I believe it has ~one on to something under 

atiother name now. 

r<" ,>~ CHAIRr1AN CARPEN'l'ER: How would an organization like 

VenceremOB or any other go about recruiting a prisoner? 

you had an opportunity to observe this process? 

Have 

MR. HANKINS: Yes. 

women in the organization. 

One of the main ways is through 

All these groups on the outside 

have many women members. They use them to start up a 

d 1· th an inmate, get on his visiting list and aorreapon ence w . 

start viSiting him. Of course, \\le Ire speaking about people 

who have heen locked up six, seven, eight years. It doesn't 
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take long for a p;uy to build up an emotional attachment and 

r;et involved with her to Where he becomen almost like a puppet 
on a string. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: I've observed that that can 

happen in a few minutes and on the outside. But r think we 
"''-.. get your' point. 

Are there other recruiting procedures or devices 

that you have observed that ha.ve been successful? 

MR. HANIGNS: I think a lot of these problems lead 

through promises of legal help, promises of help to get them 

onto the streets, promises of.help on the streets once they 
are there. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: To your knowledge do they deliver 
on these promises? 

.. - ..... --, .... -
MR. HANKINS: Not to my knowledge, no. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: What about the proY-ision of legal 

assistance to the inmate? I suppose it's traditionally been 

true that people in long term incarceration have increased 

their act1 vi tea relative to appea:ls and reopening of .cases and' 

things of this nature. Are there any organizations or which 

you're aware who are active in aSSisting inmates in this 

regard that are related to these organizations you Ire 

discussing? 

MR. HANKINS: Well, certa1nelements of the National 

Lawyerts Guild work in this manner • 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Well, the National Lawyerts 

-15-



Guild has comp up 1n our prior testimony, too. The National 

Lawyers Guild, is this a group who would utilize their staff 

attorn(~ys or members to contact prisoners \'lithout having been 

approached and requested to represent them? 

MR. HANKINS: Yes, I believe this is the case. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: In other words, they -­

MR. HANKINS: In most cases. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: The National Lawyer's Guild 

solicits an inmate to become a client, is that correct? 

MR. HANKINS: This is what I've been told. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Do they come to your institution 

regularly? 

MR. HANKINS: Quite regularly. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Would a lawyer from that 

organization or any other merely come to San Quentin and say, 

J want to see a prisoner, any prisoner, or does he come and 

say, 'I want to see John Doe," and John Doe doesn't knoN him 

or has never heard of the attorney but he responds and comes 

and visits with him; is that correct? 

MR. HANKINS: Thi~ has happened, yes. No prior 

contact. 

CHAIRMAN CARPEWrER: Have there been cases a't San 

Quentin where attorneys have been proven to brin~ contraband " , 
whether it be·narcotics or any other thing that's prohibited 

by the institution or actually arms or other escape tools, to 

prisoners? 
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MR. HANKINS: Well, we have a case right now thatts 

under appeal that I'm sure you're aware of in which this was 

indicated. We had a recent incident. This was stril<e 

information being brought into San Quentin by a member of 

the National Lawyer's Guild office in San Francisco. She was 

stopped at one of the gates and they made a check of the 

material she was bringing in and this was found. Strike demands 

that she was carrying into the institutioni 

Neal? 

CHAIRI>1AN CARPEN'rER: Do we have a copy of this, Mr. 

MR. NEAL: We don't have a copy of that. 

MR. HANKINS: I brought this for you. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Fine. Welll take that, please. 

Referring back to a case I'm sure we're all more 

familiar with, the George Jackson case. Was there an attorney 

involved in the introduction of a weapon in that case? 

MR. HANKINS: Yes, this case is still going. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: What do you mean "going':? Has 

there been an arrest or an allegation made? 

MR. HANKINS: There were six inmates indicted and 

one attorney who has never been found. Recently the indictments 

were thrown out and that' case is presently under appeal, that 

deciSion. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: The missing,attorney is Mr~ 

Bingham; is that correct? 

MR. HANKINS: Thatta correct. 
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CHAIRI1J\N CAHPRN'nm: And it was aller:ed \;11:11. tiP 

brought the gun in that lVlr. J acJ<.son Jlao in his posue:3sj 011; 

is that correct? 

MR. HANKI!,!S.; That \ t.. correct. 

CHAIRM~~ CARPENTER: Any other members have any 

questions at this point? 

SENATOR AYALA: Yes. I'd like to pursue one statement 

that the sergeant made that any mail received by an inmate 

with an attorney's signature on the envelope will not be 

opened other than one who is involved in an attorney-client 

relationship. You were aske4 if this is part of the Penal 

Code. You· said this is the orders we have or something to 

that efrec·~. Who $i ves that o;r'de.r that only mail received 

f:r:0!fl.attorneys~ 1s not J3flbJect to inspe.c.tion? 

MR. ~ANKINS: The Director of Corrections hands down 

his aq.m~nistrfiti ve orders as tQ. his interpre~ation of 2600 

of the .:p'enal Code" 

I . .' $E~A:rOR AYALA: Is, any .l!lail that is received by an 

inmate that is signed. on the outs.ide .. by an attorney, no matter 
'I I .' • . . 

whq . ~e ~. ,?e" w~11 that be. qpe~e~? 

.. :.MR~ HAN~INS: You can open it under ,certain conditions. 

Aga1n·, ,YQu.c.an ;Qpen it. if you"l?av~ .reB:son to ;f.eel. there may be 

a weapon or something in 1t. You can open it ~I?-the presence 

pf tl)e inmate a,nq open it l.1n ,8;uc11; a manner that you can 

inspect 1 t but can ',t read tq~ .,C!ontent~" such. a~: ~pening it 

and holding it ~p~i~e. down t ,t' .. 
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SENATOR AYALA: This is at the direction of the 

Director of Corrections? 

MR. HANKINS: That's correct. 

SENATOR HARMER: Ser e t g an , are you familiar with the 

type of literature that is commonly d~stributed from the 

outside? 

MR. HANKINS: Yes i ~ s r . I have brought some examples 
of this for the committee. 

SENATOR HARMER: Does that literature have any type 

of a common theme? 

MR. HANKINS: Yes, it's all of a radical nature. 

SENATOR HARMER.' How d " o you mean radical!!? You mean 

it's committed to some specific activity? 

MR. HANKINS: Well ~= 

SENATOR HARMER: Violence or revolution? 

MR. HANKINS: A lot of it advocates violence, Marxist 

type stuff. 

SENATOR HARMER: Does it seem to have a common sdurce 

the literature itself? 

MR. HANKINS: vlel~~, several sources •. 

, 

SENATOR HARMER: COUld you show us what you" re talking 

about or COUld, you explain that? 

IvlR. HANKINS .. ' Here r a.e some newspapers that I brought 

and I have them cataloged in the order that they appear here. 

The conspiracy which came in in an envelope from the National 

Lawyer's Gui'd. \"r1tten on the n 1 "I ' ~ ~ e ve ope was egal paper, I 
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but it was in effect a copy of the newspaper 'The Conspiracy. 

Also a publication called Revolution which is published by 

the Revolutionary Union out of Chicago~Illinois. Stru~f,le 

came from Boston, Massachusetts. 'fhere are many, many 

articles in here authored by Black Liberation Army Members. 

SENATOR HARMER: What do these articles seek to 

accomplish? Are they advocating that the recipients organize 

themselves into some type of movement, organizat~on; that they 

engage in some type of militant or violent conduct? 

MR. HANKINS: Yes. I'd like to -- this particular 

publication is called Midnight Special. It'is published by 

the National Lawyer's Guild, New York Chapter. In here on 

page 12 you will find an article under Maryland where they 

are talking about prison personnal and I'll read from here 

if you don't mind. 

liThe type of people that we have to deal with 

are very vulnerable. They go to parties, clubs and so on. 

tl'hey chase women, sleep, dri ve cars and go to the movies. They 

have families. One of our righteous thinking sisters could 

lead one of them to a predesignated spot for execution. Their 

cars can be wired. They can be drugge~ in bars by righteous 

bartenders. They can be followed into movie bathrooms and get 

uheir throats cut. Word can be sent out following every 

assault on an inmate. The assaults would soon stop if, say, 

Officer X beats Inmate A on Monday and a firebomb is thrown 

through the windo\-J of Officer X' s home on Tuesday night, or 
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if hi,s wife is visited while he is working> or if hits kid is 

snatched f~om school and his head 1s found in front of the 

j ail. I: am se,r;Lous about this. The sItuation is such now 

that death is no longer unusual." 

prison? 

This is one of the types of pub Ii cations. 

SENATOR HARMER: Tell me how that. got into the 

MR. HANKXNS: I.t was mailed in. 

SENATOR HARMER: From the National Lawy·er' s ~uild7 

'MR. HANK:CNS: From the Nat:t,onal Law;y'er's Guild. 

SENATOR HARMER: Was it marked "legal paper"? 

MR. HANKINS: No, it wa.sn't. 

SENATOR HARMER: J'ust -mailed in to an inmate from 

the National Lawyer's Guild? 

MR. HANKI'NS': Yes, it was. 

SENATOR HARMER: Was that theme an ordinary theme 

in this type of material? 

MR. HANKINS: Pretty much so, yes. They are ver;y 

aware of the restrictions we have on handling this t;y-pe of 

stuff. The~ know where the fine line is but they still have a 

way of getting the message across. 

SENATOR HARME,R: Does this literature which y·ou 

have contain theme of violence against otbers in our, soc;1..ety 

besides the penal institution officials and guards? 

MR. HANKINS: Yes. 

SENATOR HARMER: Such as political f~gures or 

businesses? 
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MR. HANKINS: Yes. This was picked up. This comes 

from the Black Liheration Army in New York. Of course, this 

one is talking all about killing the police on the st.!'eets. 

HoW it should be done. r also brought this along for your 

inspection. This particular magazine is written by the 

regional office staff of the Bay Area Nati(mal Lawyer's Guild 

called Legal First Ai,d" and it's instructing pe.ople how to 

handle themselve's when approache(1 hy police. It tells them 

such things as "Keep your weapons' hidden. E-veryone in the 

house shpuld know. where they are and if they are legal and 

if the~ are loaded. People vlsiting as strangers do not need 

to kno~ that you have w.eapons. Large stores of weapons should 

he in a ver~ safe place like in a house that CQuld not be 

linked to the movement." 

SENATOR HARMER: I,s there anything in this material 

which either advocates or calls for acts of sabotage against 

any facilities in the community, governmental institutions or 

pUblic utilities or transportation systems? 

MR .. HANKINS: Not in this report, no. 

SENATOR HARMER: Thi.s is not then necessarily a 

common theme in the literature that these groups use? 

MR. HANKINS: Well, this is just one publication. 

They put out man~. 

SENATOR HAR~ER: Well~ your answer is that it's 

not in that hook? 

MR. HANK:):NS: That's correct. 

SENATOR HAHME-R; But in th.e 1i te'rature that comes to 
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these l.ndi viduals from various outside groups ~ is a theme 

in that Ii te;r:'ature thecarr~-i!1g out of acts of sabotage against 

our society, ~gainst the transportation system" governmental 

entities, or against corporations? 

MR. HANKINS: Well, sir, certain papers, yes. I 

wouldn't venture to saY,' all of them hecause agatn they know 

what is permissible and what is not permissible. 

SENATOR HARMER: y~u spoke to 'Us ahout the origin 

of these groups. How would you estimate or would you care to 

estimate the trends that we can project down the next several 

years regarding these groups? Do you see them growing? Do 

you see them becoming a matter of greater concern for us? Do 

you feel they are contained? Would you say that it would be 

necessary for us to try to have a more specific policy to come 

to grips with them or do you feel that they do not constitute 

that much of a threat? 

MR. HANKINS; They definitely constitute a threat. 

Are we ta.l king about numbers in the various groups? 

SENATOR HARMER: If you can or care to do so. 

MR. HANK+,NS: Now', when I mentioned numbers belong­

ing to certain groups, these are -members that r've known over 

the years. They may be out on the street. They're people that 

I have run across or had infor<mation on over the lfears and 

I'm speaking of a period of the last eight, nine years. I~m 

talking about sympathizers, also. Not just hardcbre memhers, 

but sympathizers. I numher the Mexican Mafia in the area of 

700. The Nuestra Familia in the area of 500, and the Aryan 
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Brotherhood in the area of 400. 

On the Black Guerilla Family I'm ~oin~ on informa-

tion from inmate sources that estimate their number n.s hlf;,h 

as 1250. 

SENATOR HARMER: Does membership in the group 

continue after the individual leaves the institution? 

~R. HANKINS: Yes. 

SENATOR HARME.R: We had testimon:y. at a prior hearing 

that seyeral of these groups force memhers to stay in it at 

the threat of their lives and with threats on their families 

if they do not stay in the group and then do not actively 

organize from the outside to assist members of the group on 

the inside of the institutions. Is that consistent with your 

knowledge of the.se groups? 

~R. HANKINS: Yes, it is. 

SENATOR HARMER: Do you have any specific examples 

of where individuals other than the National Lawyer's Guild, 

more specifically, where a former inmate member of one of the 

groups has been released from the institution and has partici­

pated on the outside in the organizing of activity to aid the 

inmates in the institution or continue on the program of the 

group on the outs~de? 

MR. HANKINS: Yes, I am aware of this, but I believe 

you h.ave another witness coming that can cover this hetter. 

SENATOR HARMER: _ All r~ght. Thank you. 

Mr. Chairman, can r pursue another line? How's the 

time? 
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CHAl.RMAN CARPENTER: We'l'e on schedule. 

SENATOR HARMER: There's one other item that I'd 

like to find out about. ~'d like to find out about the 

actt-vitia.s of the. groups inside. ¥,~u made reference to their 

control of narcotic traffic. We h.ave also bad testimony that 

it is a practice of these groups to identify known homosexuals 

and to actually own them and trade the homosexuals among them­

selves as a piece of property and to use them in other ways. 

Is that type of acti vi ty to ;f·our knowledge common among these 

groups? 

11R, HANKINS: It has occurred. I wouldn~t say it was 

common, but it does occur. 

SENATOR HARMER: Are you rererring both to narcotics 

and homosexual acti vi t:y·? 

MR. HANKINS: Primarily the homosexual activity that 

you were talking about. 

SENATOR HARMER: What about the narcotic activity? 

Where do they get the dr~gs and narcotics? How do they get 

this material? 

MR. HANKINS: Are you talking about inside? 

SENATOR HARMER: Y'e6''):f:: meant inside the institution? 

MR. HANKINS: One ot the ma.tn ~a~s that it comes 

into San Quentin is thro~gh visitors. A female visitor comes 

in to visit her husband, hoyfriend and she will come in and 

she will have two or three balloons in her mouth. We allow 

them to embrace, kiss. She transfers them to him. He swallows 

them. When he gets back. to his cell, he regurgitates or passes 
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them through a t)"w\'\ J IrJOVEHraCllL. 

SENATOR HARMER: And the balloon haG in it the drug 

or narcotic? 

MR. HANKINS~ Of course, if you have reason to 

suspect the visitor and .you approach to search her, she will 

swallow them. 

SENATOR HARMER: Surely there must be some other way. 

l can't imagine that there's that much kissing going on in 

prisons. 

MR. HANK~NS: There's ~uite a number of visitors. 

• • 

• • 

• • 

This is just one source. • • 

SENATOR HARMRR: Can .you name some other.sources. 

I didn't mean to be facetious, Sergeant. I'm sure it's a 

problem and I: assume you have all sorts of problems trying to 

determine who has balloons under their tongue. 

There must be some other mechanism. 

MR. HANKINS: Oh~ yes, you have traffic in and out 

of vehicles carrying produce, other articles into the prison 

for delivery. We have had cases of narcotics stashed in these 

• • 

• • 

trucks. This is another source. We have drops , made around the •• 

prisori. You do have inmates out working in the areas that pick 

it up and transport it on in b.y various means. 

SENATOR HARMER: All r~ght. A final question for 

me, Sergeant, although there are others I'd like to pursue. 

I think ~.' ve taken more than my' share of the ti:me. 

WOUld you care to comment on what you think. we o~ght 

to recommend to the Legislature in terms of corning to grips 
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wltlJ i,he t'IIlI'T'p;ence now of these orp;an1zRtlons, the lite:r'ntul'c 

that 18 be 1.rlJ~ G upp lied to them, the t.ype of Rct;:!. Vi t.y whi ch 

they are engaged in? 

MR. HANKINS: Well" l' think this is something that 

had best be answered by' the Director and his staff. We made 

our recommendations to him and I'm sure he's prepared to get 

the mess~ge across. 

SENATOR HARMER: A very judicious answer. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Se~geant, the suggested number 

of members in these four o;r'ganiz'ati,ons that we're dealing with, 

did I. understand those to be just in San Quentin or in total 

around the State? 

MR. HANKINS: In total. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER; Among all the institutions? 

MR. HANKI'NS: And on the street. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: ,And that's in how man.y institu-

tiona in California? 

MR. HANKINS: Ten, + think I'm talking about. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Are these organizations 

restricted to California? 

MR. HANKINS: r ha've indications the.y are spreading 

to other States. I'm ~uite certain that there is Nafia in 

the Federal prison in Marion, Illinois. The.re' s Mafia at 

McNeal lsland in Washington, and :J:'m quite certain there is 

also Mafia at Leayenworth. 

CHA~"RMAN CARPENTER: What is the impact of some of 

this information on a prisoner w.ho is a longtime~? Maybe he's 
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there for a violent crime. If you can ~1ve us your opinion 

and your observations of the impact of this type of su~gested 

Violence? How to murder people. [low to murder poll cemen. 

MR. HANKINS: I look at it as n brainwashing 

vehicle with these people, and of course, we're speakin~ of 

minorities in numb.ers. When we talk. ahout the people that 

this is reaching, ~'d say we're talking about 7 to 10 per cent. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Seven to ten per cent of the 

inmate population? 

J1R. HANKINS: That's right. 

CHAIRMAN OARPEN~ER: .~hat's a pretty healthy per-

centa.ge. 

MR. HANKINS: That is a pretty healthy percentage. 

I think when I was back. in Washington appearing before a 

8imilar-t~'pe committee 3 information came out back there that 

a full-scale riot at Leayenworth was the result of 30 men who 

called the shots, 20 to 30 men who actually controlled. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: All right. Let me finally 

ask ~ou, Sgt. Hankins, with regard to the literature of this 

type whi ch is., I think b;y anyhody I. s definition not lawyer's 

material, it's just puhlications probably calculated to 

incite the passions or v~olent intentions of inmates or to 

prey, on them in some way. W.hy do you let that material in? 

Why does it get into the prisoner IS h.ands? 1's it department 

policy or interpretation that the.y are ob.l~gated to permit 

that f?tu:('f to flow, in the pri,sons? 

MR. HANKINS; Yes, I'm sure we have a law to follow. 
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The Director hands down hi,s policy on this and, of course, 

they're as aware as we are. The;y know the fine line, how far 

they, can go. There's many, many, things my,self that I would 

look at and not being as well versed in this particular law as 

the Director, I'd say it should go in. We do allow it because 

we have to. 

OHAIRMAN OARPENTER: Well, you talked about female 

visitors passing narcotics by kissing their hushands or the 

person they're visiting. We've ha:1 other department peop Ie 

tell us or at least they have told me that they can carry it 

in their vaginas or there is rectal carrying of narcotics and 

so forth. Why do you permit the contact? 1's it the depart­

ment's feeling that the actual physical contact of prisoners 

is ne cess ary? 

It seems to me they, are always separated b;y glass 

or other devices. 

MR. HANKINS: Well, this is true. We're talking 

about a small number of ~eople that carryon this type of 

activity, and l' think the department's feeling is that because 

of this small group, are you going to punish the entire 

population? 

OHA:):.RMAN OARPENTER: Well, because of a small group 

the entire population submits itself to a search. before 

boarding an airplane and t t ~sn' t 7 tq 10 per cent of the 

population like it is in the prison populatiQn. 

r agree with wha~ you're saying, myself, 

OHA1RMAN OARrENTER: SenatorWedw'Orth? 
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SENATOR 'YlEDW0RTH: Yes. s.ergeant J we had 

previous tes timony about. t.he lawyp.I's invo 1 ved in this. No 

names. How many lawye:r'R to your knowledge have visited or 

operated at San Quentin? 

MR. HANKINS: Again, you're talking about lawyers 

and their staff and lnvestie;ators. At San Quentin I would 

number it in the area of probably IUto 15. 

SENATOR WEDWORTH: 10. I don't think we had that 

question at the previous meeting. Thank you. 

Now, do you think there's adequate statutes to 

control this group within the prisons7 

MR. HANKINS: No, I do not. 

SENATOR WEDWORTH: You do not. You mentioned 

visits and Senator Carpenter got on to that. The type of 

narcotics and the amounts in the previous testimony indicates 

that there I s a substantial amount of narcotics wi thin the 

prison system and you mentioned how some of it comes in. 

many visits would you estimate that you have per day at 

San Quentin where this bodily contact is allowed? 

MR. H.ANK~NS: Well, I wouldn't know the exact 

figures. As r recall, at one t+me I overheard visiting 

personnel talking about a -monthly number of yisi ts., and it 

seemed to me it W{lS C\round 2800 visits. 

~ENATOR WEDWORTH: 2;800? 

.l'1;R, HANKINS: Y·es. 

How' 

$ENATOF( WEDWORTH: That was a contact-t:ype of yisit., 

personal contact? 
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MR. IIANKINS: No, I couldn'~ ~'pl.ll H, up. 'J'l ll ' 

maJorlt~ are personal contaet. 

SENATOR WEDWORTH: Do you consider or be 11ev(' t.hat 

you have good communication within this system from 1'·110 

Director down to among the employees of the prison? 

MR. HANKINS: Yes, we have prett~ good communication. 

SENATOR WEDWORTH: It .seems to me like I'm picking 

up some gaps here someplace in your testimony. Like the people 

that handle the visitors, for instance. Do you have good 

contact w.ith those people so you know how many are coming in 

or in your semi or at least undercover-type of work, do you 

relate to these people that handle these visitors? 

MR. HANKINS': Yes. 

SENATOR WEDWORTH: To be on the lookout for certain 

people at certain times7 

MR. HANKINS: Yes, I do. 

SENATOR WEDWORTH: And do you give other officials 

within the institution that informatipn, also? 

MR. HANKINS: Yes, r do. 

SENATOR WEDWORTH: Then 1 would think. that you hC\ve 

a pretty good idea of the exact numbers J, don't you? 

MR. HANKINS: No, I: don't really get' into the number 

of visits. Again, we're Just talking about a s~all group. 

SENATOR WEDWORTH.: What percentage of narcotics that 

enter th+15 institution would you say·, by weight or any ~ay you 
, . ' 

want to put it, thro~gh the type of visits that baye the bodily 

contact? 
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MR. HANKINS: vlel'l, I tllink one w.a~ of possluly 

explalnine this -- I think what you're gettine; ai, you're 

concerned with how much narcotics can a person carry in their 

mouth and transfer. 

SENATOR WEDWORTH: A.s to the total amount that I'm 

told are within the institutions. 

MR. HANKINS: You may have a number of people 

involved in the same thing that come up from, say, Los 

Angeles all in the same car that visit different inmates that 

are all with the same group. 

They all will in turn transfer narcotics. Whether 

it be three or four balloons, whatever it may be. Where you 

end up with maybe an ounce delivered inside. 

SENATOR WEDWORTH: A total of one ounce among a 

group of say four in a car? 

MR. HANKINS: Possibly, yes. 

SENATOR WEDWORTH: How many ounces per day or. per 

month do you b01ieve enter through this type of visit? A 

pound or whatever you have? 

MR. HANKINS: I couldn't give you a safe estimate. 

SENATOR WEDWORTH: How many pounds do you think 

enter this institution within a month k? or a w.ee , 

MR. HANKINS: + would have no way really of giving 

you a good, safe figure. I know it wouldn't be an~wheres near 

a pound. 

SENATOR WEDWORTH: W'ell" you know we need to nail 

down as closely as we can s'ome exa'ct figures so we'll be abl~ 
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to maybe come up with some answers as to how much each group 

is bri~gi~g in. Y,ou don't know? 

MR. HANK~NS: I'm unable to ans~er that for ¥ou. 

~ENATOR WEDWORTH: Ho~ man~' people within the 

institution do you think use narcotics? 

You know,' how many prisoners you have there as of 

this morning, whenever you mustered them or made a check? 

Somebody did. 

MR. HANKINS: Well, a large percentage have used 

narcotics over the years. 

SENATOR WEDWORTH: Well, let's use 1973. I think 

you sh.ould by' now at least have some statistics on 1973 because 

this is almost April. What percentage in 1973 of the inmates 

do you think were users of narcotics? 

MR. HANKI'NS: Again, I can't answer this question 

for you. I don't keep these kinds of statistics. 

SENATOR WEDWORTH: How about a guess? You're out 

there working, you're undercover. You get a lot of informa-

tion, I'm sure. Ten per cent, 40, 60, 701 

MR. HANKINS: I' couldn't answer. 

SENATOR WEDWORTH.: Just can't answer that. How 

man~ vehicles a day, per day enter the i,nsti,tution? 

MR. HANKINS: Aga+.n" this i9 outside JTlY area . 

SENATOR WEDWORTH.: Yes, but ~ou said you had a 

communi,catton s~steni that was. adequate or su;f'fY+c~ent or, ~ood 

w"ithin the slf·stem at that one institution. 

J'vlR! HANKINS: . There ~s no way you can really pin down 
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the numb.er Of yehicles ·that entp.l' the Pl'1t,())! on n Jr.'lven dRY~ 

SEN A'fOH W1WWO!~'I'II: 0 f'f'te \ ;1 I v('h t nlNi? '1'1H'1'(,) '::. 110 

way you could dn that? 

MR. HANKINS ~ I couldn It:, no. 'l'he:r keep a log of 

vehicles that come in. They keep this informat~on, but I don't 

have it, 

SENATOR WEDWORTH: Well, you're an expert on this 

and you1re here testifying. I'd hoped that you might have more 

information than lfoU do, Sergeant. 

MR. HANKINS: I do not work that much in the 

narcoti c~ fie Id. 

SENATOR WEDWORTH: We had a previous hearing and 

we're getting some information from other areas. Now you've 

come as an official and it would be beneficial to this 

Committee if we had some ballpark figures. I'm not asking 

for names ~ I'm not aSki.ng for how many were there on the 18th 

of June, 1973. I' m ~ot aski!lg for that., but I think if we had 

just some. estimates it w'ould be helpful. 

MR. HANKINS:, Well, I'm still unable to give those. 

SENATOR WEDW:QRTH: You still don't }~J.~(". that? 

MR. HANKINS: No, I don't. 

~ENATOR WEDWORTH.: Thank you. 

Mr. Chairman? 

CHAI'Rl'1AN CARJ;lENTER: Sgt. Hankins., one final ques­

tion from me. I pre.sume ob. occasions during -visitations you 

intercept weapons or narcotics or other contraband coming in; 

is that not the case? 
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Mn. lli\NKJN~~: Yun. 

t;LlA I l1M1\N (;1\RPEWP1':H: Whnl I li til(' rH'oc(~dul'O Wrl~'tl 

thls occurs? 

MR. HANK~NS: ~~'s treated as a felony. It's 

handled by a disciplinary committee and referral is made to 

the District Attorney's Office. 

CHAI~MAN CARPENTER: This would be ~arin County 

in your case? 

MR. HANKINS: Th.at's correct. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Well J Sgt. Hankins~ we 

coming down to help throw some light appreciate very much your 

d ,.r= get kl.'nd of discouraged in the on this issue for us, an ~~ 

I ' 1 d made my mind up when Legislature sometimes, b.ut ve a rea y 

I leave this job I don't want yours, either. 

Thank you very much for appearing here today. 

Mr. Paul MorriS, please. 

Mr. MorriS ~ you are the Deput:y Supe.rintendent of 

the Soledad facility, is that correct? 

MR. MORRIS: Ye~) sir. 

CHAIRM~N CARPENTER: Do ¥ou have a statement? 

MR. MORRI'S.; No, sir. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER~ You want to, go on questions? 

MR. MORRIS: 1es, sir. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Can you tell us ~hat problems 

arise in the administration ~.'n a penal :!.n:;;t+ tutton b:y virtue 

of this gang acti vi.t;y that w.e r re dis cussi~g here toda;y? 

.f1R. MORRI$.: Well, there are a number of them. I 
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guess the be:;lt; place to start ~ou1d be that an instj l.uU on 

is operated along ,formal lines and, of course., thesl' under­

ground groups or these di,srupt+ ve groups baye an infOl'ma1 or 

are more or less an informal force within the institution. 

They often run counter to the institution's pro~ 

cedures and policies. They put pressure on men. They cause 

us problems in terms of programming people and keeping people 

on the line that are afraid of them or that they're pressur-

ing. 

SENATOR WEDWORTH: I can't hear very well and I'd 

like to ask you to speak up. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: I think there is some problem. 

Pull this other microphone over, too. Please speak up, Mr. 

Morris. 

MR. MORRIS: I.' 11 speak up. 

SENATOR WEDW.ORTH: Please, if you would, because the 

people in the audience would like to hear this, too. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Proceed. 

.MR. MORRIS; And this :L.nformal operation throughout 

the institution is. running counter to what we would like to 

have within the institution. They pose a serious threat to 

other inmates and oftentimes staff; and just in general, you 

know, their nature of themselves is as it would be on the 

streets, as a syndicate that's tbrowipg its w.eight around. 

, CHA+RMAN CARl'ENTE.R: We have had testimon~ from 

inmates that lndicate to us that there is a pervasive atmos­

phere of terror inside the prison that exists because of this 
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i it W.ould ~ ou think that's a fair description? gang act v y. 

MR. HANKINS: Fair? 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTE.R: That the inmates have fear and 

terror? 

MR. MORRIS: Yes. 

CHAIftMAN CARPENTE.R: It' s fairl~ understandable when 

more than three hundred stahbings have occurred in a fairly 

f ti What 's the reaction of your personnel, short period 0 me. " 

d f th ? What problems does this ~our guard staff an so or' . 

create? 

MR. MORRIS: That's hard to evaluate. As Sgt. 

Hankins pointed out to you earlier in this article he read 

from that newspaper, we also received that. The Superintendent 

re cei ved that ~imeographed anonYmously through the mail, 

excerpt. The staff were aware of this, you know, they're 

aware of that newspaper and it's very hard to evaluate or 

calculate the effect it has on them. 

It must have an effect. They must understand that's 

making their job more difficult. Threats against them 

. f i1· are something that they've personally and/or thelr am les 

ith It 's obviously had a negative had to learn to live w . 

effect. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER; Could ~ou ob.se,rye anything 

about the impact it might 'have on recruiti~g the best 

qualIfied people'to work in the prison staff? 

NR. MORRIS: Oh, yes. Interest~~gly, we have sent 

recruiti~g teams out and we gat~er up a Group whether through 
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an emp 10Yment agency or one thing a.nd another ~ and we I 11 talk 

to them. And we've often had the name of the ,place -- you 

Know, the prope.r name of the place is the correctional 

training facil1tf' So the training team would be talking 

about the correctional training fac1lit~ and somebody in the 

audience would say, j,s that anywhere near Soledad or words 

to this effect" and when the recru:i:ting team said ~hat is 

Soledad, you could se~ 'the effect. 

This is dyi!lg down a little b.ecause, you know, no 

staff has heen killed there in the last two and a half years, 

last couple of years, so it's getting better. Two and a half 

years ago when a member of staff had been killed in the 

preceding six months it was bad, very bad. 

SENATOR WEDWORTH: May, 1'7 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Yes. 

SENA'J.10R WEDWORTH: You say it has improved at this 

insti'(;ution. Is that because of a change in the way in which 

the institution handles these people? 

MR. MORRIS: You're talking about the --

SENATOR WEDWORTR,: There' 5 less killi!lgs, less 

sta.bbings and you're proud that there's been -- and I am, too, 

that the staff has not been attacked qS ofte,n or hasn't been 

att~acked at all. 

MR. MORRIS: We 11, I, think, - ... 

~ENATOR WEDWO~TH: Ip that because of a change, in 

attitude of the staff? 

MR. MORRI'S: T think we have exercised more control. 
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SENATOR W,EDWORTH.; More control? 

Ml1. MOR~I:S: W'e've bee'n very careful" very careful. 

W,'e tr~' not to put anybody on our line that we deem to be a 

threat to inmates or staff. Now, when I sa~ somebody -~ 

SENATOR WEJ)vlORTH: So the answer is more control. 

That helped the situation. 

before? 

before? 

point. 

MR. MORRIS: Yes, it did. 

SENATOR WEDWORTH.: I' w:onder wh¥ you didn I t do it 

MR. MORRIS~ Well, I wasn't there before. 

SENATOR WEDW'ORTH: Ob, somebody else was there 

.MR . .MORRIS: Yes. 

SENATOR WEDWORTH: Okay. Thank you. That's the 

MR. MORRIS: Could I respond to just a little bit 

more on that? 

CHAIRriJAN CARPENTER: Surely. 

MR. MORRIS: It wasn't all control either. A lot of 

it was spending much time developing some relationships, 

communicating. We communicated with groups. We communicated 

as best we could. 

SENATOR WEDWORTH: Inmates 3 ~ou mean? 

MR. MORRIS: In.I1)ate groups, yes. We communicated 

even with Lhe type of groups like the Familia and the Mafia. 

We told them what they could expect if theJ didn't get along. 

You know, just the facts of life. The rr.eetings weren't just 

-39-



threatening meetings. We just said, nlf you continue to p.;et 

11 i ht l.f YOU don't get along, along~ tbings will be a r g . 

there's. go:tng to be a large numb.er of people locked down as a 

result of it.1I 

SENATOR AYALA: You say this didn't happen before. 

In prior years thi,s didn't happen, this communication? 

MR • ..MORRl:S: No, l'm not sa~ing that at all. It 

d b .p . I'. t'l:..ink the prob.lem on the Mafia and the was one. el-ore. u 

Familia developed after I" arri·ved there. I don't think the 

major problems in the state were there prior to that time. 

We o~gbt to separate $omethi.~g now. I believe the 

majority of the k~lli~~s of staff prior to m~ arrival at 

Soledad were att.riputed to Black militants" not the Chicano 

groups. 

SENATOR AYA,LA: How long have you b.een with the 
... 

Department of Corrections). sir? 

served in? 

MR. MORRIS: 23 years. 

SEN'ATOR AYA,LA: And at Soledad twos two and a half? ' 

JV1R~ MORRI:S: No" three years in June. 

SENATOR AYALA: W.hat other institutions have you 

MR· '. ~\ . : MQ'ORI'S I started out at ~'an Quentin 23 :r·ears 

ago. I served as a Se;rgeant at Tehachapi, a Camp Lieutenant 

out of ClJVI, a Captain in the narcottc program -.,... that's at 

Norco now.. + served as a j a+.l i.nspector out ot $acramento '0 

admini st'rator at Camp S:i:.erra for five ~'€ars ~ I was' pr~gra:n 

ass o~iate super:Lntendent down at and th,en I spent a :rear as an v 
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Chino j us.t before l came up here. As a matter Qf fact, I met 

~·ou down there. 

SENATOR AYALA: That 'Was' at the pr:t.son., 

CHAI'RMAN CARPENTER: Was Senator Ayala an inmate? 

SENATOR AYALA: Mr. Morris, tbe :tnformal activity 

that fOU re.ferred to that was on the increase) the stabbtngs 

and murders; this has decreased in the last few years) is that 

correct, where you're stationed at? 

MR. MORRIS; No. 

SENATOR AYALA: Just on the personnel itself~ the 

correctional officers? 

I was under the impression that you felt that the 

activity had decreased and the reason was because now you'r~ 

communicating and there's more enforcement or more helpfo!> 

you . 

MR. MORRIS: Well, wh.at I really mean to convey __ 

we're talking about two different things. ~irst, we start 

talking about the officers being killed there which with the 

last staff member and the Na.tional Socialist Wbite People's 

Party cla.ims responsibility- for that in communications w.ith us 

after we arrived there. That was the program administrator 

that was l-rilled. It was the las.t staff member killed there. 

NoW., the othe.rs were mili tan'c Blacks. The Chicano 

problem s(:"C'rned "to develop and come to a head throughout the 

departme.nt and we are feeling our share of it there at Soledad 

in the past couple of years. We've had our assaults there . 

And WE:' ve had our deaths there, inmate deaths. SQ Wf;' re 
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talking about two different th:tngs. Staff deaths is what we 

atarted out talkinG about. We've had the inmate deaths. 

We have, had five deaths at the north facility. WI' have two 

facilities there, north and centraL There have bf'f'n four 

deaths &t central. These were involved with the group 

acti vities wi.th a couple of exceptions that didn't appear to 

be. The~ were just a spur of the moment kind of thing. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Mr. Morris, what is the basic 

e,ducat1.on&l requirement for a s t<~ff person such as a guard or 

those whQ have contact with the prisoners? 

MR. MORRIS: Well, he has to have a high school 

diploma. Thi.s qualLfies, him to take the examination and go 

before an oral board. There's a large number of young men now 

who have associate of arts degrees, who are applying. And 

speaking as one who sits on this type of interview panel, the 

hiring panel, the high~r the education, the more likely the man 

is to get put on the list, obviously. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: ¥es'. How long a period of time 

does the trai,nl~g program that you undertake encompass? 

MR. MORRIS: Well~ it's an ongoing program. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: The man goes right to work and 

then h.e is exposed to other activities and train:J..ng on the 

job? 

MR. MORRIS: Right. For th.e first week he doesn't 

do an~thing but, get oriented to the job. Th.en within the 

fiJ:'st few weeks or f'irst few: months -- now that we"re catching 

up -- the men have to spend a week of training at an academy 
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and there he gets his 832 training out of the penal Code 

which is required by the Penal Code, the peace officer and how 

to handle a gun training. 

He has regul&r classes he's re~uired to attend e&ch 

month that are basic. The bulk of the training centers on the 

sergeants and lieutenants on the watch who are required to 

spend time with the man and tell him how to function in the 

particular position he's assigned to. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Well, is there any time during 

the training prior to employment or on the job -- do you have 

an:{ training in' the philosophy of revolutionary doctrine and 

things like this, the kind of expos ure your prisoners get 

from the documents we've seen? 

MR. MQRRIS: Oh, yes, we have cla:;3ses on just 

about anything that would help the officers do their job. I 

have a training schedule for Soledad that I could submit to 

the Committee. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER; Would you leave that with us~ 

please? 

MR. MORRIS: Sure. I'd be glad t?, 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: You indicated that as a part of 

the communications process you found it helpful to -- well, 

I was going to Ll8C the word n~gotiate. You might not like 

that. But flt lC8.st to sit down with identifiable leaders of 
I 

th~se various gan~s at Soledad at least to work things out 

wI th them, let them know what they ean expect if they conduct 

tllemsel ves in such a way and so forth. So in essence you I ve 

_113-



off1cially reco~nized the existence of the ~angs. 

leader BO easily identifiable? 

Are those 

Do they proudly wear the label of captain in the 

Mexican Mafia or what have you? How do vou ~o ahout ldentify-

ing them? 

MR. MORRIS: Well, there are no membership lists. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: I assumed that. 

MR. MORRIS: My experience with the Mexican Mafia, 

with a couple of exceptions, is that seldom does anybody step 

forward and acknowledge that he's with the Mexican Mafia, and 

that 1 s even after the point of a half a dozen inmates telling 

you he is running the Mexican Mafia or he's a power within the 

Mexican fJIafia. 

You call the guy in and talk to him about it and 

he denies it completely. So at this point, you've got a 

number of people that feel he is, at any rate. rrhis is an 

interesting thing because it sometimes ~ets to that pOint. 

It's kind of immaterial what we really think as staff whether 

or not in a group because the inmates a guy is in a group 

become so convinced that he's either lined up with them or 

against them that he gets stabbed or he's into it whether he 

wants to be or not. 

I've seen men stabbed that I certainly question 

involved in the aroup except that the whether they were ever b 

opposing faction felt that they were and that's why they got 

stabbed. . 
The Familia in the past has been fairly open about 
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acknowledging their lcad0rship. At least at our institution, 

and they would come In and t "'lk Of C'.oll""se, t"'ey identi fled c ". "I, 

to us the Mafia peop Ie. And another th lne:, we had a Ch1. cano 

group operatinG there at Soledad wllere there was obvious ly 

members of b()th p;roups i'li thin thi s ChI cano organi zation. It 

was easy for me to communicate my feelings concerning certain 

matters to the group and the message was getting across. You 

know', r might not be talking to the leaders of the Mafia at 

the institution, but the word would get to them that I was 

putting out. 

. CHAIRMAN CARPENTE'R: Let's talk about control devices 

that one in a management capacity, such as yourself, have 

devised and the Department has devised. The Director's 

cases and lock down and what have you. How do these function? 

MR. MORRIS: Well, taking the Director's cases first, 

this came about about a year ago now. We had a series of 

stabbings and problems throughout the department with these 

two groups. It had been discussed before, you know,'how we 

might deal with it. I. believe it was about I'I!ay of last year 

the Director decided to identify the leadership of both the 

Familia and the Mafia and lock them down and make them 

Director's cases. 

SENAOR HARMER: What does the term "lock them down" 

mean? 

MR. MORRTS: That would he to put them in a 

s,egregatlon unit. I would estimate that the. bulk of the'm were 

already in a segregation unit under a local classification 
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plan. This was an action b,y the Director himself and his 
I 

staff ordering the man locked down and the in~t+tution staff 

could not release him to a main line without the Di~ector'$ 

permissf.on. 

This took place.. We had man,y' meetings. Any number 

of people were submitted. I guess probahl,y four out of fi ye 

that were submitted we~e not accepted by the Director as being 

a serious enough threat to staff or inmates to be locked down. 

It was very selective. They locked down the Mafia 

at San Quentin and the major lock. down for the ¥amilia was at 

Soledad. 

I can't speak too authoritatively as to what effect 

it's h.ad on the Mafia except at our ins ti tution they obviously 

don't want any p rob lems and we haven't had any problems. We're 

trying very hard to. get along .. On the Familia I'm very 

familiar with the effect it had. We started with about 30 of 

their top leaders locked down. We presently have about 20 

hardcore Fami.lia people locked in our segregation unit. Dur­

ing this time 8 people have broken away completely from it. 

Five or six have gone on protective custody because they have 

broken away so strongly from it and they are feeling the 

effects of the Director's lock. down. 

We took back 15 strong sympathizers and w.e were able 

to put them on the line and in spite of the raet that theE~ 

hard core cases wanted these people re-released to the line 

to go out and stab and hit somebody out there, as they call 

j. t) they' didn't do it because they saw what was happening to 
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the others. 

I think the recruiting, as far as the Familia~has 

dropped way off because the,y now have a feeling as to what can 

happen down the r ;ad if they. get into th:t:s organization. 

Another interesting thing is that th~ Familia has 

it's my understanding that because the people we put out on the 

line has not stahbed any'bod,y, ha·ye not retaliated against the 

Mafia, now they put contracts on them. 

But there are so many on our line now that the 

contract is k:i-nd of meaningless. There are just too many of 

them. As a matter of fact, the group that is stabilizing on 

our line probably outnumbers the hardcore and so w.e've had 

no proplem. 

I.' ve got a number of them in a close supervision 

unit that we're gradually releasl!lg back to the line. As a 

matter of fact, I'm meeting with them ¥riday. 

SENATOR WEDWORTH: Mr. Chairman? 

CHAI~MAN CAR?ENTER: Senator Wedworth. 

SENATOR WEDWORTH: Then what 'you're telling us is 

that punishment inside the tnst:l,.,tutic;m is. effective. 1$ th.a.t 

what you're saying? 

J1R. 'MORRIS ~ The segregating of people is erfectiye 1 .' . 
certainly . 

SENATOR WEDW'ORTR: W'ell, when you segr~gate the 

hardcore , that's really punishment. ,¥,oulockthem down 13l1d 

they cannot hurt an;ybo,d;r? 

l1R, MORRIS: . That t s correct. 
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SENATOR WEDWORTH: My question th~h is: Why didn't 

~ou do this long before? For instance~ sa;y, the ftrst 

stabbings. W.h~ did it take so many ¥ears for somebody ~ some-· 

place w:t.thin the sy:s;tem -- and I' In re ferri!lg now to the 

officials, the people that run the prisons, that are appointed 

to run thes'e institutions -- wh¥ d~d it taltc you so many years 

and so man¥ deaths and ~o mqny stabbings to finally come back 

to the realization that ma¥be what we've been doing is wron~ 

and we'd better do someth~!lg else and let's try punishment~ 

which ¥ou eventually did? 

MR. MORRIS: I'f you'll recall earlier, I said that 

most of the people that were locked down were already locked 

up.. We locked people up after every' stabbing. W'e had these 

people identified and we had them locked up. The idea of the 

Director's saying" "You cannot be unlocked unless approval 

comes from Sacramento," is what I'm talking about,the Director's 

cases. 

I 'Would say 99 per cent of the ca:;;es that are 

Director's cases were locked up when they were submitted to the 
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Director in the first place. The¥· were a threat to the line. • • 
They had been involved in s·tabbings. They had been identified 

and segregqted. This is a long-term lock down. Anybody that 

gets locked up appears r~gularly b.efore a committee and each 

time he has to get out. Quite naturall;y, you know., and there's 

one hell of a lot more hope involved in the· thi!lg that the 

Director has locked you down as a definite threat and th:i:s is 

long-term. 
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S.ENATOR WEDWORTH: The Dire ctor has locl(ed lfoU down. 

Would you identify the Director? 

MR~ MORRIS; The Director of Communications. 

SENNrOR WEDWORTH: That's Mr. Procunier? 

~R, MORRIS: Yes~ sir. 

SENATOR WEDWORTH: ~rom his ivory tOWer with 

information he sa¥s~ "Okay;. lock thi~ one up." Without h~s 

okay, you don't do it7 

MR. MORRIS: No. No, we can lock. anybody up we 

want to lock up with cause. Anyhody that's a threat to the 

staff or inmates can be locked up. 

SENATOR WEDWDRTH: Well, would you say that since 

there tiS been this. change and you have these lock dO\.ffis and I 

know you do, there's been a tremendous cha!lge in the operation 

of our institutions in the recent months, right7 

MR. MORRIS: res. 

SENATOR WEDWORTH: I'm aware of that. Then you say 

it is working? 

MR. MORRIS: Yes. 

SENATOR WEDWORTH: Then would you say it is because 

lock down is realllf punishment, isn't it? 

MR. MORRI'S. : Ye, S • 

SENATOR WEDWORTH: Would you say, that the¥ do rec~g~ 

nize punishment? 

1'1R. MORRIS: yes. 

SENATOR WEDWORTH: Thank, you. That t saIl :J: wanted. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Senator Ayala? 
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SENA'}10n AYALA: Could you describe for me what you 

mean b." "lock them up II? 

They're already in prison; they're in jail. What 

does the additional lock up 1 mean, so itary confinement? What 

are we talkin~ about? 

MR. MORRIS: We're talking about the segre~ation 

unit. At our institution we have a hundred and forty-four 

man segregation unit. In thi it it' s un s very tight security. 

They're moved in restraint anyplace they go. By that I mean 

they're moved in handcuffs. Th d ey are un er close supervision 

when they shower. exercise. Th ' , ey re exercised in small numbers. 

Because of the large number of different, you know, 

we have people from every affiliation up there and ~~lot of 

animosity so we have to be careful on when Ne exercfse them 

and how we exercise them. They spend a great deal of time in 

their cells. 'fhere is no program for them. You know, they 

can't go to school. Th ' ere s no self-improvement efforts there. 

SENATOR AYALA: Is there a guidance center at 

CD'!? 

When they first arrive there, don't they keep them 

Up in a certain area of the prison until they are able to 

evaluate where to ship them? 

MR. TIIORRIS: They may. There is really no comparison 

between guidance center processing and h t I' t .. w a m alking about. 

SENATOR AYALA: My further question is, sir, and I 

should have asked the Sergeant the same question, too: Are 

pr sons, hese different these alao prevailinp; in our women's i t 
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groupS ~ the f'llexican .Man a? 

:MR. MORRIS: I reall¥' don't haVe any knowledge of it. 

I've heard that there is kind of a women's auxiliary, but I 

can't speak with authority on that. 

SENATOR AYALA: Just one further ~uestion: The 

Sergeant, I guess, indicated the ballpark figure of 700 ;for 

the Mexican Mafia, 50Q ;for the Familia, 400 for the Aryan, and 

1250 for the Black Guerilla Famil¥. 

You say you can't identify these people. They won't 

admit it. How are these figures arrived at? 

MR. lVIORRIS: Well, I'm not sure how the Sergeant 

arrived at hi.s figures. How I identify a lot of the:n -- as I 

said, the Family will often identify themselves. They are 

getting more reluctant, but they have in the past often 

identified themselves. 

SENATOR AYALA; +h your opinion --

MR. MORRIS: It's inmate information by and large. 

As I said before, it sometimes becomes immatepial what we 

think. If the Mafia belieye:s a man is in the ltamily> and they 

feel it strongly eno~gh to stab him) you know, it's kind of 

immaterial whether he's in the Family because they have put 

him in th.e Family and they fee.l he's there. 

SENATOR AYALA; Are these t'lgure.s fa'irly accurate 

as :t 0u ' re concerned or do you haVe any idea? 

MR., MORRIS: Well, I don't know.. I, don't know 

hecause he mentioned the word IIsympathizers." When you think 

of sympathizers -- from all the information I got with real 
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problems, real !H'oblems w.tt!Jln the InstlLuLion bl'pnkt'l 0ut, 

that 1 t is rea Ily p;olng to nlign wi th 1.. be Chi ennos Cr'olll the 

Los Angeles area which is, you know, a large portion of our 

population as opposed to the rural and Northern California. 

So when you start talking sympathizers~ somebody that didnlt; 

eyen belong in the organization m~ght well be a sympathizer 
... 

and it might be a north .... south deal if it ever became real 

hea~. 

SENATOR AYALA; This numher may be conservative 

then? 

MR. MORRIS: If you're going to sa~ sympathizers 

and he said that3 yes, it could be, because it's a north-south 

type of thing. Rural north as opposed to urban Chicanos out 

of Los Angeles. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Mr. Morris, I assume you have 

the same observations or problems or however we should describe 

them relative to information comipg into the prison with 

regard to lawyer's yisi tation and what have, you. Is the 

narcotic traffic in use inside Soledad comparable to that of 
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other institUtions? • I 

MR. MORRIS: Yes. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Can you add anything; to what 

Sergeant Hankins sai,d relative to the introduction of narcotics •.• 

into Soledad? 

MR. MORRIS: Only that we are presently building 

another yisi ting area and in this visiting area we are going to •• 

have the glass and telephones for visiting. As we identif~ 
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people who are involVed in narcotics or ~ho we feel are 

involved i.n narcotics, we're going to req,uire the.m to visit 

in this special area. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: No contact visits? 

~~~ MORRIS: No contact visits. 

r 

+n other words, a contact visit is, going to be a 

privilege that's going to have to be very carefully protected 

at our institution. That's what we are moving toward. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Why,hasn't that always been the 

case? Has there been judicial intervention or decisions that 

have changed the nature of visitation or the introduction of 

material, reading matter in the prison? 

MR. MORRIS; Yes) there has been. Not the visiting, 

to my knowledge. I can't think of an~thip~ off the top Qf my 

head. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER; You know of no Judicial decisions 

or other legal restrictions that importune ~our ability to 

determine the t;ype of visitation that's going to be allowed? 

MR. MORRIS: No~ not off the top of ~ head. 

Again, and theSe!,geant covered i t ~ it's important to 

remember that - .... you know, 1" can't give any f~gures either 1 but 

it's still the majorit;y of the men in prison who are tryin~ to 

do their time and program and, ge,t, .out and ~e' re dealing with 

a minority and it IS ver;y di,;fficult to oppress a. la;r'ge number 

of men because of a few.. 

So the best thing w.e can try to do ts identify these 

few and set up re9trictions for them accordi~gly. This is 
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--~------.... ~-
exactly why we have 

vision units. I do 

intervention. 

the adjustment centers, the close 

have somE' concern:;; ab.out J ud1cia1 

Guper-

CHAIRMAN CARPENTE.R: Plcasr'" T \r.}()uld he int('l'ested. 

MR. MORRIS: 

place a man in one of 

tjon process and if th 

Well, in te!~s of classification, we 

the,se lock up units through a classifica-

e courts get involved in our classifica-

~ etermine from afar whether a man is a tion process Or try ~ d 

threat to other inmates or to staff. this ~ can cause one ter-

rible problem for us that I bDpe we never have to face. Our 

classiflcatlpn process may be ine.xact . ~ but we do the best we 

can and we keep che majority in mind. 

The majority of the men and it' s just like a tow.n. 

\'l 
I 

There are some people who d ' on t get along in any society .. We've 

got a group of peop Ie that didn't get • along in SOCiety in the 

first place. N ithi ow w n that ~ociety there's some people that 

just don't get along. They prey on others or they're very 

dangerous people. And they need to be segregated so that we 

can operate as normallf as possible with the majority. 

CHAI:RMAN CARPENTER: Senator Hq.rmer? 

SENATOR W.EDWORTH: Mr. Chairman? Oh II .;t . m sorry. 

Go ahead. 

SENATOR HARMER: Mr.JVIorris, the ge,neral tenor of 

our hearing has been t d o eter~ine if within our factlities at 

this t~me there is a i groW' ng recruitment into these radical 

militant groups and if there i -s any way to identify o:rg::mized 

effort on the outside of the institutions to make contact with 

• .' 
• • 

• •• 

• 

• 

I 
I· 

• 

the inmates and to encourage their recruitment into these 

organtzations. 
Do yOU see in the overall picture at Soledad any 

:j..ndications that would tell ',fou that these organizations are 

growing in number? That there is increased activity to both 

recruit and mobilize inmates into these organizations? 

IVlR. MORRIS: Well>:J: would only say yes to one part. 

I think that the thing is growing 3 is moving on the streets. 

At lea.st, the information we have is that it's moving on the 

streets. I don't see any big" major change in the institution 

other than the fact that the thing is obviously carrying over 

to the streets. 
SENATOR HARMER: You say the thing is carrying over 

to the street. You mean the recruitment to these organizations 

appears to be active on the outside at the institution to the 

best of your knowledge? 

MR. MORRIS: Well, recruitments -- not necessarily 

what I think __ is that people who are in these organizations, 

some of them tend to go out and continue working w+tb another 

p;rou1? of people who are in the organization on the outside . 

I think that's what we're finding out. 

SENATOR HARMER: Do you know what the general 

purpose of these people is in their activit',f on the outside? 

W~at is it they want to do? 

MR. MORRI.S: W.e.ll ~ continue to f:tght each othe,r 

firs,t. The first is probably- to continue cr'iminal acti,vi:ty. 

Se.cond is to fight each other" 

-55.,.. 



CgNNfOR HAiU1?:R: ls there any purpose ir, this, an;y 

;Nr.fjf'l(wOyur"p{)ce on tr1f.tir r,:,trt J an:.{ identifying theme that 

un1tuB them that ~ou know of? 

Do they have a discernible goal that they want to 

~chjeve Dr ar~ they just people whoae whole mentality is 

{!(lmm1 tted to violam:e'? 

litH. MOBIUS! That 1 n fair. There are a large number 

01' t~hem __ no,";) not everybody in the group is comrni tted to 

v101ance~. Not everybody has even committed violence. And an 

iwpl"cciablr: numln:r in the 'f'ami11a pulled out j ~st as a result 

of being told, "You have to stab somebody. II They come into 

UW institution. They were from, maybe, San Jose, which is 

a propel' p lace to be from, and they join tte Fami lia. And it 

Wl.W all run (md games and all of a sudden somebody tells t.hem, 

lIyou have to stab somebody,ll That I s when they started having 

thouCl,htt;) about beltm[Sing to this organization. 

13ut some 0 r them nre very much comrni tted to violence. 

!~onm of them are very dangerous people. It I S safe to say that 

mont of theao people aren't going to be on the streets for a 

.long, lon~ time. 

SgNATOR HAHMI~lh An opposed to your inmate popula-

tlun that 10 on the line and in the adJustment center or 

l(HHwd up ~ wl'lat pel."{Hmtaee in ratio could you identify for us 

iJf m(~lnbt;n"!;hip in t,he l'ud1cnl mi Ii tant groups? 

Wt1ulct it be that more of the radical militant group 

tflt-mhtU'tt.l tf.'lnd to tH" 1 n the loclc up or on the line or can you 

c:: X 

-Jti-

• • 

• • 

• • 

• • 

• • 

• • 

• • 

•• 

.:. 

MR. MORRIS: Well, the dangerous, radical, militant, 

or underground inmate groups are locked up. I hope I'm 

speaking author-i tati ve l;y on that. 

SENATOR HARMER: Have you seen over the period of 

your experience in the system generRlly, irrespective of how 

long you've been at Soledad, any change in the ~amilia or the 

prison population over the lasL decade? 

MR. MORRIS: Yes. 

SENATOR HARMER: What has been that change? 

MR. MORRIS: Well, the change is that -- it's very 

similar to the chnne:e that is happening on the streets. I 

spent many years in the Department of C0rrections. L was at 

San Quentin when two officers were murdered and I think at that 

time,if memory serves me right, it was the first two officers 

killed in the Department of Corrections jn 25 years. Then we 

went for many years without anybody bein~ killed. Then, all 

ofa sudden~ we had a rash of staff bein~ killed. 

The Blacks became more militant just like they were 

becoming on the streets. They wanted recognition and we weren't 

0ealing with the most stable Black element. We were dealing 

with the most dangerous Black element in the institution. 

The Chicano movement started or! the streets and the 

Chicano movement started in the institution. In between times 

we always had ()1.tr) Nazi type and what with one thing and 

another~ they were more than willing to get oft into their 

i-hing., the white supre-macy th1.ng. You have the same thing on 

the street over the last few years, and as far as I'm concerned, 
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it kind oJ: r.tJ flucto l'/hat t:; happprdni:, in Goc1et~. Jt went. on 

in the irwtitution in a more danr;erous vein. 

SEHA'IDR HAIU1ER: Would it be.' a fn i.l~ summary (\f your 

otatement to ~~ay that in your opiniQIl ov(n~ the lnst' deC'(1t.e 

the nature of our prison population has become a more donger­

ow; type person and a more violent type person to deal with 

in the institution? 

MR. MORRIS: Yes> I'd agree with that statement. 

$F~ATOR HARMER: Then to continue on from that point: 

lia you aee any relationship between the emergence of that 

phenomena and some causative element? You tell me it's the 

onma thing thatfs been happening on the outside. Why is it 

happening at least to OUr prison population? Why over the 

past. decade ia OUr prison population becoming more violent and 

more militant and a more dangerous type individual? 

What has happened in qur SOCiety to bring this about 

. -
•• 

.-
•• 

• • 

or in our penal system to bring it about? ••. 

MR. MORRIS: \'iell J that's a tough one. I'm not sure. 

1 t m .really not sure. I do l(now that we have -- for instance, 

one example is the forger doesn't come to an institution as • _ 

r~~ularly as he did in the past unless it's a large-scale forgery 

t)~H~·t.'ntion. He(! '3 more apt to get probation or something of that 

tHltlll"f.L This has tended to drive up the violence. I don't •• 

t.U\1t'l \tfhy violence ha.s inera~~don the outside.. I really 

\h}U i t 1 1 don't lmo\<l why violence has increased against police 

(ll'r:1(H.~~fjJ and it hns. :rim not sure anybodj' has the answe.r 

ti.\ it ~ !t t~ kind of' an anti-establishment thing going on that 
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1s hard ;for somebody that's heen part of the establishmeJ'1t for 

so long to understand . 

SENATOR HARME~: Well, if we can then get back to 

perhaps something more specific and less theoretical. Within 

Soledad itself can ¥ou identify any additional. groups other 

than the ones that Sgt. Hankins referred to as being in 

existence? You stated you had the nei'l Ii1amilia, the MeXican 

Mafia, the A:ryan Brotherhood. Do you have members of the 

Symbionese Liberation Army at Soledad to the best of your 

knowledge? 

MR. MORRIS: No . 

SENATOR I-IARMER; You are saying you don't know or 

you don't have? 

JVlR, MORRIS: Not to Tn¥ knowledge . 

SENATOR HARMER: You have no knowledge of having 

any there? 

MR. MORRIS: No. 

SENNrOR HARMEF.; How about Venceremos'l' , 

MR. MORRIS: Well, we have had people~ disruptive 

people within our institution. Some of them that we have had 

to segregate and one thing and another who corresponded with 

Venceremos-type people. But as far as anybody acknowledging 

themselvus or even informants saying this person was a member 

of Vcnceremos., we have had very little of that within the 

j nsti tution, 

SENATOR HARMER: How about the .real 11afia" the 

Costa Nostra Mafia? 
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!1R. If.ORRIO; vic have a cou.ple of th.ose guys. 

$r~NATOr{ HAfUvfEH: Do they function in any different 

MR. f40RRIS: No, they dontt cause us any pl'oble-ns 

• 

• 

at all. • 
SEnATOR HAnt.'IEH: Just one last question then, Mr. 

Is ther!; an-v indic&tion that the emergence of these Morrl0. " 
groupe fa identified with Communist activity, with Marxist, 

Leninist propoganda? 
MR. MORRIS: Yen, thiO Third World Movement is almost 

in a part. \~e have people in all groups that get off into 

t.hat. We've never had, you know, R group jump up and say, 

HWe I re tbH 'fhird World Movement J II but there ':ire people that 

by the literature they receive and the correspondence they 

ne-nd out) we know they wer(~ qui tt~ obviOusly ~·".Y off' into the 

Ttd.r'd World and most of that is Communist-type literature. 

I say COlnmunist) and most of it leans more towards 

t.l'U: China brand. 

SENATOR HARMER: Maoist-type, you mean? 

MR. MORRIS: Maoist-type, yes. 

. Is the literature that Sgt. Hankins SgN ATOR HAR!4ER: 

nhowed Ull typical of the type of literature that shows up 

tt tt. .... ~ 'f'j; .... i. {)ont~ro ai, Soledad? (.ln10n ~ vt, t~ k 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 
t~fNAfrOH HARMJ':R: lts theme is ger:erally the same theme? 

Nfl, MORRIS: Yes. • 
SEllNl'OR UAm·u.;R! Thank you" Mr. Chairman. 
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CRA~RMAN CAR~ENTRR; Mr. MorriS> we're goi~g to take 

approximately a ten ..... minute recess. t'fe $enators have to go to 

the floor for a few moments to start th~ sess+on . 

After ten minutes, we will return and co~nence. ~f 

you can just wait, weIll go right on from there. 

There Will be a ten-minute recess. 

(Whereupon a brief recess was 

taken, after Which the follow~ 

ing proceedings we~e had.) 

MR. MOR~IS; $enator, could I make a ~ew comments on 

things that I'ye had time to reflect on in this break? 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: We'll go back on the record. 

You can proceed, Mr. Mor~is. 

MR. MORRIS: First, in terms of the punishment 

aspect of being locked up. I'm sure the inmates view it as 

punishment. That's not our intent. OUI' intent is to make the 

institution safe and neeregate these people. That's our 

intent. 

The other thinc,!; Senator Harmer was asking about is 

that the whole thrust of the State has been to keep lightweight 

offenders out of prison, which has had probably the most 

pronounced influcncc~ on the type of people Ne receive today. 

The last thing lId like to comm0nt on is the refer­

ence the Senatorntade to Director Procunier in his ivory towe;!:'. 

Wt~ .have nobody itl Sacrament~o involved in the direct operations 

Who hasn I thad lcmgterm institutional experience simiJ,arto my 

own. So they know wllat'n going on. 



CllldRMAN CA' HPl';NTV;R: All .... l ht Ltd .i.: g • e' me procee 

",here l~(a8 1tmen we hrnkn and then I think Senator Ayala had 

Gome questions. 

With re£l,tll'd to the handling of lawyers and theil' 

cuntact with inmatoo in the Soledad sYGtem~ I'd like your 

analyaio of that l"· .... ob,lem. Did h l~· , y,ou ear Sgt. Hankins' comments 

lnthat regard? 

~R. MORRIS: Yes, I did. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENT,ER; Do you have the same problem at 

Sol.odad? Do you handle it exactly the same? 

MR. MORRIS: No> We haven't had the problems that 

Se",n Quantin has r;oxne .... ienced. I d ~ ~ 4 eal personally with all 

{it tot'ne:ys fot' central faci Ii ty J and in all hones ty > the so .... 

• • 

• • 

• • 

• • 

• • 

called radical element in l11¥' pe;r'sonal dealings with them have •• 

b~ and large been the same as with an~ other attorney. They've 

tt.o(m very I'eaeonable with very few. exceptions, and the excep-

tlOl]s I al\'{tilya call to their attention not only on the spot •• 

but Ili~ n"ut it" in w iti t t y p ,r 'ng 0 'hem that this type of conduct 

Won It be pe"':'Wl1ttr.a,,~ d I 
kU, ~u an we ve had mail come in that was maga-

~1i"wa marked. "legal lTlail>1i but they weren't radical magazines. • • 

We haVen't had an~ real serious violations of the 

mn11 at our institution that I know of. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER; What t s different about Soledad 

o"nd Stm ~u~nt1n in this res.pect? l.s. the ty,pe of inmate 

d1tte,Nmt? 

• 

Nl\. MORRIS: Yes,. and who you happen to have at your • 

lm:ttltu.tion~ At onetime we had inmates there who attracted 
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this type of element and We had much more contact \:1:1 th them 

at that time. JVlany of thene people were transferred to San 

Quentin and, of course, the attorney interest then centered 

on them. We are also a little hit further away from the Bay 

Area w:here these people headq,uarter than San Q.uentin. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTb:R: Senator Ay,ala7 

SENATOR AYALA: Yes, Mr. Ch.q.irman. I want to purs '.le 

one of the questions by Senator Harmer. Tn reference to the 

increase of more violent-type of individuals in our jails today 

and the question was: In your opinion, what bas triggered this 

type of a hardcore-type of person into our institutions? ~ 

just wonder if something that w:e're doing within the 

institution has triggered it, our attitudes or lack of or 

perhaps more dis cip line. What fs it? Is it any,thing that 

we're doing within the prison that will trigger this type of 

violent attitude on the part of individuals or is it something 

they already had when they came to the institution? 

MR. MORRIS: Well, I sure hope not, Senator. You 

know, we're sometimes accussd of running a crime school. 

Obviously, we don't ;run a crime school, but w,e can't stop 

anybody who comes to an institution intent on becoming more 

professional by talking to more profossional people and he 

forgets that they arc also failures at whatever criminal 

profession they Vlere in because they are in prison, too. 

We call't stop a man who w:ants to bec'orne a better 

burglar from ta.Lklnfr. to other burglars tU1d acquiring nC'I'T 

te chniq ues . IJ.'o that extent, he can fur'ther his education in 
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crimo 1..1" that'!~ wl'l,,,tl.. h~ corn('s t..here (inti ~:;eek.s. We c(~r·i.a1nly 

don I L en c()uc'a(~£! tt. 

Sh:NATOR AYALA: T recognize that t,he correctional 

officeJ;'s are screened intensivel;f before the;y're given the 

position. My limited experience as a guard, a Marine guard 

at a. Naval prison, ! noted some of the individuals, m~ fello\:{ 

guards, they enjoyed the ~dea of triggering and making it 

rough for the inmates, their o~n fellow Navymen or Ma~ines 

or whatever. 

I just wonder if in spite of the fact that we do 

Screen the cort'ectional officer~ very carefully to a great 

degree, that ma~be one or two slip in that has that type of 

personality wh.o would like to anger these people and trigger it. 

I'm not suggesting this happens, but I know this has happened 

as Marine guard in a prison. 

My other question is that you mention that you refer 

to a yenceremos-t;fpe of person. 

MR. MORRIS: I said that1 

SENATOR AYALA: You said that earlier, yes. 

it do\'{n as Y.OU said 1 t . 

I wrote 

MR. MORRIS: I'll do my best to explain what I 

thought I was saying at the time. I equate it with this 

.' 

.-
Third Horld Armed Revolutionary, armed overthrow of the govern- •• 

ment. That's what I equate it with. A violent overthrow, not 

through ~oc1al change Or poli tical ch~ge, but Just armed 

violenoe. . -
SENATOR AYALA; You mean involved in the force;ful 

-6~- •• 

h ~overnment. this is the type Of people that overthrow. of' t e c-.. ~ 

are attracted to the Venceremos7 

:MR. MORRIS: yes. 

My' third nue .. stion; Would you support SENATOR A'!ALA: ..", . 

legislation that would limit the mail priVilege to only the 

f situation and every other mail attorney-client t~pe'o a 

received by the inmate be opened by' the authorities regardless 

of whether it's from attorne~s or not? 

'.MR. MORRI'S: ~ support any legis lation that is 

submitted by' the Director of covrections and through the 

proper channels and passed. 

SENATOR AYALA: Well, I mean, you have to support 

it because he'S your boss. Would you initiate it? 

it ? Do you think this is needed Would you pvomote , 

today? Let me put it another way. Do you think we need 

that W'ould allow the authorities to open all mail legislation 

inmates except that ma:.tl which is the attorney­received b~ 

client ty,pe of a letter? 

MR. MORRI:S: We already have that privilege. 

SENATOR AYALA: But I understand that if it's 

written on the front that it's from an attorney, you can't 

i f some ille, gal activity being open it unless you're suspic ous 0 

involved. 
MR. MORRIS: We can open it in front of the man. 

can open it in ;front ot the 
If we have any question at all, we 

man . We don't read it, but we open it in front of the mar.. 

SENATOR AYALA: Okay,. 
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OHAIRMAN OARPENTER: Senator Wedworth? 

SENATOR vIEDY/OR'l!tl: Mr. Morris, t want you t('l undeT'­

a tand that I I m not anp.;ry wi th ~ ou or' ;1n~one in thE:' 

institutions. 

MR. MORRIS: Thank you, Senator. 

SE1~ATOR WEDWORTH: And I'll use what some of the 

press use on some of their panels. What I sa~ or the q.uestions 

I ask are not necessarily my own philosoph~. It's just a way 

in this case of not getting a story but getting facts. That's 

all I'm interested in. 

MR .. MORRIS: I'll try to help ~ou, sir. 

SENATOR WEDWORTH: And I would like to ask you this 

question: ~ou had a dramatic change to the good for the 

safety of both inmates and staff at your institution, you tell 

us? 

MR. ~ORRIS: A dramatic --

SENATOR WEDWORTH: Y'ou had a dramatic change at your 

1nati.tutionJ Soledad. You don't have so many any more~ do you? 

MR. MORRIS: No. 

SENATOR WEDWORTH: And r thtnk that's very good. 

Now the quest~on is this. Did that change come about by law 

or did it come about b~ r~gulations under existing law? 

MR. MORR~S: It carne about because of the existing 

regulations. 

SENATOR WEDWORTa: Then this good change for the 

safety 'of everyone at the ins ti tution, carne about by' a change 

of the regulations? 

-66-

• • 

• • 

• • 

• 

r 

• • 

• • 

• • 

• • 

•• • 

• • 

• '. 

MR. MORRIS: Yes. 

SENATOR WEDWo.l1TH: Thank you very much, 

CHAIRMAN CARfENTER; Mr. Morris, w~~h reference to 

the National Lawyer's Ouild, ~ou have contact at Soledad wi th 

members of this organization? 

MR. MORRIS: Very, very little. I w,as thinking 

about it earlier and the anl;y' personal contact I:'·ve had was 

a teleph.one call where a Los Angel~s-based attorney identified 

himself and his organization and asked me to permit a law. 

assistant t9 go in who had no legal standing and interview 

inmates, plural. Under our regulations a man can ¥isit a 

person, but an attorney can visit a number of people. An 

indi vidual can only visit one man and that I s what I limited 

him to. And to the best of ~. know.le?-ge, this intern did not 

meet our law student intern type of qual~fications and he 

never appeared at the institution. 

CHAIRMAN CA~~ENTER: I see. Do you find being 

introduced to your inmate population publicattons by the 

National Law;yer's Guild or oth.er group:;; o~ the, t~pe Sgt. 

Hankins was showing us7 

MR. MORRI.'S; Yes. 

CHAlRMAN CARPENTER: Jilld do you per.mit that materia.l 

to be passed into the institution? 

MR. MORRIS: Only if it meets -- they;'re screened 

indi viduall~ and if the~ meet tbereC]. uirements of penal Code 

Section 26QO.~ they're permitted in the insti.tution. ~:-:t' they 

don 't, we notify the man tbat the thing is not being permitted 
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8t"," .• lp Lit ff".' ••• ( ..•. nP w~~t ~I* th4nk~ f • ~"'" .'J~ tlLlu,' .0; '" "_ . .i.np; .1') • Maybe you can be 

:'¥.j,%~t. reo!,1orwiw' try it. trakj,n~j fur example; the National 

:,t~"iZ!(*r"i} Guild publ1cati(Jn t.hat Sft,t. Hankins read from inciting • 

'.t~ 'H.lY,F;N) tinp; kl anal"o, kl111np;. or other actlvi ties, ki lling 

f f~ It t'J}mcn and 00 f'ol"th. I.e t to app ly 1 t to that s1 t uation. 

That wouldn't go into the institution 

i~h"~ J'f~THll C(,rlf'l (t le·arly supports our not letting it into 

n~;· 1hlltit,uUnn. '1'h1c c··\~t1on covers that a prisoner can 

!·r'4>t~1Vt. nn:;Ui,~!lI~ UiHt gOfHl through the U. S. Nail except that 

· ~.l· \';:U·; . .1{lf~ l~,a:i t*xf'l udc: obSt~enemail ) p:ambling> lottery-type of 

NR~ !'~U~iU~~! N(,. Wtmtls a high volume? ~]e have a 

~.Jl·';;; 'V~lJ(Ug<;l·· ;,'f r:atl and i:,aI~t:'rn coming in and the vast maJority 

~'tn:" v."h~nt" nf r~l,j1i,!al U. teratul~e has fallen t)fr J 

~n!l r~n" ~H~ = t:,:"i. ';~{':~~~t':'+f~~~f'~i l t's fulJeo oft in the last eouple of' 

J!lfi''(u''t1. 7'hi~~\lC~ Im~' t t,l> ""','"f)".r>~" '~n""l ..... r· ~t· rr ..... d • ,0, r," _ .1i ~ ~l",..,;, v V 1<1. W.urne ' away) no • 
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CHAIRMAN GARJ?ENTJi;R: Do y\lU hav~ specific staff 

personnel \'{ho are a:.,signed the !'esponsibil:j.ty, to -malee this 

determination? 

MR. MORRIS: Yes. 

CHAIRMAN CAHPENTI':R: So they have some accumulated 

b.ackground by which to judge th:j.s according to the standards 

of' Penal Code Section 260Q? I 

MR., MORRIS: Yes. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: ,uer A y. :; gOOu. 

SENATOH AYALA: T ,just have one more question. . . . 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Go ahead. 

SENATOR AYALA: When I was asking 'about the mail 

situatlon,) Mr. Morris, y,ou indicated you opened the letters 

but yoU don't read them. Now y if th . . ou say . le content of the 

mai 1 is not proper) you don't g:L ve .i t to the inmate. How do 

you determine if it is proper if you don't read it? 

MR. MORRIS: Okay. Welre talkin[5 about two different 

things. We do not read all mail. We do not read privileged 

mail. And privileged mail is -- you gentlemen are entitled to 

privileged mail. An in1T!ate may write to you and we don't read 

it, but we read usual, ordinary correnpondence. In other 

words., I can opfJn up an attorney,'s letter if I am suspicious 

or a packar.;e... anci pi. ek the G tuff up like this.. ohvious ly not 

reading it, and examine it in front or the inmate. The inmate 

can stand there (,H'(l ,jee I'm not reading it. But I make :sure "...­

you 1<:no1[(, as long as it's a piece of par:.er I don r t know. what IS 

""1'i tten on it. As long as it I G a piece of paper J and it I S not 



a hacksa~ blade or a bunch of magazines, I w.ould give j.t to 

him. But that's attorney mail. That's at torne~ mai 1. 

SENATOR AYALA: That I s what I had reference to 

earlier that all mail received hy an inmate obviousl~ from an 

attorne~ you don't read? 

l1R~ .MORRI$: No. 

SENATOR AYALA: And the one that is of the attorney-

client nature, ~ou don't read at all or eyen open that? 

l1R. MORl1IS; That's true. 

CHA+.RMAN CARPENTER: If there are no fUrther ques-

• • 

• • 

• • 

• • 

tions II I I d like to thank you~ Mr. Morris) for coming here today •• 

and sharing some information with. us. 

MR. MORRIS: Thank you~ gentlemen. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: At this time we're going to •• 
recess until 1:00 p.m., at which time we'll reconvene. 

Thank you. 

(~hereupon the noon recess was •• 
taken.l 

....... -000-- .-
•• 

•• 

AFTERNOON SESSI0N 

'I : 0 Q .. 0' CLO CK , I? M • 

--000-'" 

CHAI.RMAN CARPENTER; We can go on the record. At 

this time I'd like to call Mr. Arthur Diaz. What is your 

position in the Department of Corrections? 

MR. DIAZ: Special Agent, Senator, Liaison Enforce­

ment, Liaison duties. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Between the Department and other 

law' enforcement agencies? 

MR. DIAZ: Correct, 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER; What are ~our responsibilities 

in that capacity? 

MR. DIAZ: Gathering information from the diffe~ent 

institutions and assimilating the same to other institutions, 

law enforcement agencies~ and in general keeping apprised of 

the amount of activity, violent incidents that are of mutual 

interest within the s~stem and also on the street as it pe;r.' ..... 

tains to parolees that are involved in our operation. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Do you have. responsibilty 

relatiye to the New )1amily, Nues traFami lia? 

.MR. DI'AZ: That's correct. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER; And the Rlack eueri lla Fam:1-I:y.t 

is that correct? 

JVlR, DIJ.tZ: Up to a po:t-.nt, 1: do, yes . 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTET1; Can y·ou giye us ::?Qme hf;cki?;round 

relati ve to the activities of Nuestra ;Ei'amllia as you see the.m. 
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'1, 

from your point of view? 

MR. DIAZ; I' think you have a cop~. ~ want to point 

out, 1t~s the Constitution of the Nuestrn F~milia. It's that 

six or seye,n pages and otle of the ways that I can explain some-

thing ahout the Nuestra :Pa:rnilia that people , .. rh.o have been 

working in the NF~ as it is also referred to, would agree w.ith 

us, by going over parts of the Constitution and explaining how 

we Bee thie as affecting the Department. 

CH,AJ:'RMAN CARPENTER: How in practice the content of 

the Oonstitution is carried out b~ the organization? 

MR. DIAZ: Correct~ In this light. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Would you speak as close to the 

microphone as ¥ou can, please. Proceed to select what portions 

• • 

•• 

.e 

•• 

.-
you wish to discuss. • • 

MR. DrAZ: Fine. I think the best part to proceed 

with is their Article IV, w.hich, has at the top of the page, 

IlLieutenants. " 

The reason I want to start there -- excuse me~ let me 

back up. 

SENATOR CARPENTER: About page 5 or 6 of the 

dOCUment? 

MR· D~AZ; Article II, starting with Sect+on I 

indicates the primary purpose and. goals of the organizati.on. 

Article II subsection I: "The primary· purpose or 

r;oal of this organization. . ." meanirg the N-;F j It .w.ill 

be i'or the betterment of its mePlbers and the building up of 

tl'le organization on the outside into a strong and sel;f ..... 
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supportipg ).1'amilia. II 

Now,.1 this Constitution was pJ ('ked up by .se·curity 

officers in Soledad the first part of January and we had it 

typed up verbatim includi~g the spelling errors that are +n 

there to reflect to some degree the educational level perhaps 

of the individual who wrote it and his expertise in making a 

document like this. 

$.ection III is interest:L.ng. \tA 'F~miliano will not 

be released from his obl~gations toward the organization 

because he is released from prison, but will be expected to 

work twice as hard to,Bee that a Familia is established and 

workz in hand with the organization already established behind 

the walls (Pinta). 11 

Pinta, P-i-n-t-a~ wh+ch. is the Mexican word for 

institution. 

N S t · IV "A Familiano will remain a family ow., ee lon .' 

member until death or otherwise discharged from the organiza­

tion. He will alw'ays be sub.ject to put the interest of the 

o!'ganization first and alwa:ys above everythi~g else in prison 

or out." 

There was earlier testimony about the carry-thro~gh' 

of the NF and othe.r o!'ganizations from thein:;dde to the 

outside. 

Section 'V deals w:i th an area that a;ffect1;1 violence 

within the, institution because i.t is talk:Lrg ahout discipline. 

II An auto,mattc de.ath s-entericew:llJ. he put on a 

Familiano that turns traitor, coward~ or deserter. Under no 
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cIrcumstances wi] 1 a brother Ji'nrn.l Liano be' f'f'SpOnu I.bl(' fm' 

spilling the blood of a fellow brother Familiano. 'ro do so 

will be considered an act of treason." 

Within the Constitution there are further provisions 

of a member's alood because in achieving discipltne within the 

ranks the:r have made provisions that if an inmate does not 

follow thro~gh with ht~ orders, then he will be disposed of 

at the discretion of his i·n:unedi.ate leader. 

SENATOR HARMER: Can r interrupt, Mr. Chairman? 

CHAP~MAN CAJUlENTER: Yes. 

SENATOR HARMER: Are;you familiar with any instances 

of this happening w.here. in fact a member of the NF tried to 

leave the organization and was pursued and killed because of 

it? 

, l1R. DIAZ: There. are instances that are documented 

in the Department. 

SENATOR HARMER: Of that happeni~g? 

MR. DIAZ: Of that happening, correct. 

And also there are instances of people that were high 

up in the leadership that in their own words saw. the madness 

of it all si'nce they were at the top of the echelon and wanted 

out C\l1d have clarified these areas for us in terms of how the 

stl:'ucture \'l.as working, admitti!lg their invol'yement tn the 

organization and are now .)of course" in a protective custody 

~ENATOR HARMER: Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN CA~PENTER: Mr. Diaz, on that point and not 
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with the intention of being grammatical, 1n Section V where 

it says, "An automatic death sentence will be put on a Fam1l1ano 

that turns traitor, coward Or deserter.!' Th en it goes on to 

say, "Under no circumstances will a brother Fam1liano be 

responsible for spilling the blood of a brother." Now, that's 

inconsistent. Who carries out an execution order if they can't 

kill their own members of the family or does that mean __ 

MR. DIAZ: Okay. rrhat is a I id it , s sa ,as was picked 
up as written. Now, they make further provisions for spilling 

the blood of another member that comes d un er the discipline 

aspect. They go in degrees and one of the things on earlier 

constitutions that came about and the methods of dealing with 

disciplinary measures would seem to be so harsh that they 

were driving their own members out. 

So in Article VI, they take it in degrees. The 

regimental captain -- they have people in the structure at 

different institutions. l'Th iiI e or g na captain shall pass 

sentence for all minor infractions of conduct. In wartime 

there will be no appeal to the national general, II which means 

that if a particular captain or particular institution feels 

that this one should be handed out, at that point if they're 

engaged in violent activites with, say, the Mafia or the 

Aryan Brotherhood, which they are opposed to, then he will 

carry out the diSCipline. He ill t b w no., ,e faulted for hav:tng 
executed ,thp.t thing,., 

However, in what tpey call a peacetime Situation, 

they have to,r~fer it right back up the line. 
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CH.A~RMAN CARPENTER: And ~ou feel that the~ fairl~ 

closely adhere to the dictates of their Constitution? 

M'O DIAZ' COT''l'cct. )'/) \ • , J • 

1 T') Wha1~ WOllld Lhe rH~l1t,l'IlC(, bt) CHAIRMAN CARPf~N'L1';.: I 

ti ? C(~n vou give us some example of what for a minor infrac on. a" 

would be meted out in those cases? kind of d+scipline 

I assume it's something shnrt of death. What can 

they do or what has been done inside the prison for a minor 

infraction? 

MR. A: DI Z Well, ~·ou've got expulsion. The:y cut them 

off from the organ za on i ti and then they, become prey for the 

other organizations. ~ TL[lP minute you join the Nuestra Familia 

as it stands now, you're goi!lg to be a target for the Aryan 

Brotherhood and the Mexican Mafia who h.ave a coalition. 

CHATRMAN CARPENTER; All right. So :you lose your 

prote ctt,on. 

MR. DIAZ: You lose your protection in terms of maybe 

your personal belongings, your manhood. One issue is the 

~it where somebody picks on a weaker inmate. homosexuality u 

Those sorts of things would occur. 

CHATRMAN CARPENTER: All rtght. vO ahead. 

The more severe disc1plinary measures, MR. D1AZ: 

we 're running ~cr, oss in coded messages of course, are what ~ 

and intercepted communications that are douhle talk on con~ 

t.racts on memhers ei ther inside the ins ti.tuti,on or outside. 

There are prepare s s d Ii t of People whn are out of the 

and actual contracts have heen organization, out of grace, 
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il;3suedto have ,them hi;t ~he'neyet. they:tre' .round~ 

G!:I:AtRrtlAN' CAllPENTER i I:nstde. 'PI" out~j;de 1 
M,'R, D1'A'Z " I ~t .n:;!+~:de or .out:;!i'de,. c'or-re.c't" 

Cl:I,A:~1WAN·CAR:PEN.TEl1; Carl ;y·ou re.late to us any 

circum~ta:nce$: where :the's'e' :contr'ac~ts ha",.e ~e'en' 
y.u. let and C~rried out? 

N,R. DIAZ: Th.e.r,e ~ga+n,t the're have be.en some 

carried out ,and this 'is document,e.d ±n Departmental records, 

I don' t :~l'ailt to. go l'nto t.he' name 's::t.t'uat10n r~~ht now. for the 

prote ctionof ei th.er th,osew:hn gave 'up ~fha·t we know. 

CHAI'RMAN CARPENTER: All r~ght. When you talk a.bout 

Nuestra If'amilia, can you en'l~ght'en us somewhat on the 

commun.tcat:t,ons is.sue :both, from outs.:tder·s in to members inside 

of the priSon and amoflg th.e,mselves. What deyice~ are used? 

MR, DI'AZ: Let me make 'one po:!:ntclear on this 

Communicat:f,on thi!ig: This is not a hit .and miss: ~ "r'f I" i;:i~e 
you~ you'll hear fro.Tn me, or not," of an unsOPh.ist':f,cated street­

type gap.g. They do have .their cha.tn of command', They do have 

COmmunication that's sUpposed to. go up unilat~rallY ~ so to 
speak., 

1.11 Article, 1'J,'I',1 .Section 1:1+:, 4:' waht to, get into this 
so we. can ,further e.xp'lain . . . 

that 

same, 

",Due to circ'uml?;tances: b.e,Yond our control, i,t ma;y be 

th.e,r:e·w;t.ll he' ~orethan one: ,cap't'a+'n ip. a r~gi,ment at the 

time .. ' .Tf a 'captai,n is transf'e'r:redf'r'oro one 'li'amil+q. or 

r~gi.1l}en:t .t·o anoth.e,!' w:here :tJrer:eis' 'already ,a' t :!: 
cap fi'n" the 

captain w.i th the' 'b.;ighes't' rankw.:tl1 ·take.coIll1ijahd fl,nd the other!? 
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will be reserves accordirs to their rank." 

Now" Section J.Y "B". "Wh.enever Nuestra General 

becomes +ncomrnunicado and can't supe,rvise his captuins ~ the 

first captain or commander. of La Nuestru 'Fami lin wil'] have the 

responsihility to see that each captain of the said organiza­

tion invokes and governs within this consti:tution. II 

As to actual mechanics, they have inmates corning in 

to different institutions on regular transfer who bring 

messages from different tnstitutions verbally or if it~s 

doubted that it came from, say, the leadership, then it would 

be in written or coded form. 

Sometimes" like .Mr. Hankins mentioned earlier, 

in letters that ~ght be labeled~ "L~gal. tI 

To be exact, this particular document was in an 

envelope and all it had was "L~gal Mail. II :j:t was opened and 

out tell the Nuestra Familia Constitution that was hei~g 

bro)lght in after bel~g drafted with all this rO)lgh. form into 

Soledad. 

Now" as far as outside cornrnunications~ they have as 

\'le mentloned earlier J outside peop Ie J ,girlfriends J .members who 

have alre.ady, gone to the stre,et's and mes'sages are passed back 

and forth. If you're out in a camP situation, of course, ~ou'ye 

got phone calls that can lie made and that t s one method also. 

But~ in the area of cOl1)ll1unications" when staff 

firs·t started working this th±pg" your letters., your formal 

comm,unication \.'las fairl~· open. A lot of the: ccnnmunications ~ 

say J Were \'lri tten in Spanish s l~g terms that are not easily 
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f'f h don't know Spanish or don I t understand 
picked up by star w Q 

if y'0u did know Spanish or tbe Spanish 
the street ja~gon eVen 

th t he institutional terms that 
slang and ja~gon mixed in w~ 

pop up. 

T believe you were given some examples here earlier 

'of'some of the words. They' also substttute one word for 

Espec'iall~' Wl" th the Blacks now with the 
anothe,r i.n code form. 

!:Ire a lot of ",fords that are b.eing used from Swahili 
BCj'l!'" the re !-" '," 

dictionaries that are completel:! unknown to an~one unless you 

know how to read swahili dictionaries. This ¥ou pick up as 

along and tryin, g to decipher what they're trying 
you ',re, going 

to say. 

ENTER l'~at can you tell us about CHA:t='RMAN CARP ; Xl.U 

the ~treet activities of the Nuestra Familia? 

From what we have gathered from people MR. DIAZ: 

who have gotten out of the system high up in the structure~ 

there 

now. 

is a definite structure of sorts> unsophisticated right 

The mainstay of the outside activity r~ght now) the 

base is in the Santa Barbara-Oxnard area. power 
CHA~RMAN CARPENTER; Excuse me. Why there? 

MR. DIAZ: The reason is because of the chain of 

command. They do have a recognized individual out on the 

streets wh.o, from the :i.nformation that we have -- when a 

d 1i r he's not relieved of person is released, as mentione ear e , 

. 'NTi' He is supposed to report to an 
responsibility from the ~. , 

individual on the outside for assignment whether it be a 

cr'iminal acti vi ty or on the streets 0;1;' 
contract hit involving 
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goine; back 1nto th(.! incti tut"l on. If it was a llitl'cl1t.1 (!:\ tj(~CIH\. 

In the Oxnard area rhcre's an individual who before B0tting 

out. volunteered for the dubious pleasure of b.einp; the execu­

tioner for the Nuestra Familia. From the information we have, 

contracts that are supposed to be carried out are directed to 

him b~ the individual whD has the authorit~ ahove him to be 

farmed out from there. 

This is why· I mentioned those areas specifically in 

this particular organization. The NF out of all the 

organizations seems to document most of what it does and is 

reall~ the most talked about clandestine group that we have. 

It's not as hard to follow up as the rest of them. But that's 

getting increasingly harder hecause they know that we're 

into this and their methods of communication are becoming mor8 

veiled and it's harder to pick up on it. 

They're going person to person rather than written 

communications and that ties it up unless you turn to the 

individual who is receiving and he's willing to share them with 

~ou. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: We have some estimates of the 

number of people who might be involved in the NF. Do you 

concur with those numbers? 

MR. DIAZ: I don't dis~gree. I would ~a~ that in 

all of these groups there are a hardcore number who are really 

at least talking themselves into really be~~g dedicated to the 

• • 

• • 

• • 

• • 

• • 

• • 

• • 

• • 

• • 

thing. Th ' th'h d I. e~ re e a!lger-ons an there are the people who are .• : 

waiting to be recruited, so to speak. 
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CHALRMAN CARJ:?ENTE,R: I suppose that's true in 

the Ladies Aid Society, too, all organizations . 

MR •. Dl.AZ: Corre.ct. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: What is the relationship 

between Nuestra Familia and the Mexican ~aria? 

MR. DIAZ: Oka~'. There isn't anlf' relat:l;on to speak 

of. What is occurri~g as ~gt. Hankins voiced earlier, there 

is w.hat is declared here as 'a war r;tght now between the 

Mexican Mafia and the Nuestra ~ ~ili '~. a." a. The Nuestra Familia 

keeps ver~ concise lis,ts of all its enemies - .... and b~ enemies, 

I mean the Mexican Mafia b~ name, by number, if they can 

get it, b.y town, by local barrio; chicas.) which is a slang 

term for the Oxnard area. 

At any rate, r;t.ght now.' in the institution, the 

Department has tak.en some steps to separate the.se people, 

identify them~ and not so much in a disciplinary sense, hut 

if you have leadership if a complet'el:y unknowledgeahle 

person put the Nuestra Familia leadership in the same housing 

section with a ~eYica11 ~ f' 1 d h~' )'~.. Pia ~a ea ers .-Lp under the feeling 

that, well, the racial balance should be ,J~ many MeXicans, 

on that sort of ' a pure level, fou'd have the place taIling 

apart because they'd he at each other's throats. 

dispute? 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: What is the hasis for their 

MR. DIAZ: OkE,y , 

OHAIRJ.VIAN CARPENTER: You ref'erred to it as a war. 

.MR. DIAZ: \1.ell, Sgt. Hankins mentioned earlier .... _ 
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When they 

~t'111 (""led a If'Vf': (;f :.OIJhi D t 1. cation) they thon began to take 

• 1.1' M~~:r.1(·:,m r~,d'f rt tr, tt1~k an far a:J makirq~ assaults on them, 

CHA; Hr.1AN {:AliPBN'I'l-:H: YaH. All ;t:>1 ght. It seems to 

!'t. t i;:tt 1 f ~;\Al havu 'in a ll~i!'",n population membl;o':r~ of both 

~\ 1 .h 1- II t,fW :~t~:id ,!:iU ~', UdHk:l1'f. 1\ 'l'h:L;; i:;; o~eause they I r·e mutually 

!,!'j'tr't'tlvp /, t~H.·1;· j~'t"!:iLt·l'·:'. ':'he·y j!jay bf,,~ competitive" but 

~.! 1U_4 ... v:Q."-'" l ... %. e ..... '1r.n~ ~::t..:.o.. .. "¥!Ir;~......Jj, 
.:;;."" .,...~~;;, ...... "","", ";;.,r,,,;'" ........... r- "'"'-., 

leU'i' ·t't "'''''' r ,,,,E' !:> 11 
__ ..... ,..- ----- --- ..... -"'-'-;r 

~)i ~.~H'.i t.j~"f;l ;~~ ... t t~' .~ nWl t 1 :'S the violenl!l? ~.~,)tenti al of each 

lr.~H"'hlu.nl a.rh~ w~.f·lra"':'· ,~r riot hels r:oing to carry it out. See, 

•• 

• • 

• e· 

• • 
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in the institution it isn't enough that you have four Mexicane 

here and another four here and they all have a piece. To get 

back to the old saying, "Do they have enough moxie to use it,L 

and their general reputation. You can have three ~exican 

Mafia Individuals probably make a p;roup of ten or fifteen 

others shy away simply because they know that there will be 

retaliation in the future. 

See, it's not that black and white. You get 14 

here and 14 there and give them all the same. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Well, as one who sees these 

functions and, of course, your expertise 1s primarily with the 

Nuestra Familia, can you discuss a little bit the impact on 

the prison attitude of the population at large by this group 

and the others in competition with the stabbings and killings 

that have occurred? Well, let me tell you what 11m trying to 

get in my mind. 

The prison system in its best days of operation has 

not turned out to be a rehabilitative success. It strikes me 

that this type of activity further depresses the potential of 

rehahilitation on all the prisons . 

MR. DIAZ: Correct. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: And can you describe in your 

own words as one involved far more plosely than I what impact 

this terrorism has on not just rehabilitation but on life inside 

the institution? 

MR. DIAZ; .It is very disruptive. If we send an 

individ~l in to do his time and he fully intends to do that 
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WU"t:{Jt,ic.v or 'tlh;it,tJ'V;:r' you havt~. vieIra not really puttinA him 

1 n a nt-ttinp; wrw'!',! he can fulf! 11 what we put him th~!'(.\ to do ~ 

d(i iJJ.u tinlfJ. ·ey.,Ht our und11 T' t~'I"" id Ii 
# r, ~ J~ gu e nes that we have. 

CHAIHMAN CARPE1~Tl::H: But you do feel they arC' having 

!4!L DIAl.: 1'0 a dt":?,ree. I don't want to be an 

:d'H'm1:Jt. Wf"11/> awa:r(~ that th:ln tbine .1~; existinr. You try 

f.' !d(~nttfj' Pt'i'i 1 ltJ tJi U. tia~~rpe tbat you ('an make -- well, the 

. ~'Lt:,:i i 1',1 (Itt l '1 m. ,·ulw.1 tv tl~t'U \!Hll mal<;t; t.ht.: l'ig-h t re commendations 

You go from there. 

i'HAI Hr·:AN l'AhP!W'l'EH! Gnp wi tnti.'!~S in the prior hearing 

,'HtdH"~M~ ;;'AHn-:NT.~H: If you lock too many people 

term or ·he averare t~rm for 

-
\l?~s;,)p:it'l.~ 
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MR. I)J AZ: I don't. IlilV() ml,\' ll(\l'~'iOnf1] know!c'dt":l' .1 n 

institution ~lLal'r wh.o deal wlt;h the t!LnGs1fy1ng of 1..nlnnte~ .. 
and their behavior and time. 

CHAIRJV)AN CARPENIJ!E.R: Senator Ayala? 

SENATOR AYALA; Yes .. I wasn't here at the beginning~ 

Mr. Chairman, and I'd like to ask Mr. Diaz: What is ¥our 

capacity w.ith the California Department? 

:MR. DIAZ: $'pe cial Agent, Senator, Law Enforcement 

Liaison is the function that we perform. 

SENATOR AYALA: You work out of the Sacramento 

office or are stationed at one of the institutions? 

Where is your primary area of operation? 

MR. DIAZ: Well, keep it broad. Southern California . 

But we go allover the State. 

SENATOR AYALA: What is your experience in this 

field? 

MR. DIAZ: l've been with the State seven years, in 

Corrections. for ten. I' ye worked juvenile for three years in 

a supervisory capacity in Fresno County, to be exact. 

I have worked institutions. I have ~orked parole 

and I '.m on assignment now. 

SENATOR AYALA: The, by-laws that ~e received here" 

I I m too clear. I wasn't here when you started youX' explana-. , 

tion. How did you come about these Uy"<"-laws,) not onl:y the hy ... 

laws" hut t.he revised oY'-laws? liow do ¥'ou keep up with the 

revisions on them? 
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iGt'gru11U.tt1ori gl;:t~ a 11 t~~le mot'e ('lHndest1ne I wt:: pI'ob[lllIy 

'\l¢n1t tHH! 'f,ham. l<1oot (Jf 11; will bt~ in t..heir hends. Tilt' \'iwy 

we f(Ot. tbO!H: J $Hnat(j:f1, in f~hey came in from one i nul i t. ill 10tl to 

ltnfJthf,H" in II fila-in (HlV
'
Jlope marked IlLep'nl Mail.1t Of ('f.',Ur'l:W, 

the 1nmllta~ came in and the staff looked through it, b('causf.' it 

l>/tu:m t t li lett(H~ that fit lottO that cater;ory and we obt.ained 

Mwrw. ThetHJ Ure typed verbatim wj.tb all of their errors as 

~/fiO in th(~ lorW:-j'jand copy to make it easier to read. 

~a~NAT(JR AYALA: The next question \10uld be: Is the 

fi~wnt.rn Familin a functiQnal organization inside and outside 

Llw fH.:mnl inntit.utions or primary for those who are incarcer-

MR. DIAZ} To a dt~f~:ree Il d have to say yes from the 

MR. DIAZ: Yes. It 1s functional inside and outside. 

SgNATOR AYAI~A: Does thiS involve both men and women? 

MIL DIM~: t1cn for the most par·t. The women seem to 

• • 

• • 

• • 

• • 

• • 

• • 

tit!' l)laylng th(~ rQl{~ of runnerS in l say) narcotics and providing •• 

~1 UPPOl"t • 

.pm. i.nM~: :r'll tell you f':'iY viti'WS on that matter. 

,fjiis; W{'i~ u X-eVhH,>d copy. Prior' to this coming out one of' the 

wr~:t'tl ii.,)f deh;.t!n~ YOUl' ~mpopular leaders111p W(-\!'i to execute 'Che,m 

••• 

• • 

and get them out. 

SENATOR AYALA: That's how. you impeach them? 

.MR. DIAZ: So when this ~as r€"vised) it apparent]~ 

left a little hope for the people down at the bottom. So if 

they wante.d them out) they wouldn't have to take the extreme 

measure of having them executed. 

SENATOR AYALA: When you mentioned declaring war, 

this is 11.ar OTl other organizations? 

MR. DIAZ: Correct. rIm paraphrasing what I have 

picked up in their correspondence and in the Constitution. 

That's the word they use. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTE;R: Senator Wedwor\ih? 

Senator Harmer? 

~ENATOR HARMER: ~r. Diaz, is it your opinion that 

there is a consciousness in the M.exican~American community 

outside of th.e prison ot' the, e.xl$tence of th:!:s organization? 

.MR. DIAZ: It depends. I'Ill give you an example. 

Here in Sacramento a wh:tleback. there were articles in Del 

Paso He~ghts and at that ti.~e I was attendi~g a class and~ 

ot course, people as.ked, "Did y'ou hear about the Del Paso 

He:tghts thing. It All that waS said was) "Where is Del Paso 

Heights.?1t So in ter.IJ)s of thi.s organizati,on, these people 

. generall~' operate 1,n areas where there's a crim:j..nal element in 

the commUI1:l..t¥'. Xes.; those pe,ople. wh.o live around these areas 

~ould have. a cons cious..nes$. o:f! SQlIle.thi~g be~g cohes.1-,ve there 

or they ;n:t.ght have know.le?ge '\J! the NF. Other a!'eas ,«,ould 

not. 
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SE11A'rOR HA'R1r1gR~ You've testified that :$.tl$ an 

(.!Gta.bliftbed organization; that its .structure is nm>f sophisti-

d h ",'k,!'<t it can f)robably be ~f'lr-perretu.1t .tnf.. cate . enoug , vi...... t 

Do you pHrcei ye it as a pass 1 nr ph(·mom('IHl ('11' ~;QlIlC-

thing lii<.e 1;; ttl 'tit! wi ill m» for a whi le? 

MR. DIAZ: 1 think it's going to be around a while. 

I think j.t 10 [it the point right no\-l that exposure trainif:f'; 

(If otnff in cuutody 01 tuations. county jailS, Department of 

Gorroct1ono
J 

law anforcement can help break dOVln their disci-

p 111H1 or th(d.l' ol'gani zation. 

CHAIRMAn CARPENTER: Would ¥ou say that that's also 

trw· 0.J: the. Mex.ican Mafia? 

MR. DIAZ: I'd say about the same. 

• • 

• • 

• • 

• •• 

• • 

SENATOR HARMER: Have there been an¥ liaison hetween •• 

theoe two groupa and others ~ho are not as overtly radical 

ml1:1tB,nts1 You've already testified and other witnesse.s have 

that th~ ME:!xican Mafia and the Aryan Brotherhood have had a 

languo I gather against tbe Nuestra Familia. But I'm askj:ng 

now t De) you have an~ information that would sho'd that there 

hClq baen involvement Qf the Conununiat conspiracy in tr~j.ng to 

0):" has there h~en involvement mnkt1 contac.t with theue gx'oups 

t i th the 'C!c rr.rQups or others whQ mfl,Y have h!i the C\ls.ta Nos ;ra w.' ~. Q 

un interest in conspiratorial aetivity in our society? 

MR.. DIA2; Wall
1 

I don't want to la,hel my' ans\'{er ",5 

COIMlW1.1at or nn~ l.Hlt"ticular factl¢n~ but tha're have been 

i ndl vt,duals :$.:0 contact '<t1th~hia group 'J'fno advocate y19lence 

nnd that type ot at'tivJ.t~ and that's crimi.!1~l ~ctiyitYJ also. 
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'l'he Vence;r;'el1}Qs has made contact w:4..th people ;frQm 

the Nue6.,.t;ra Famili a. or course) the NUBS t;ps, Familia. \)n~ --

from information that we have a standine;> ~\ somewlHlt~ 

inflexihle coali tion wi.th the Black fa<'ti<;m that is f$enerally 

i denti.n.ed aa the BGF.') the: Blqck Guer1.lla, -Fami ly. 

Of course) they have tt.eir counterpart$. 

$,ENATOR HARMER: Is there any type of proeram to 

propagandize the .membership of the NF or the Mexi can Mafia 

with literature which is designed to induce them to engage in 

consp.i.ratorial espionage or sabotage, attacks on law enforcement 

officials, public officials, business loaders, this type of 

thing? 

'MR. DI.AZ; One unique phenomena about the NF is that 

they I re into a hea~· cri.minal -- if you want to use the word 

bag. They are criminall¥ oriented. Some of the individuals 

that have heen known to be more inclined toward revolutionary 

types of activity, and that aspect of it have lost favor within 

the upper echelona of the Nuestra Familia. 

them had contracts ~ssued on them. 

SENATOR HARMER: Bec.ause their onl¥ interest was 

revolution activities? 

MR. DIAZ: Because the Third World trip wasn I t 

conais tent wi tb the :,tndi yiduals. r;J..,ght now: at least that are . 

in comrnand of the Nuestra Familia. I keep checktne m:yself on 

names ~ This. indiyi.dual ia turning his. o~gani.za:.ti.Qn mOre . 
toward being a more self-reliant, and an isolation policYI 

if you want to call it, for lack of a be~ter word . 
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SltNA'rOR HARI~r::R: So t.he1r only activity that you 

cal') identify at the moment is one of overt criminal activity 

with no interest, per se, in the Third World Movement? 

MR. DIAZ: With certainty, yes, at this point. 

'l\here I s potential there and there apparently has been some 

attempt to get the Huest..ra Familia, the (\!exican tv1afia to quit 

hassling each othel:' and to instead turn and deal with the 

oppreaeion of the system, so to speak, whether it be the 

Department of Corrections or on the outside, on the power 

structure. 

SENATOR HARMER: We had testimony earlier at a prior 

hearing of contact being made by the National Lawyer's Guild 

with members of the NF and the Mexican Mafia. Have you had any 

experience in this rega.:rd of either monitoring or checking; out 

the involvement of the National Lawyer's Guild or any other 

group of lawyers, for that mat~er, in making contact with these 

organizations or attempting to assist them in any way? 

MR. DIAZ: In all fairness to your question, that 

isn't a question that I can answer at this point. My involve­

ment in working with this group has been based on trying to 

identify its structure, trying to identify its membership and 

its Size, their location, activities and what have you. The 

whole aspect of thelr dealings with, s~y) the Lawyer's Guild 

or this other faction is 011\~ that I haven t t explored fully 

enough to answer' your questic.m for you. 

SENATOR HARr~ER: I see. Have you had any contact 

or direct associat~ion with the Vencerernos act.ivity? 
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MR. DIAZ: Has the Nuestra It'amilia7 

SENATOR HARJ'1El1: Have ~ou? 

l'1R. D+.AZ: No, I ha:ye not, 

~ENATOR HARMER: Your area of concern i~ primarily 

the Nuestra ~amilia? 

MR. DIAZ: At thi~ point, ~e$. 

SENATOR HARMER; Thank you" Mr. Chairman. 

SENATOR WEDWORTH: One question. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Senator 'Wedworth. 

SENATOR WEDWORTH; Would you say this is a 

sophisticated group compared to orGanized crime or the Mafia? 

MR. DIAZ: If you were to term it in terms of 

growth, right now it's --

SENATOR WE DWORTH : I mean in operation. 

Sophistication in operation. 

MR. DIAZ: I will answer your question, Senator. 

Itls in an embr¥onic staee. It has gained sophistication and 

has potential for becoming a problem in the community. 

SENATOR WEDWORTH: rm organi zat:j:on that ~ght cat ch 

on and hold? 

MR. DIAZ: Correct. The reason for that like it 

was mentioned earlie;r" is. that if an indivldual is in the 

communit:{ and be's asked to aBsis t tbis organt.zatiQn in any) 

say, Mexican barrio, what have you and I come ;t'pom r;;o!l).e myself 

and he said., "No" 1I and assuming he I s with a crin;inal element 

and he then goes into a county Jail si tuatton and is unfortunate 

enougb, to. go to an institution and they have good intelligence 
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If th"" i.nformation n:ets out that the o;uy in these groupS.,.. I) c...' 

was not cooperative, he's in the institution, now he's at 

their mercy. But if staff does not pick up on the s~tuation 

an lndiyidua1 can be in a lot of hot ~ater and this is where 

the influence -factor comes into the c()mmun:t t;y. 

SENATOR vIEDWORTI1.; +t \!lould seem to be stronger from 

a position of intimidation than sophistication? 

MR. DIAZ: Correct. 

SENATOR WEDWORTH: How about the educational level 

or these people that ¥ou observed here? 

grat;luate:;;? 

Are they college 

MR. DIAZ: I wouldn't venture to ~a~ that there are 

college graduates in the group. 

SENATOR WEDWORTH: Are there some? 

MR. DIAZ: I would imagine there are some b~cause 

some of the indi viduals tbat we have followed up on arparently 

have gone on to school with some other program. So there are 

some maybe on the outside right now.. But to answer your 

quo~tion: There are some very intelligent people in this group 

r~egardless of :tears spent in school, and very wise in the ways 

of institutional life which you don't get in a college educa­

tion. A college education for ?- Mexican indiVidual would not 

make him any safer in our institution if he w.asn't wise to the 
'; 

ways of existing in an institutional structure. 

SENATOR WEDWO~Tli: Thank you. 

SENATO!, AYALA: ·Mr. Diaz, under Article V, Section 

III: "No appli cant wi 11 be granted for membership if he Cthe 

-92-

• 

• • 

• • 

• •• 

• • 

• • 

• • 

• • 

•• e· 

.:. , 

, .' • 

applicant) misrepresents his, qualifications', . . It . 
What are the q ualificatlons for the organization? 

MiL DlAZ: Well" from what we understand an indiVid­

ual is sized up in terms of hif? alSgres.si veness, in terms of 

deeds that he's performed whethe;r it he criminal or noncrimina.l. 

One who would sustain a lot of q,uestioning and not r;ive up the 

group. + want to tie into anothe~ section. 

Arti.cle YI, Section VII:. A memher who would be 

able to comply with this at all times. 

U As. of now the standard answer for a Familia when he 

is ask.ed b:y any county) state, or federal authority if he is 

or if there is any organization know.n to exist in the pintas ... II 

Pinta is the slang word in Spanish for institution. 

". . . the answe r is no." 

So in talking about qualifications they definitely 

want people who are not, ~,oi~g to claim any association with 

the organization. In their first step you would see tattoos 

of NF or La Fami.lia O;i." 50,me pretty obvious signs of some 

membe~ship and you don't see that any more. As a matter of 

fact, the standard for recruiti~~ now -- tbe term being used 

now ... - they have a lot of undercover people who are being 

recruited who are known to be memters only to the person who 

recruited them, that is, the Lieutenant in that area, to be 

us~d supnosedly to effect NF business. What~ver they ma;r want . , 

to accomplish at that ti~e. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER; Let's see~ 'In ,Article 'Y~ 

Section IV, "Membership of this organizat::t.on shall be 
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restricted only to those of Latin extraction." 

.Must a peT'son have t1. prtson reecH'd before they're 

eligible? 

MR. DIA~: As far as ~. knowledge, the iss ue of 

whether they had a prison record or not doesn't enter into it. 

The thing i.s that in their re.cruiti.ng what thi$ 0:rganization 

sees as a fert;Lle field for development i.t' s very unlikel~ 

•• 

• 

• 

they're goi.ng to go and pick a completel:y stray individual who • 

one da:y approached them about criminal actj_ vi ty or assault or 

yiolence. They're not ,going to get anywhere except to report 

down to :the police that this fellow came up and told us this. 

SENATOR AYALA: :j:t's not necessarily true that you 

have to have a police record? 

IVJR. DIAZ: No. 

SENATOR AYALA: My question was: What is the 

philosophy of the Nuestra Familia? 

• 

• 

What is the ohJective? What is the purpose of the • 

organization? 

MR. DIAZ: Okay. I read that earlier in the stated 

purpose. It seems rather ~nnocent when it's read, but when 

you go through the whole Constitution, you -- the primary 

purpose ... - this i.s Article Il, Secti,on I. 

"The primary purpose or goals of this organization 

will he for the betterment of its members and the hu+ldi~g up 

of the organ'! ~:.',ation on the .outsi,de into a stro~g and self..,... 

$llpporti!1g 'Familia." 

Section IT says: "AIJ. m~mbers 'J,~lll make solely for 
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that obj ecti ye and will PFt all pers,onal, goals and ~eeli~gs 

aside until said fulfillment1s accomplished,1I 

SENATOR AYA.LA; But the:y have no defin:ttipn of 

wha.t is, the betterment of their oWl)memhers 1 

MR\ DI~Z: When :you, go thro~Ghout this whole 

Consti tution) you find out tb.at yoU deal 'with area,s of 

discipline which m?-ght involye~ say, a ho:nP.cide; 1J1ight involve 

a crirrdnal activity. 

SENATOR AYALA: Thank. you. 

:MR. DIAZ: They" 1'e asking the' members for their 

undivided attention and their disciplinary 'l1Jeasures are pretty 

effective. 

SENATOR WEDWORTH: Mr. Chairman.) I' have one other 

question. 

Do th.ey have secret signs that you know: of or secret 

words to identify each other? 

MR. DIAZ: Well, there were examples that were passed 

out ~ Senator. I'f you don't have them, we'll get them ,for ~rou. 

SENATOR 1tJEDW.ORTH: r saw them. 

MR. DIAZ: The:y a.re some, yes. Tl1.ey have coded 

messages~ and so forth. 

S.ENATOR WEDWORTH:Well, I saw the codes and 'l1}ess!iges 

at the previous hearing~ but that requires transportation? and 

movement from one institution from another' ~ from in to out or 

out to in. Within the population of the +nstttution itself, 

if a new one came in and he didn t t bri!lg some c01JU]').unication 

with him, written code or somethi~g) then do they have a word 
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• • 
or handshake or somethinr.; to identIfy tlle individlw.1.f of Correctlons for nine yea!','3 and I'm presentl:f worki~g in 

MR. DIAZ: The indi vi.duals are known. 

SENATOR WEDWO.RTH: Oh, they know before they get 

there? 

MR. DIAZ: The¥ know.' before the¥. get there and if 

the ~ellowls deliyeri.~g a verbal message, if it's of enough 

importance l they're. goi,~g to get it in in :;lome fashion, in 

wri ting, be cause they're cogni ze each other. 

J.:'los,t of the,se individuals -- as a matter of' fact ~ 

about 85 per cent ~- all have a monitor, a block with a white 

fence or, ¥ou know, and they're known by that nickname. 

They're known a lot easier than by their real name. Most of 

these people know. each other by thei~ m6nitor only and at 

sight. So when you say' that Babo sent me everybody knows who 

Babo is. 

SENATOR WEDWORTH: There are several other names that 

• • 

• • 

• •• 

• • 

• • 

we heard~ too. • • 

MR. DIAZ: Correct. 
I 

SENATOR WEDWDRTH.: Thank: you. 

CHAI,RMAN CARPENTER; Thank :f0u, 'Mr. Diaz. 

Mr., Dan Vasquez. 

lVII'. Vasquez, ::i..t'·s, indicate.d here th,at ;you are also 

an employee of the Dep,artment, of Correct+Qns; is that correct? 

MR. Y AS.Q UE'Z: . "fe. t? • 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Can you tell us in what capacity 

and how long and so forth. 

MR. VASQUEZ: r'vebeen employed b.y. ·the Department 
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Soledad State Prison, correotional traini~g racilit~, as a 

classification and parole represent.ativl~. 

CHA:):RMAN CARPENTER: Classification and parole 

representati ve? 

JVJR. VASQUEZ: Yes. 

CHKrRMAN CARPENTER; W,ould you speak as loudly as 

:r ou can in the microphone so everyone can hea'r. 

Do .y,ou haye a prepared statement or comment to 

make? 

MR. VASQUE.Z: No, just notes that I had to refresh 

my memory bere foI' questioni~g. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: All right. With r'ei\':l'pnct:' t(,: 

the pri!JoY' gc:mrs we are exarEinine;, what is your' pal'ti Cl.llU1' 

b,i,ekf;l'OUlld 01' :.H't::J of emphasis? 

lV!E. VASQUEZ: I was one of tbe first invl;:'stifnt.ol's 

;issip:n~d hy the Department of Correc:t:ions to start jnvest 19at-

-1 ng the f'T'oupGin 1~71. 

SENATOR CARPENTER: Whi ch gTollpS have you i: iVB~> 1,i gate ~~ 

MR. VA~QUEZ: I'v~ investi~ated Nuestra Familia, 

tho:;' I\1exican IVla f..L a, the A.ryan Brotherhood, a Jtttle of the' 

-,. :,,(~k O\..t02I'i ~ ~.a J.'ulT,ilv, ~:tnc1 theilenceremos organizat:i01t and its '. ' 

~0n~ection wJth the prison gangs. 

CHAJFlMAN CARPENTER: All right. 'Do you ha.v~' anythi nr 

to add to Mr. Diaz ' con~ent3 with rerard GO the organ!~ation 

::;1. eLict ures t~THl WllFit havG you. He t alke c1 moat ly about NF. 



I, 
, 
f 

mR. VAS~UEZ: Yes. One of the, SenatorH, I bt! lieve, 

b t th d (jlff""T'('nt. \<incis of (~()(kt; ilrld the was aski~g a OU '2 co es or ~ 

codes of the monitors, as. M,r. Dl.a7. 1'0. ff' rrr'oli to " w:w nr nOlu'se, 

the nickname, which is something very el1arcwtl'l',~st j (' or 

i nl" ckn""me when you're a Mexican-,Americans., The:[, g ve you a 0. 

i hb' h d and ~,t stays "\'dth you. small child i~ the ne, g or 00 ~ 

;Ei'or example, the're is one of the' members of the 

Mexican ~afia known as Cham.p from Hazard. Hazard is a street. 

Hazard Avenue in E.ast Los 'Angeles. Throughout the whole 

prison s:[stem there's not another Champ from Hazard. 

onl:[ one. 

I just wanted to add that. 

There's 

The Mexican .Mafia o?=,ganization and t ts potenti.al 

first came :to our attention in 1971 wh.en I w.as participati-!1g 

in a feGerally funded project that was assign.ed to a uniyerstty. 

We had a parole uni.t attached to it and we were, gOi-!1g to be 

looki~g at new w.ays ~ innovative ways of supe,ryising alcoholic 

and dr~g recidivists and tr;r'ing to. get more mileage out of 

them in the communi t;r and h.opefully makip.g them ~gents of change 

through :;;ome college courses and o?=,ganizi!lg and setti!1g them 

up in jobs, i,n :;;elf-help groups in the communit;r. 

The Maria very, effectively infiltrated our pr~gram 

and almost took it oyer. 

CHAI'RMAN CARPENTE'R: The Mexican ,Mafia infiltrate,d 

your government .rehahilitation or cha!1ge pr~gra:m and nearly 

took t.t over? 

MR. VASQUEZ: That's correct. 
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CHAIRMAN ,CA11PENTEFt: For what ·rea:;;on7 

1'1:R! VAS~UEZ; Well, for a vqriet:[ of rea$ons. At 

that time the Mafia was experiIl).ent1.~g in political yentures 

and this program -. .... T. beli.e..ye" i,n anqlyzi~g tt, that the;r felt 

it was a ready .made pr~gram. +.t had money available.. It had 

contacts with cornmunit:y- me.mbers and community organi zations . 

rt had poli t'i.cal contacts to recei ve ;fundi~g from the National 

lnsti.tuteof Mental Healtb.. $o::r. thi,nk it ~J:as a very vital 

pr~gram that they saw:' as -ver:[' lucratiye. 

CRAl'RMAN CARPENTER: At what point does it det'ermine 

that this take.over was intended or involved7 

:MR. VASQUEZ: you mean when did 'We 'find out it was 

happeni~g? 

CHAIRMAN CAF\PENTER: Ye.:;:;'. 

MR. VASQ.lTEZ: I think it took us abo,ut four months 

after the beginning of the pr~gram to notice that there wa9 

something going on. When we first starte.d havi!lg contact with 

the Mafia members ~ we weren't aware that they w.ere an organized 

prison group. We looked at and inter-jpreted their militancy 

as sort of prevaili~g. The attitude in that period was the 

social ,moverI:lent type of attitude. So that's what we tho~ght 

they were kind of involved in. 

It soon became apparent that the~ were using that 

more or less .n front 11 to further their acti Vi tie:;;.) their self 

on to the communi ties" and a lot of y,our cO)11,II1.unities in 

particular. 

CHAI.RMA CA . ; N RPENTER Well, w.hen you refer to this 
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act.ivity and thi:;; takE~over and these LtlLl'llt.:ions, wnr'(' the~)l' 

things directed or fostered from within, from inside 

institutions? 

MR. VASQUEZ; . Xes .• they were. 

CHAI:R.MAN CARPENTER; Has the control of organi zations 

like the Mafia and N'F alwa~s heen within the institution? 

MR. VASQUEZ: Well" can ;you rephrase that? Ask me 

that quest+on ~gain. 

CHAJ:RMAN CARPENTER; Well, I:' m trying to get at where 

the headquarte.rs :L,s locate:d: I.nside or outside. Are these 

organizations' leaders that we've heard about mostly on the 

inside? Do they di,re ct these acti vi ties outside from wi thin 

the walls? 

MR. VASqUEZ: That does occur and there is also 

leaders in the communit~ areas. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER; Are those usually former 

prisoners who have oeen discharged? 

MR. VASQUEZ: Oh~ yes. Not discharged. Some are 

on parole, some discharged~ but their responsibility is that 

community, that barrio, ghetto area. Their responsibility is 

to organize the narcotics in the area, fencing operations .. , 
burglarizing, robbery· rings. I' ye seen much of this. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTE'R: We11. let's take an inmate w.ho 

has ~one out on pa'~ole. W Id t t~ ~ ,ou no association with ·other 

criminals be a yiolation of' his parole? 

MR. VASQUEZ; Yes~ it WOUld. It's. a technical 

violation of parole. 
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CHAIRMAN CARPENTE.R; Have the!'e been paroles re­

voked b~ virtue of this, t~pe of activit~? 

MR. VASQUEZj Most certatnl~) ~e9. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTE'R: What methods are used b.y these 

organi.zations to transfer th.eir acti vi tiel? from the inside out 

to the streets? 

11R~ VASQUEZ: OkEt;(. First of all, let ,me pre ;race 

i t b~ this statement: The culture wi thin the prison is a life-. 

style in itself. That is w.hat I: feel penol~~' is all about I 

is understanding that lifest~le. These men come from certain 

communities. For example l one man may come from the East 

Los Angeles area. He's goi!lg to be paroled. Naturally~ in 

most cases ~ he I s goi!lg to, go r~,gh.t b.ack to the East Los 

Ange les area. 

So he goes Ol,r!:; already prepared y.l.i thinstructions 

Who to contact to start hi,S activities J the organized 

acti vi ties wi,thin the cOJI};muni t:{ that will GUPI?ort the people 

still inside ~he institution. 

CHA)J1.MAN CARPENTER r All right. Do all these 

opganiz~tions seem to have a dedication to keepi!lg people in 

them for li;fe? 

!1R. VASQUEZ: That's t;rue. 

CHA~:;FU1AN CARPENTER~ There J s no ea::;;y ipgress and 

egress to the opganizati,on as, we under.stand qpgan:!:zations ~ but 

a pers on on th.e inside .Who gets inyol ved w::+th. one of the,l?e 

organi.zations by. choice or otheTwisewh.o w.ants to do his tlJl)e 

and go back to society and le:ad a different kind of life 
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ooesn't have' It (!IlWlC~l', do(~:; lH"? 

11.':: V(\r~ dlr'rtl'lllt., ~it'tlnt,(II'. '1'111':1\' 

/.r,roups do nxC't'1.:t .Int, of pl·(~tHIIH·e nil tll(! .1 I lJllat.c , and II. IU1:; 

been to the point where an inmate had to choose. EsperJAlly 

the Mexican-A.merican inmate would have to choose b.etween the 

Nuestra Fami.lia or the Mexican Mafia, +.t cal1)e to that kind of 

critical point. 

,CHAI'RMAN CARPENTER: And that cho'ice continues after 

he gets out? 

MR. VASQUEZ: Once he gets into these organi ~~ati ons, 

he's expected to function primarily for the .organization. 

His family and his parole success is secondary. The organiza-

tion is hi~ primary responsib11it~. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: All r~gh.t. But -when he gets 

out and goe.s back to his family in, suppose, East Los A~geles, 

perh.aps he gets a job. I guess in the time honored expression~, 

"He wants to go straight." Somebody from the o~ganization 

comes to him and sa~s, "You must participate." 

MR. VASQUEZ: Yes, that's happened. 

CHAI.RMAN CARPENTER: Participate in narcotics; 

armed robbery 

MR. VASQUEZ: Hiding a, f~giti ve or somethi~g like 

that. 

SENATOR CARPENTER: What .do ~'ou think hi,S options 

are at that point? 

1"IR. VASQUEZ: . Herd he,tte.r do as he's asked. 

CHAI'RMANCARPENTE:R: Do :y·ou think .they're. th.a,t 
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pervas:1, ve? 

MR. VASQUEZ: Yes. You asked Mr. Diaz a question 

whether the communities knew of the existence of these 

organizations. I would like to add somethin~ on that. They 

most definitely do know of the existence, most especially in 

the barrio communities, the urban plight areas like East Los 

Angeles and San Jose that has a high concen~ration of Mexican-

Americans. 

The:y are aware of the existence of th,ase groups. 

I've investigated instances where the Mexican Mafia has made 

threats against family members because their son was a member 

of the Nuestra Familia organization. I've actually gone into 

East Los Angeles communi'~ies and investigated these kinds of 

threats and they have proven to be valid. They were true. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: What about the Brown Berets that 

we hear of occasionally? Are they associated with any of 

these groups or are they outcroppings of the Familia? 

MR. VASQUEZ: No, as far as I can determine. Of 

course, this group, the Brown Berets, you don't hear too much 

of them any more. I think they're kind of fading out. In all 

of my investigations I have never seen any connection with the 

Brown Beret Party and these radical prison groups. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Are there many rehabilitation 

programs of the type you mentioned previously? 

At what university did this event occur? 

MR. VASQUEZ: This occurred at Cal Poly, Pomona. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: And this federally funded 

. -103-



rehabilitation pr~gram was established there? 

.MR. YASQUE,Z; Ye,s. Well~ I"d like, to add that the 

program is dojng well now that this element has been ve~oved. 

It was our first opportunity to watch it and stud:y it as it was 

actually tr~ing to organize i,t:;>elf and thi~ information wal? 

being dis$eminated to the D~rector of Correcti,ons who allowed 

us to continue to study the group almost on an unde.rcover 

a,ssignme,nt basis although we were participating, studying and 

reporti!lg i.t:? activities to the central office. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Do ~ou have any recommendation 

for the pre.yention of thi,s' acti vi ty? 

.MI1. VASQUEZ: Well, I don't know what we can do to 

preyent it. I think that these t¥pes of groups are going to 

be with us for man~, many· ~ears to come and 1. don't know what 

we can do to pre"'ent it. I think we can prepare ourse 1 ves to 

deal with it more effectively than we have in the past by 

training of our staff. For example, in my position as rl 

caretaker, so to speak, of the classificatiori system of my 

insti tuti.on, l. can make recommendations based on my knowledge 

of the groups to staff about placement or transferring, or 

if I know that a member of the, group is going to another 

institut~on, it's my responsibility to call that inst~tution 

and adyiE?e them that you have a certain individual from a 

certain group that haa been identified that is, gOi!lg to he 

receiyed hy your instItution. 

So, I think it's now up to the ,Depart'ment to deal 

with it and they are dealing with it in 'many forms and fa9hions. 
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The traini.n~ that I spoke of. I'va. gi yen I1).a¥be, a hundred hours 

of traini~g :in 'radical groups. r make a potnt to study them 

myself. I tr~ to unders,tand where they\re at philosophically, 

CHAJRMAlIi CARPENTE.R: Would ~ou giye us what knowledge 

¥ou haye with regard to the Venceremos o!'ganization and its 

relationship and invol ve,ment with. these other.o;r'ganizati,ons 

with which 'you are familiar? 

IvlR. VASQ.URZ: Well" the, Vencer'eI1).09 0;r'ganization had 

contact that I b10W of with members of the ~exican Mafia. 

One particular individual who was contacted was the "Godfather" 

of the Mafia. The man was incarcerated in the Los Angeles 

County' Jail and one inmate who was by the Venceremos organiza­

tion and his accomplice -- in particular his accomplice ~-

visi ted this gentleman in the Los Angeles County Jail and from 

this man received instructions on who to contact to tr¥ to 

sell some stolen Jewelry to ohtai.n )J}one~ to continue the:!-r 

flight. 

CHAI.RMAN CARPENTER: What do you mean When ~ou re;f'er 

to a res cue? Do you mean a break7 

MR. VASQUEZ: ¥,'e,s. :J:n OctQher . .or 1·9 72.,,;R.una~ay 

Beady was rescued by the.. VencereJ9.os o;r'gantzat:+.on and Officer 

Jess Sanchez w.as assassinated, 

CHAI'RMAN CARPENTE'F\: And that was a Vencerem.o:? 

operation? 

MR. YASQUE'Z : That 's cor1."'e,ct. 

CHAIFWAN CARPENTE'f1,; What's happen.e.d, follow.,...up to 

that? 
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MR. VASQUEZ: There have been two p~ople convicted 

or murder in the second de~rae and also rescue or lfnchi~g 

I think it's called. And I think there are two or four 

IJ:lore people that are .betng prosecuted in the. Los Angeles Count~ 

area tor charges that stem out ot that rescue. 

CHAJRMAN CARl?ENTER: How would you describ.e the 

Venceremos organization? 

MR. VASQUEZ: A very da!1gerous, radical orr;aniza­

tion that espouses the vip lent Dverthrow of the government as 

w.e know' it now.. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: To your knowl.edge is this 

organi.zation still in existence? 

MR, VASQUEZ: It's m~ understanding that thjs 

organization has broken into smaller cells, smaller units 

which make it harder for detection by law enforcement agencies 

and I think some easier operation basis for themselves. But as 

far as I can determi.ne 3 I think it's still in operation. 

It has different name.s. 

CHA+:RMAN CARPENTER: Wh.at type of activity do you 

• •• 

.'. 

• • 

• • 

suggest that they' are capable. of or that falls within the req,lm •• 

of their intentions? rou mentioned pri.son breaks as one. 

MR. VASQUEZ: Yes. Well, you know, if you're an 

organization that wishes. to recruit prisoners for 13 xamp Ie , 

it was explained to me b~ Mr. Beady th.at the yenceremos 

ore;anizatiorl thought it w.as ver':!· wise, a. good idea to have 

prisoners recruited that had overcome the fear of ratal 

violence> ror example, or prisoners or inmates that had 
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experience in conunit ti!lg armed robberi aG and bu!'glaries. 

This w.as. behaVior or experi.ence that this. gl""OUp could utilize ~ 

CHAl.Rl\:lAN CAR:j?EN1JER: This indi.yidual woo e.scaped 

that you .mentioned, Mr. Beady. W.as he a memherof Vencere.mos 

before he went in? 

MR. VASQUEZ; No" he w.asn't. 

CHA:):JtMAN CARPENTER; He was recruited on the inside? 

MR. VASQUEZ: YBS. I think. it was a progressive 

thing rather than an instantaneous recruiting. I think it 

went over a period of time where they analyzed him and he 

anal:yzed them and I guess they felt they could work together. 

I think Mr. Bead~, even in his own testimony> has indicated 

that he just used this group for an escape. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Do you know C?f a rescue 

attempt made in San Diego? 

MR. VASQUEZ: There was a planned rescue attempt, 

but it never came off. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Could :you tell us about that7 

MR. YASQUEZ: W.ell, that occurred, I: think, in 

Dece.mber of '72. It was during the investigation of there.scue 

and murder that occurred in San Bernardino Count~ at the Chino 

institution for men. We. went into the residence or a man on 

parole who we knew that associated with. Mr. Beady pr+Qr to hts 

escape and in the search of the residence we found a letter 

that had been written out .of the San Dt~eo County Jai.l ,\:{hicb 

had sO.me plans for a J atl break .from the Courthouse st"Illilar 

to what happened in Mari.n Count~'. H.ostages were gO+!l~ to be 
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taken. They would be taken to the airport and an airplane 

would be .demanded for fl~ght to Cuba. 

CHAI"RMAN .CARPENTER: Ip the course of the invest~ga-

tion wa:;;. it .determined to have .been a yencere~os operation? 

MR, VAS~UEZ: No, it was not. It appeared more 

likely to be a Black Liberation Army operation because there 

was some mention of the Vanguard Suicide Squad which is 

associated w..ith ~ome elements of the BGP and also with the 

Black Libe'ration Army. 

CHA:t:RMAN CARPENTER: Se,nator Wedworth., do you have 

some questions? 

SENATOR WEDWORTH.: No. 

CHAI~M.AN CARPENTER: Senator Ayala? 

SENATOR AYALA: Yes. 

You mentioned theCal Poly grant for some pror;ram 

that you had. What was the name of the pr~gram? 

MR. VASQUEZ: Project Span. 

SENATOR AYALA: Project -- ? 

.MR. VASQUEZ: Project Span, S-p-a-n. It was a 

ape ci.al prog;ram. for alcoholism and narcot:L.cs. 

SENATOR A¥A.LA: This is to rellabili,tate these people 

or prevention thereof? 

MR. VASQUEZ: Prevention ther.eof and new approaches 

in trying to deal with alcoholic and drug recidivists. . . . 
SENATO~ AYA,LA: Was this a n~ghtclass ;ror adults, 

day students, what kind of cla$s? 

MR. 'VASQUEZ: I:t was a 2 4-hour pr~gram whe're the~ 
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li ved on the campus. 

SENATOR AYALA : On the' campus. I. see. 

MR. YASQUE.Z; And participated in courses there at 

the uni.versi ty and also worked wl.th. communi ty .... based organi za .. 

tions. 

SENATOR AYALA: Js that sti.ll eXi13t:t,:rg today? 

MR. YASQUE'Z: Ye,s, ~,t 1.s. 

SENATOR AYALA: l;'Jy other quest:ton 1'$; What is the 

makeup of the Venceremos o!'ganization from the ethnic po:t,nt of 

V:tew? :t::s it· s tri ctly ~lacks or Chi canos 'or is ita mixture -_ 

MR. YASQUE.Z: :rt' s a mi.xture. It '$ a Third World 

mixture,. 

SENATOR AYALA: Is it like the Familia? 

I'1H. VASQ,UEZ; No, it's multi.-ethnic. 

CHA:tRMAN CARPJ:iliTER; Senator Wedworth\ 

SENATOR WE DWORTH.: Are ;you aware 'of acti vi ties such 

as you have described at one campus of that t;ype of act+v+t~ 

on other campuses in thl,s state? 

MR. VASQUEZ: Yes. 

SENATOR WEDW'ORTH: Can you name some. of the.m? 

MR. VASqUEZ: UCLA. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: W.hat' s the name of theprogra.m? 

1'1R. VASQUE'Z: We.ll, UCLA, th.ere ·w.a$ a. gentleman that 

was t q'ing to organi ze $ort of a ,fratern:L..t~ hou$,e only + t w.as 

a ~"ocial movement, Chicqno $oci,al 'moye;men'ttype of a:;;sociatton 

with students. r:n fact" he was. going to name_ .f.t the 'La ';l1'q.l11ilia 

Cultural' Center or s'omething likethi,s -' but ·trr:t:s didn't p;rogre$s. . . 
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We were able to hring it to the attentipn of the staff. 

&ENATOR WEDWORTH: That was not a federally funded 

program or any type of funded program? 

MR. VASQ,UEZ: I b.elieve some of those orr-;anizations 

do re.cei ve sOTlJe federal -money to organize their cultural 

centers. 

S&'1ATOR WEDWo.,RTH: Any other campuses you are aware 

of? 

.MR. VASQUEZ: At thi.s point I can I t recall other than 

Cal POl~ and UCLA. 

SENATOR WEDWORTH: Cal Poly and UCLA. 

MR. VASQUEZ: Well~ there was two. The Mafia 

attempted to take over a program that was started in, 1 think 

it was UCLA also" and it was a Pi,nto pr~gram or prisoner's 

program. Pinto is a ver':! popular sl8.!lg word for prisoners. 

It \<las to take the paroled convict into the. university setting 

and utilize the resources available from the university for 

housing and loans 1"or books and so forth and so on and go into 

a formal education pr~gram. There was attempt by· the Mafia 

organizatton to infiltrate that pr~gram. In fact> one memher 

was actually accep.ted into it but he failed it. 

SENATOR WEDWo.RTH.: Ho\:{ did he fail? You mean the 

examination? 

MR. VASQUEZ: No he .started the' .course.s bu.t then ., 
he didn I t folIo\'( thro!-lgh \'(i.th them. He was req.uested b;y 

memb.ers of' th.e .. Mafia to e.!lg~ge n cer aJ.n i t · actiyi.ties and now he 

is wanted for two counts of murder. He ~ ~ afugi tive ~ . 
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$EN.ATOR WEDWORTH.: Ju:;;t two eollege camp use:;:; is all 
you·re aw.are of? 

MR. YASQUE.Z: ¥e,:;:;,' 

SEN.ATOR CARPENTER: Mr. Vasquez, the.' material you~vp 
submitted on the Black Guerilla Family and thelr ideology 

and their rules, where does this information come from? 

MR. VASQUEZ: That information was picked up, taken 

from a pris,oner while he was beir1g searched to be placed in 

administrative segregation. They go through their property 

very thoroughly and that document was in his property. 

CHAIRMAN CARPEN~ER: Is this information readily 
available on the inSide? 

MR. VP.SQUEZ: Is this information avai2abL, tl) who? 

t~I,idii'r'1t,\N CARPENTER: Wl"'ll, a ,'O!,\', ('f' tl"t: d'\'l,l.l.nt., 

:Tii:1njfF.-f:lo, !'1i!C'3 ;,{lJd j'e/?,u]:lt.ions . 

~.mot.her do('ument 3.1:' wei). Somethin~~ tlwt. wa3: wr111('[' . 

Yes) it is. , 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: , 
It gets there as we have bad 

l:es 1::i mOllY ,));'ev ious 1" . 
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MR. YASQUEZ: To be found in the possessi on of that 

t¥pe, of a document w.ould throw some s.hadow or some doubt on 

him as to possibly being a member or associate of this organ­

ization. It I S not a document th.e~ like. to share with :;;taff. 

CHAI'R,MAN CARPENTER: $enat or? 

SENATOR A'tALA: Just a quick quest:j:.on. Going back 

to the Cal Pol~ program, what o!,ganizati.on attempted to take 

it over? 

.MR. VASQUE.Z: The Mexican Mafia attempted to take 

it over. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Mr. Vasquez, thank you very 

much. 

MR. VASQUEZ: You're welcome. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER; Call Mr. Joe :Moody. 

Mr. Moody, state for us your place of emploY.ment 

and responsibilities. 

MR. MOODY: Yes, sir. I'm a special ~gent with the 

U. S. Department of Justice, dr~g enforcement administration. 

CHAlRMAN CARPENTER: Dr~g enforcement administration? 

MR . .MOODY:: 'tes, sir. 

CBAlRMAN CARPEN'I'ER; I belie.ve you have a statement 

w.hich. you w.ill read. 

.MR. MOOD~: Ye.$.t I. wt,ll re.ad a statement or report 

that has heen prepared hY' myself and other people that have 

testified be.re of informatipn. ·gather.ed over the past couple of 

ye.ars r~garding mainl;y t.he ,Mexican ~af'ia, but also the othe,r 

groups. 
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CHAIR,MAN CARPENTER;: All r~e;h.t. Wt.ll you proce,ed 

with that? 

J'1R. MOODY: My te,s timony is go+.pS to be dire cted . . 
mainl;y towards the. 'Me.xt,can :!1afla, the. Nuel?tra :B'amilia and 

the Aryan Brotherhood wh.o ex:j:s.t both. ins4de and outstde the 

prison s:yste.m. Altho~gh. I: w..i.ll not direct ~*. atte.ntion towards 

th.e Vencere.mos and other related Third \!orld .Re.yolutionarie.s> 

I. he li.e.ye. that from te.stimony, gi.yen b:r .other.s, that their role 

i.n prison violence and o!'ganized crime is not wtthout due 

recognition. The interact:t.on b.etween these groups bas contrib­

uted to the. overall growth~ and strength of the prison gangs 

by provi.ding them with. a sophist:t:cated sys·tem of communication; 

legal support, and in some cases provided suhsi.stence to. ga~g 

memhers released to parole. 

There are a number of criminally oriented. groups . , 

operating both. wi.thin and outsi,de. of th.e California prison 

system. Three 'maJ or. groups stand out be.cause of their power 

and influence on the "s.treets" and in the yari.ous institutions. 

These tightly knit, formal o!,gantzattons are made up of 

prison inmate.s and parolees and the.y are know.n to be actively 

involved in narcotic traffickipg, extorti.on, contract killings 

and robheries. 

The first such, group is the Aryan Brotherhood . This 

is a group made' up of w::hi,te.. supre.mist :\:ndi yiduals, many of 

w.hom wereacti ve in various. outlaw. motorcycle, ga~g,;s. The 

Aryan Brotherh.ood and MeXican 'l'1afia have for.l1led an all:!-ance 

based on narcotic control and the hatred for blacks. It is 
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further kno'<m that the Aryan I3t'oLlw1'l1ood a(!<!~\pf.ir'f "lIl \,11 

contracts from t,hc M(~x~can Mafta J n or<irY' to draw unwtlllt,(~d 

attent1,on awa'1/ from the MexIcan Maf1a'n ncLivitieR. 

The second pO\'I,erful group is the Nuestra Fami U a, 

or the New Famil'1/, or Our Famil¥. The stated goal of this 

group is to build up an organization outside of prison into 

a self-supporti~g family~ whose primary concern is the 

control of narcotics. For thi,s reason the,y are constantl~ 

at war with the Mexican Mafia. 

The third and most powerful of these prison oriented 

groups is the Mexican Mafia. The interrelationship' between 

these groups has created a power base in the prison s~stem that 

has penetrated free society. 

In the latter part of 1958, 'members of the various 

bar'rio gangs from the, greater Los Angele.s are'a~ while in the 

California Yo.uth Faci11.ty, Tracy, California, formed a gang. 

This gang was not much different from the neighborhood gangs 

in the Los Angeles are, with the exception that it consisted 

of persons that \:J,ere :!-n the. pri$.on s~'s.teIl}. Th+.s neli pri~on 

gang had a new meaning,; it had a name; a nan:Ie .other. than ~ 

barrio or neighborhpod na,me '. The "Me,xican .Mafia~ tI La EME~' 

tl)e Big It W' was something altogether new, in Californ:!:'a. There 

is alwa¥s s~all groups in every· prison. The.9.e groups a-re 

usually referred to as a "Tip" ~ a IICliclc"H or a: "'Pamily,.," but 

never had an~ re,almeani~g other than clo~e' :rr~endship or a 

mutual business arrange.Il)ent . What . gaye thi~< ,new garg $.uch a 
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Usually a Mexican-American gang in prison :ts the 

reunion of individuals from the same barrio or the sam(;" 

neighborhood; purely a prison thing. U til th 
P un e formation 

of the Mexican Mafia, prison gangs in California neVer had a 

name other than the barrio name from the "streets" of the 

city, and this was usually a territorial name: ~or 1 
J J. examp e, 

the "Spiders from White fence, II the ll :First Street Flips from 

'Flats, II the "Buzzards f'rom Santa Monica," et cetera. At the 

inception of the Mexican Mafia, it seemed only a self-protec­

tion union issued only to protect possessions of its members. 

However, soon afterwards it was used to inflict its will on 

other inmates, in order to control the various "hustles" 

in the prisons, such as, canteen, cigarettes, gambling and 

sex, the things that are considered valuable to the prison 

inma.te. This organization grew in number and spread throughout 

the California prison system, and until 1966, was confined 

solely to the prisons, so that as a member was paroled or 

discharged to free society, he. was no longer committed to the 

organizati.on and would ultimately return to his community 

and reaffirm his allegiance to the neighborhood gangs from 

which he originated. 

During the earl~ days of' this organization, members 

were chosen for their leadership in the barrios, their 

instinct in the prison and rebellious attitudes~ also for 

what they had done in the way psychopathic moves to prove 

their convictiom and how well they executed th.e;Lr moves . The 
t ti ff' t th t it i 11k th th candidates would also be well screened before their nomination. pene rang·e eo \It,as a was n no ws.y, . e. e 0 "erR',' 

-114- -115~ 

• • 



Aftf):r' a oubJ!~ct Vla~; nominatGu I'QT' JIIembE'1"uld.p, all at-Ill"l' 

mf'mbet's of tlw Mafln throUI~h()Ut the prj. nann w(lul d hnvl' 1.0 

Onl\9 wi t-h the [l,1)1)Y'ova I of all llK'lI1bt't':; vote on hiu 'l{!('cptnn(!0." r r 

would he become part of this group. Before and af\ain after his 

acceptance, the proopactive member would have to swear an oath 

to the organization~ and cut any bonds or close ties with 

HHomeboys", ;friends from their barrio, something very 

difficult for most ghetto Mexicans. However, once this was 

done, the feeling of "brotherhood lt was much closer. 

In the early 60's the gang known as La Erne, or 

Mexican Mafia, had grown beyond the bounds of an ordinary 

gang. Its discipline had allowed its adherents to spread power 

throughout the entire California prison system. 

loa's its viciousness and long-term effect became 

In the mid-

institutionalized in th€~ San Quentin facility. This si tuation 

was brought about through the Mexican Mafia t s contact wi th 

the long term hard-core inmates in the lower yard of this 

insti tution. It was here that heroin for the first time became 

in ~OtlrCe of income and reason for combat. n mn . 'I Heroin in the 

• • 

• • 

• • 

• •• 

• • 

• • 

• • 

pvloon is used to ease the pain of being restricted or confined, • • 

th hands of the Mexican Mafia in the San and heroin in e 

Quentin yar was a ~ d f muc·h value 1'0"'" the Mafia's development. 

The Mafia knew that if heroin was controlled then the non­

('tmuni ttod prisoner could be used against Mexican Mafia IS 

tHH1mies. trhis was a lesson taught by the long-term prison 

1.maate, and it was he that would become the backbone of the 

discipline j and ol'ganization of this groL;p. It was the long-
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termer who enforced and continued to reinforce the fear 

factor so necessary for control of any prison. Unknown to 

most of the "soldiers" of the Mexican Mafia at the time, 

was that their use of fear as a tactic inside the prison became 

the first step toward organized criminal activity as it now 

exists outside of prison. 

One of the reasons the Mexican Mafia grew so 

powerful in the prisons was that a member was not expected to 

get along or to take a liking to all its "brothers, t,f but was 

expected to be on time when needed. A member must at all 

times understand that he is committed to death with all who 

belong to the "Brotherhood." A member of th:ts "Brotherhood" 

does not, under any circumstances, threaten the life of 

another. To threaten another memher's life would show 

emotional instability and a cause to suspect weakness and 
I 

fatal ignorance. There is always a constant evaluation of 

each member's intent:lons and mot1.ves. The Mexican Mafia 

regards an attack with a weapon on another "brot reI''' for solely 

personal reasons as a capital offense. It was not this way 

with the other "Tips" or gangs inside prison, "'hich made the 

Mafi a uniq ue . 

Usually in prison there ts a mutual respect for 

every prisoner to do his. "time" the way he sees fit. There 

are some things that a prisoner is instinctively expected not 

to do in "the vlay of making it uncomfortable for his tellow 

prisoner, i.e.~ respect towards private property. -However, 

these naturally established rUles that existed in San Quentin 
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d d b the Mexican Mafia, 
at this time were totally disregar e y 

J t d Y a'~ they pE'rtn:i npd t.o 
and are still more disree;ar'deli 

() 11 .., 

prisoners outs ide of the "Br'ot.llln>hood." 
• ~ Quentin W~l~ 

In 1964, most l011nshnrks ~n 0un 

Loans ~arks deal in cigarettes as they are not 
independent. i 

considered contraband, unless a prisoner has more than three 

cartons in his possession. They also deal in narcotics, 

material value, although they conduct 
money, and anything of 

their business usually with cigarettes. 
A prisoner borroWS 

to P
ay back three cartons in two weeks. 

two cartons and agrees 

This is called two ror three. 
If he fails to pay on time, the 

Since the prisons are full of gamblers 
debt is doubled. 

businesses are a good manipulative 
and heroin addicts, these 

tool and investment. 
Most of the heavy gamblers in San Quentin would 

borroW up to for
ty or fifty cartons of cigarettes at once, 

A good 
equivalent to two hundred dollars. 

which is the 
acquainted with a IIstrongarmll with a 

loanshark will get well 
t to enforce collection 

lot of influence and make him a par ner 
ita debt that 

of debts. The object is to trap a prisoner n 0 

that it becomes impossible to catch-up. 
will multiply, so 

-turns into such a squeeze that finally an 
The press ure 

rnade 
between the loanshark and the prisoner 

arrangement is 
The prisoner pays so much 

in debt, to pay on installments. 
term, or does favors for 

a week for the rest of hiS prison 
i d This usually 

the loanshark whenever he wants .someth ng one. 

loanshark. since almost all prisoners 
will worl<. well for the . 
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want to keep their name clerul amonR the prison population. 

For the prisoner, there is no place to ~o ruld only two 

alternatives, maybe three. Do the will of the 10anshark 

and make payments or do him favors; go to the autho~ities 

and ask for protection, or pick up a knife and put the loan­

shark out of business. 

As soon as the Mexican Mafia controls the yard and 

the loansharks of a prison facility, they begin to· use these 

indebted presoners to do a lot of the messy work that could 

not be done by the Mafia, becaus~ of exposure. The Mafia 

often had these prisoners, who were in debt, fill contracts 

to murder someone to payoff the debt. Whenever the Mexican 

Mafia was to execute another prisoner, to enforce their will 

on the yard, they would choose an indebted prisoner who was 

trying to payoff his debt. He would be looked over and 

chosen according to how "prison-wise" he was and how well he 
l 

could lure the prisoner who was to be assassinated into a good 

spot, so that the guards CQuld not see the execution. Heroin 

is the most effective way to lure an unsuspecting victim. 

In all the time that the Me:dcan Mafia has been in 

existence, there had never been more than fifteen members in 

the main population of anyone particular prison in California, 

mostly because of their aggressive attitude . Progressively 

throughout the years, the member that remained on the "main 

line ll grew smaller, while the number grew ,in the lockup areas, 

solitary, segregation and adjustment centers. Because the 

Mafia controlled the lock up are~s, most prisoners were not 
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almost completely reluctant to oppose anlfthing that the few 

members in the main population chose to do, for fear of being 

sent to lockup areas. 

The men who make up the bul~ of the Mexican Mafia 

spend long periods Of time confined in the lockup areas inside 

their cells. They find themselves in a suitable position to 

recru1~ and indoctrinate potential members from other 

•• 

•• 

•• 

prisoners who were also confined in segregation for some of the •• 
! 

reasons that the Mafia members were "locked down. It Further 

because of the long period of lockup, these Mafia members spent 

most of their time planning new strategies to inflict terror 

on the rest of the prison popula.tion. As a result, the Mexican . 
Matia used isolation and lockups for recruitment of the hard-

core, aggressive, assaulti.ve oriented inmates, those who would 

operate trom a base of force and terrorism to control the 

criminal activl ti.es wi.thin the pl'>ison. 

During the latter part of 1971, the Mexican Mafia 

began to purge and thereby s,trengthen its membership. The 

purging of ranks took form in assassination of its weaker 

members. The weaknesses that the Mafia could not tolerate 

were doubt and hesitation. Any hesitation, sign of weakness 

o~ fear, would h,ave to be ansl-(ered for and could very easily 

result in a member's own death, for not keeping with the 

dj,s cipline . There was no question as to the fate ot: the 

informer, even if his so-called weakness took place many years 

prior to becoming a member. Also the constant feverish pitch 

of fear had to be maintained, so that a Mafia member that did 
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not impose the will of the Mafia on other prison inmates 

became himself a target of hi.s own organization . 

Because of the violent effects of ' the Mexican Mafia 

in the prisons, other groups th~t were patterned after the 

Mafla began to emerge. One such group was the Nuestra 

Familia, or new family. Thi.s 1tTiprt or gang, is mainly made 

up of Mexican-Americans from the rural areas of California, 

as opposed to the Mafia" which is madE:' up of individuals from 

the urban areas. Unlike the Mexican Mafia, the Nuestra 

Familia was not selective in its recruitment of members, 

and only recruited for quantity in an attempt to loosen the 

control the Mafia had on the "rackets" in prison. "War" 

between the se II eli cks" broke out on September 18, 1968, in 

San Quentin, and for the following years continued leaving 

numerous prisoners dead and many others seriously stabbed. The 

result of this conflict was an increase in the prestige of 

the Mexican Mafia, and polarization of both the La Familia 

and the Mafia. 

As warfare continued between these groups, other 

"clicks" began to take up sides with one or the other of the 

Mexican groups. The Aryan Brotherhood aligned itself with the 

Mafia and some of the Blacks in prison moved on the side of 

the La Familia. The Mexican Mafia and Aryan Brotherhood had 

agreed to make "hitstl for each ather, based 'an the availabil­

ity of the group to reach the intended victim. The Aryan 
I 

Brotherhood is made up of approximately 80 to a hundred members, 

and we're talking about hard-care members .. However, again, 

-121 ... 



like the Mafla, the!.!' membern I1t'P, made up of flome oj' 1.11(' mnnt 

violent prisoners in the \'al1foT'n.i:l pJ:ciOn system, willr.tl ma.kes 

them equally effective in spreading terror among the prison 

population. 

Information received from now incarcerated prisoners, 

who were former members of the Mafia, report that Rudolfo 

Oadena was until his death, the Mafia's most respected . , 
member. These informants stated that Oadena's long range 

plan for the organiza.tion was to first gain the confidence 

and support of the Mexican community of East Los Angeles by 

assisting in the "Ohicano" movements. After support of these 

groups w~s achieved, then the Mafia would move into the 

"f' t" cr~minal activity, using the total community as a. _ron. 

On December 17, 1972, the Mexican Mafia temporarily 

postponed the idea of infiltrating the community movement. 

And I emphasize the word "postponed." This was the day that 

the Nuestra Farnj lia executed Rudolfo Oadena, the original 

promoter of thi.s idea. Oadena recei ved 50 stab wounds in his 

chest and back and died. 

OHAIRMAN OARPENTER: Where did that occur? 

MR. MOODY: That occurred in Chino. 

After the killing of Cadena, a few Mafia members 

who were considered leaders in their respective institutions, 

we~e ordered to kill any Famili~ member that they could get 

their hands on. Man'" refused to kill Nuestra ;F'amilia members v 

for various reasons. Some had parole dates~ others admitted 

later they were tired of all the killings. However~ be~ause 
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of their refusal to follow the will of the Brotherhood, 

1 Contracts t' on their lives were lo:9ued by other Mafia members. 

Because of the firm grip the Mafia had on prisoners, the only 

escape was to have correctional authorities lock him up in 

protective custody, 

In the latter part of 1971, the first steps were 

taken by the Mexican Mafia to appoint a leader to organize 

and coordinate criminal enterprises in free society. The 

Mafia had come to the realization that if the fear of the 

prison inmate is controlled, it must be necessarily so that 

the criminal operating in free society, who is in constant 

fear of returning to the prison system, must also be aware of 

this power. The next step for the Mexican Mafia was to place 

members in free society and "reap the harvest it had sown fl 

in prison. The choice of a leader of the Mafia on the outsiae 

marked the first time that Mafia organizational ability had 

become completely amalgamated with disciplfne and goals toward 

the syndication of narcotic trafficking in California. This 

was now truly organized crime in its embryonic stages. 

During the next several months, a law enforcement 

task force, actively investigating the Mexican Mafia was able 

to identify the members, leaders and goals of this r;roup. , 
Because the main objective of the Mexican Mafia was the control 

of heroin trafficking, Drug Enforcement Administration be(~ame 

actively involved in the investigation. 

Prior to a concerted effort by the California 

Department of Corrections and local law enforcement agencies, 
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an incarcerated member of the Mafia who wanted to leave the of the California S~stem or as previous suppliers of 

Mafia, had no alternative other than to fight the organization 

and eventually be killed or go to the prison authorities and 

be locked in protective custody for the rest of his term. 

This was an awkward position for any prisoner and especially 

an inmate of· the caliber of a Mafia member. 

Officials are of the opinion that the Mexican Mafia 

is at the present time thlf strongest prison gang in the 

California Prison System. The investigation of this group 

reveals that it has made several unsuccessful attempts to 

take over control of narcotic trafficking, murder for hire 

and several federally funded self-help projects in California 

communities. The main reason for the Mafia's failure in 

their attempts to control major criminal activities has been 

the organized and concerted effort of the California 

Department of Corrections &~d local law enforcement agencies 

through arrests of Mafia members and a continued monitoring 

of their activities, both inside and outside of prison. 

In view of the following factors, the Mexican 

Mafia's potential for refining and expanding in the communities 

of California is a constant and grave threat. 

The base power firmly established over the past 15 

years in the California pr'ison system and its growth through 

the use of terror and forced tactics has left over 80 

deceased victims. 

The direct ties with narcotic traffickers in Mexico, 

who come in contact with the Mexican Mafia as former prisoners 
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individual members. 

The ever present base of operations for criminal . '.' 

acti vi ties in the nei,e;hborh,ood~ th.ro~ghoat Cal;tfornia. 

The established reputation' and continued willingness 

to utilize terror and violence to achieve the. goals of the 

Mexican Mafia. 

The efforts, generated toward the tmmobilization 

of the, Mexican Mafia and oth.er related pri,son gangs has 

revealed that an enormous amount of resources exist in the 

California Department of Corrections, concerning narcotic 

trafficking. Moat major narcotic dealers in California have at 

one time or another been incarcerated :f..n the California 

Department of Corrections and were subse~uently released to 

parole supervision. Tbi~ demonstrates a cont:f..nuing need for 

drug enforcement administration to fUrther de,yelop and maintain 

a close w(~ki~g relationship with the resources available 

thro~gh this agency. 

CHAI:RMAN CARJ,'ENTER: Mr. Moody, the problem:;; we''''ve 

been dealing with -- and of course, our main concern is in 

relation to Californi,a -- are, the,se organizations active or ~r.e 

comparable o:r'ganizations acti vein the. federal pr~scm system 

to your knowledge? 

MR. MOODY: I haven't really studied that a~pect 

of it. However, I hayeheard,froIl} informed sources that they 

have spread' to the' federal facilities" 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: When wet~lk ahout more than 80 

.. 
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deathe and murders and more than 300 stabbings, are these, 

all the result of violent gang activity or the overwhelming 

majority of them, or is it possible to say? 
~. .. "" 
M~. MOODY: I ~ould say the overwhelming majority. 

•• 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: You refer to the lockup si tuation •• ' 

in a way that intrigued me or the 2..ock down as they call it 

now as a device wbich tbe Department has utilized that has had , 

some impact in some areas; but in a sense you almost made it 

sound like maybe it doesn It W.ork that well because the Mafia 

controls the lock up area by having the majority of the people 

there. This in and of itself becomes an enforcement tool for 

them~ I think you indicated? 

MR. MOODY: It could. However, when we're talking' 

about the lock down situation at the time the ~afia was 

re crui tin~.> we Ire talki,!lg ahout a ti.me when the Calif'c;>rnia 

Department of Corre ctions wasn't quite as soph;Ls ti cated as 

they are today in identifying members of this organization. 

IJlhe Departinent of Corrections I know has spent an awful lot of 

time in the past t\'{o years trying to identify these peoplec so 

that they can se,parate them in the institution. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: \'1ell J I' In .1)llpres~ed that that's 

true ~ My only problem is. that in looking at that device, I 

mean. it has its outer limits in terms of numhers of people 

and the impact it! s going to have. I can see' how .it might 

'be fru1.tful for short pe.riods of time \!f.ithliroited numh.ers of 

people, but in the long run, itt s kind of' a fri.ghteni!1g 

enforoement technique to have to use) particularly if the~ have 
.. 
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to use it on the baSis of suspicion> it could ~ork to the 

detriment of individual prisoners \.,rho probably ought not to 

be caught up in it or may not want to be but have no place 

else to go. 

Wi th regard to narcotic control and in partic'.lar 

with inside traffic .. can ;you of' your own knowledge tell us 

about violence that arises from that or what the competition 

is between the Mafia and the other or~anizations for narcotic 

distribution in the system in California , , in ~our opin~on? 

MR. MOODY: I couldn't speak as any kind of an 

expert on that. I haven't studied :t.nside distribution of 

narcotics. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER; Well~ when we think about 

heroin, say, as the ultimate control of narcot"ics, as ma?be 

the most sought after b~ users Who are on the inSide, we als.o 

think of it primarily as a ver~ expensi ve habit. 

MR. MOODY: Yes. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: At least on the street. Assum­

ing access and availability on the inside, how would one go 

ahout supporting it? You're going to have a hell of a time 

making it with cigarettes. Is it barter or exchange? 

MR. MOODY: Well .. I know. of several ways that they 

do support it. One is from money coming. from outside ~ fami15.es J 

friends. Other way's have been extorti.on. The Mafia has w;red 

extortion on other inmates. I can't, gtve you an~ specific 

names, but I have seen instances w.here we have had repo!'t$ 

that the Mafia has approached weaker prisoners inside the 
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institution and threatened him and to td 111m thnt hI:; JII(lLlwr' 

or ... rife or whatever he had, whatever type of connectIon he 

had outside, was to send so much money to so and so at a 

certain place in order to support his habit. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: I see. So the payment is going 

to be forced on the outside in order to effect delivery on 

the inside? 

MR. MOODY: Yes, sir. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Do you have some opinions 

about what you think can or should be done to correct this 

o1tuation with regard to these gangs and the violence involved? 

MR. MOODY: Well, based on the study that I have 

made in the last almost two years now, I look at the organiza­

tions, the Mafia, the Nuestra Familia and the others, as having 

two points to be attacked. One 1s their strong point which is 

n discipline, and the second, their weak point, which is the 

narcotic Users. 

So at the outset, we attack the weak one, the user. 

He is vulnerable to arrest. He's also in violation of the law 

90 the user is a vulnerable to the police because he's usuall~ 

f}toalil'lg to support his habi,t or robbing or whatever. So w.e 

should attack that side of it to begin with. The other point 

was the discipline that the organization had that had to be 

attacked. In my report I talked about the Mafia':;; strengthen­

ing ili8 ot'ga.ni~ation by putting out hit contracts on weaker 

membo:.t's. These members to them were weak, but as it turned 

out, they were stronger than the members that had put the 
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contract on them. So that when we would find out that a 

member was to be hit hy hi:=; orp;anization, we would contact him 

and talk to him and ask htm for information regarding the 

organization and try to guarantee his psychological and 

physical safety. 

If we took a prisoner out of the system, we would 

oftentimes have to place him in some small jailor hide him 

here or hide him there or trans fer him around the State. 

So this is what we did for the ras~ year. This is bow. we 

attack the discipline in the organization. Some of these members 

that came over and worked with us were some of the stronger 

members in years past of the Mafia. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: How do you ~ee these organiza-

tions pr?gressing? 

How do you see them now? As sophisticated, highly 

organized and what do you think they will turn into? 

MR. MOODY: No, T ·jon' t helieve that they are 

highly sophisticated. In the institutions they are well 

organized. On the streets they've made several attempts to 

organize and have run into a block wall, but I think they learn 

by their mistakes. I think that the bulk of the membership 

is made up of just common criminals rather than people that 

arc thought of to be an exe cuti ve-type of crimi.nal) a planning 

cI'iminal. But there are elements in the o:rgan:tzation that 

have the ability to plan and carry out sophisticated criminal 

acti vi ties. 

CH~IRMAN CARPENTER: Wbat is the roadblock to 

-129-



organizing on Uw outsidn? 

Do you t..hlnl< t.hat .Just tl1(:~ rlatuI'P of frf'cuoill 

pi"ohibits this :wf,lvity? 

MR. MOOD,(: Well, from what I have seen thp one 

big roadblock was that they carried over their homicidal 

tendencies from the institution to the streets which drew 

attention on them that they shouldn1t have had drawn on them 

and this was what brought them down in the last instance that 

they attempted to organize narcotic traffic. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: You mean if they'd stuck with 

narcotics or other types of crime, from a gro~th point of view, 

they would have been better off th.an getting into homicide? 

They might not have been as recognizahle compqred to other 

groups and indi viduals as they are now? 

MR. MOODY: In my opinion, ,:/es. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Senator Wedworth? 

SENATOR WEDWORTH: Yes. Mr. Moody, what do you 

$uggest that society can do to abolis.h this thing? We pay our 

taxes; we hire experts; and yet K~ ~~~l that our results are 

not what they should be. We're even sliding maybe backwards. 

MR. MOODY~ Well, the only thing that I can really 

suggest regarding this .. and I,lm only speaking of these 

organizations, the Mafia, the Nuestra Familia" the Aryan 

Brotherhoad t the criminally oriented type, is to have law 

eni'orcement J all law enforcement, \'lork together to ~tamp out 

this prob lam rather than one going one dire ction and one going 

another direction. You. need a task force-type unit to operate 
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and work continually and monit.or thj~ t.~pc of tIlInc;. 

SENATOR WE DWORTII : Would ,you sugr.;est fu'll e(")opera­

tion between the different law enforcement agencies? 

MR. MOODY: When you1re after an organization or 

organizations like this you have to have a concerted effort 

with all law enforcement agenctes, lfes~ sir. 

SENATOR WE DWO;RTH ; Well, there's a lot of worry out 

there among the people. They have hi,red more and more police 

officers. In fact, all branches or government have done that. 

We have hired better educated, better trained men and still 

we find in 1974 we have what I dee,m to be a serious problem, 

even more seriou~ than it was in 1973 when ~e look at the 

total, the proble~s that we face. 

If we had more cooperatior:" cooperat:j:on bet't,\reen 

agencies, do you think that would eventually overcome this 

problem,? 

MR, MOODY: Well, I think it's a good step. I think 

it I S a big step. Of course, that's. jus t mlf opinion from 

operating on this for the past year and a half. 

SENATOR WEDWORTH: Do you think we could ovel'come 

it by hiring more and more and more law. enforcement agents? 

MR. MOODY: No, I don't believe so. 

I think that you have to have dedicated pers,Qnnel 

like the ones I I ve been associated with from the Caliro:rnia 

Department of Corrections, people that are ded+cated to their 

job and are worried about not just the insti,tution but what's 

going to h~;pen in free society which is what the Department 
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of Corrections did. They War'lll"d lnw (-'11 flll'\·l'lllcnt. wl)n1. W:1S 

Boing to hltppen on the ntr'crJt LltlO Y(,.'ll·~; :Wo. rrlm 1. ':; wily 11l.Y 

agency got into tlrls, becauGc we W€'T'C w.1.T'ned by t.1le' 

California Department of Corrections two years neo . 

SENATOR WEDWORTH: Do you think. too many agencies 

ignored that? 

MR. MOODY: Well, I think some of the agencies 

probably thought it was something out of a comic book. I've 

been laughed at and ridiculed and what not. Li.ke we said 

before, when we talked about the Mafia and the Nuestra 

Familia, in my estimation, a bunch of hoodlums, they're not 

sophisticated, but their potential for sophistication is 

there and the base that they have for operation in California 

presents a serious and dangerous problem. 

Oalifornia could end up with a sophisticated, organ-

ized criminal group operating in this State. 

SENATOR WEDWORTH: That I saIl. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Senator Ayala. 

SENATOR AYALA: Mr. Moody, you referred to the 

Ax'yan B):1otherhood as a white supremacy group connected with 

motorcycles. Is there any connection between thi's group and 

the prison population? Are they connected? The others as you 

montloned earlie'r there was some connection with the prison 

rH'lpulation in California. I.s the Aryan Brotherhood connected 

with the prisonB, too? 

MR. MOODY: The Aryan Brotherhood is. 

SENATOR AYALA: They have members within prisons, too? 

.1. 
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MR. MOODY: Oh, Y00. That's where most of their 

members are . 

SENATOR AYALA~ Did you say there were 80 to 100 

of these? 

1VIR. MOODY: Yes, 

SENATOR AY'ALA: This next q,uestion l probably should 

have dire,cted to Mr. Diaz or Mr. Vas<i,uez, but the recertt 

convict:j..on of mass murderer Juan Corona whs;> 'Was convicted in 

Northern California.) was there any connection with that 

attack with anlf of the, g~oups ~e've been discussing here 

today? 

MR. MOODY: Not that I know of, sir. 

SENATOR AYALA: Jus t sOIT).eth:L.!1g that was an internal 

problem, not necessarily connected? 

MR. MOODY; It could have been connected wi.th the 

Ar';fan Brotherh.ood or with any of the organizations, out as far 

as 1. kno~, it wasn't . 

SENATOR AYALA: :): don I t have an~t other questlons, 

Mr. Chairman. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: ~ was going to as,k you, Mr. .. , 

MoodY:l do you have an';!' fami.liarization with the Alvarez ca:;;e 

that you can report to us? 

MR. MOODY: I: belt.eve ~ou f re re ferrt.!lg to Pacbe 

Alvarez? 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: 1.e$ .. 
. 

MR. MOODY: This was one of the fir'st execution:;; 

that we were made aware of that occurred in Southern Ca,liforn~a 
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• • 
with regat"d to the Mexican Mafia. t:hnt~:;l beg1nninl~ a.nd stn.rtlnr,: to O'ow n.lways functlo1\t) on 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: That's an execution on Llle 

outside? 

MR. MOODY: Yes, sir. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENT&R: That was planned on the inside? 

MR. MOOPY: That's co~rect. From my informed sources 

within the institution who were in the organization, Pache 

Alvarez was not follow.ing orders~ was not contributing to the 

organization and was using the organization's name. I'm 

talking about the Mexican Mafia. And for several other reasons, 

r. guess~a contract was placed on his life from the institution 

and was car~ied out and he was shot to death in Southern 

California. 

That's not the only execution that's been carried 

out on the outside. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: T underst and that. From what 

I have heard, it occurred to me that it might be a rather 

t~pical case, though, following the extension of violence 

from inSide the walls to the outside and reaching out to 

enforce the actual membership requirements of the organization. 

MR. MOODY: Well, this i~ part of it. You're 

talking about the discipline on ,the inside and the hits that 

they do inside the prison to perpetuate· their organization 

while the;y have to do it on the outside> also .. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: Do you feel that these groups 

function primarily on the basis of fear? 

MR. MOODY; T believe that an¥ criminal organization 

• • 

• • 

• • 

• • 

• • 

• • 

• • 

• •• 

• • 

fen.r'. 

CHAIRMAN CARPEW11ER: Anythinr; else? 

Mr. Moody, thank you very much. 

S:ome o~ganizations and individuals have requested 

the right to testi.fy. We' re goi~g to go into that in a 

moment, but first we're going to take a brief recess to let 

our Reporter relax her fi~gers. 

Thank you. 

(Whereupon a brief recess 

was taken after which the 

following proceedings were 

had.} 

CHAJRMAN CARPENT&R: We wi.ll come to order, please. 

We have some other witnesses, but pr~or to their 

testimony I'·m going to ;l.ntroduce the te:;;tt,mon;y· of Senator 

H. L. Ric!~ardson on July 24, 1973, to the Hou?ie Committee on 

Internal Security and exh:'hit thereto whicq are Cl,uite lengthy. 
\ 

I'm not, goi~g to read them. 

W.e 're go:.t~g to include th:t,s w"ith' the e>ther exhihits 

that we have. Mr. Neal, if you'll take tho$e. 

The Committee has understood it would receive 

tes timony from Ms. Jenni.e Rhi,ne of the National Lawyer t s 

Oui ld. The Committee receive.d a letter. from Jennie Rbfne 

yesterday:; I believe) with.draw.ipg from, gi:yi~g test+1Tlon~. She 

was on the ~gerida. 

The. same is true of Mr. Larr;y Dick, the second publiq 
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witness who had as.ked to testify and then tndicated lw would 

not. 

The third person we have llst~"'d 1 s Mr. WI J i 1 (' 

Holder of the Prisoner's Unlon. Is MI'. IJ01tiE.'1' P"t'!.'it'll\.'? 

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Mr. Holder decided not to 

testify e'arlier today. 

CHAI.RMAN CARPENTER: ;E1'ine . 

Mr. Ron Silliman, Committe.e on Prisons., Humanity and 

Justice. 

~r. Silliman, do you have copies you want to dis­

tribute to us? 

MR. SILLI:MAN: Yes, I ~ould' like to. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: You may proceed. 

.MR. SI.LLIMAN: I.Ill proceed to read from my 

prepared statement. 

My name is Ron Silliman.' For the past tw.o and one 

•• 

•• 

•• 

•• 

•• • 

half years I have been working with the Committee for Prisoners, •• 

Humani ty and Justice in $a..'1 Rafael, of whi,ch I am presentl~ 

the dire ctor of research and public education. A member of the 

coordinating council of prison organizati'ons', CPHJ is committed •• 

to the abolition of prisona as we now know them, to the 

creation of a humane and equitable correctional system which 

is essentially nonincarcerational and community· controlled, and • •. 

to the ex~ension of civil rights to all convi.cted peraons. 

I wish to speak to the i.ssue of violence in prisons, its 

relationship to outside organizations, such as CPHJi, w.hi ch 

acti vely seek change, to the way :tn which l~gis lati ve and 

-136-

• • 

• • 

governmental agencies have chosen to respond to prison 

violence, and to some. specific caus.es of violence wi thin 

the Department of Corrections' facilities. 

Substantive cha~ges in the conditions of 

confine.me.nt, when they occur 3 Will be accompanied by a shift 

in public attitudes tow.ard prisone.rs. The taxpayer is going 

to have to perceive the. convihted person as somehody much 

like ·themselves, with si.mi.lar talents, limitations, needs 

and desires·. r-t 1.s only w.hen this recogni.tion is made that 

it becomes clear that it is.. in the best interests of all 

concerned to reintegrate the. offender into the community on 

a productive and crime-.free basis, and that incarceration 

is the method least able to achieve this .. It is therefore a 
'- \"" 

top priority of th.e prison and cri.minal justice movements to 

effect this' ch.~ge in public opinion, to .make, the average 

citizen fully aware that pri.soners. are, in fact" real human 

beings. 

Prison violence i.s our, greatest obstacle. Sensa ... 

tionalized by an understandably h.uman and compe.t:t.tive 

media, and to some extent explOited by po11.tic1.ans for othel;' 

purposes -- Senator Richardson 1 s use of the'cas.e 'o~ Leo 

Robles in the death penalty campa~gn o~ 1972+s perhaps. the 

most explicitly obscene example of tht.f? pri.s-on -violence 

creates a stereotype whi.ch becomes l,mpos.ed on ~ll prisoners 

and r~gidifies theatt:t.tudes of a cautious,. and SOTI}.ewhat 

fearful public. Violence .as the Pris:onerts. Un:ton has aptly 

put it, is "the. Man's, game," and is like:t~to sloW', rather 
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than hasten, genuine and posi ti ve chahge. 

I want to stress this poi,nt, somew.hat" becau:;;e 

there is a habit on the part of bodies such as this to 

confuse the recor.:nition by outside orGanizations that the 

condi tions of confinement make many prisoners legitimately 

angry with the advocacy of violence. In two and one half 

years I have yet to hear any serious proposal for a violent 

Or felonious action on the part of an~one connected with 

OPHJ, with the memher 0;r-ganizations of the, Coordinating 

Oouncil of Prison Organizations., or even loosely associated 

with the prison movement. And if I" did hear one, I would 

completely oppose i.t. Nevertheless) I doubt that any of these 

same people are unaware as' to wh~ certain individuals are 

moved by the prison system to such extreme anger as has been 

evidenced by the Symbionese Liberation Army.' If we fail to 

recognize that s~ch ~ger is, rooted in legitimate concern for 

real problems, then we will continue to create the conditions 

which lead inevitably to such incidents and events. 

Governmental bodies, especially those coming from 

Corre ctional and legislatt ve ~gencies.) have fai led to look 

realistic'all:y at the proble,m of violence in prisons. The 

Senate Suhcommi ttee on Oi vil Dis orders i.s not an exception. 

All too often these groups tend to focus on wa';!s of avoiding 

l'espons,ibility for the creation of the ver-:t conditions which 

give rise to violence by finding scapegoats. TYpicall~, 

such bodies tend to create stereotypes of prisoners and to 

attacl{ those in the community who seek ch,ange in the criminal 
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justice sYstem. Let me cite S,ome examples: 

1. The Reporter of the Kouse Internal Se curi ty 

Committee entitled REYOLUT+.ONARY ,TARGET; The 'Ame;t"ican Penal 

S-:tstem" mak.es cha;r-ges ~gainst tbe National Law.yers Guild, 

for example, whi.ch" if true" should be q,ct:tonahle, :t,!, not in 

a court of law then certainl:t thro:ugh the. disciplinar-:t process 

of the state bar assoctation, yet to date no such action has 

been taken in spite of an all~ged confession on the part of 

a prisoner-informqnt. The failure. to pres,s such charges should 

never throw the ve.raci ty of s.uch reports into grave doubt. , , 

Nevertheless, this. committee' chose to publish them. Likewise" 

they reprint an artt,cle by Louis Nelson and James Park" both 

then employed at San Quentin, entitled ll~tardenq and Attorneys," 

yet fail to reprint the repl-:t bf ;Fay Stender which was 

published in the same j ournal. ~uch unfq,irne$s demonstrate,s 

a disinterest in arri ying at an';! re.al or legi,timate finding 

and only serves to exacerbate the problem of vi,olence in 

prisons. 

2. The 1974 report of the State Senate Suhcommittee 

on Civil Disorder reprints testimony from a w;ttness who is 

unable to di,stinguish between the Prisoners Union and the 

Uni ted Prisoners Union. Thes:e 'organizations ~ as both w''Quld be 

glad to tell you, have dl;fferent structure, constituencies, 

goal" and f.Jtyle. To gi.ve attention to complete misinformation 

shows that th.e facts of the .matter were not so:ught after. Is 

this an;y way to solve the prohlems Of violence? 

3. The Justice Departmeht mon~graph, enti,tled 
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"Prevention of Violence in Correctional Institutions, It makes 

very similar errors.. It prints an article by Walter Dunbar 

of the New York prison system which is shallow, racist and 

self-servinS' What it does not say is that the state of New 

York was willing to execute 43 human beings, ~ncludi~g state 

employees, in order to maintain a public pos,t'ure of 

belligerence. That incid t t , en mus serye as a warning and 

lesson to eyer-:j employee of the CDC, and must effect his or 

her decisi,on ma,king on a dai.1-:j basis. I would suggest to 

you that the decision$ made on the basis of that lesson are 

precisely those which are mOst apt to create tension within 

the institution. 

4. The CDC's ow.n special violence task force has 

not he ld public meet+pgs, has 1'10 prisoners on, in spite of the 

fact that they have been the principal consumers of violence 

within that s¥stem. Such a task force is less than u~ele~ 0;> c>S. 

5. The CDC's ins ti,tutional violence severity 

scale literally gives a h~gher score for killing a staff 

member than it does for killing a pri~oner. Until we admit to 

ourselves that all humqn be.ings are just that, and give some 

credence to the concept that all men and women are created 

equal, \'Ie will continue to treat others in ways which provoke 

incidents of violence. I s~ggest that the institutional 

violence seyerit-:j scale demonstrates an attitude within the 

CDC which il;) going to have to be reyersed" turned around 180 

degrees, before there are "".ignifl'.cant i d d' '" 'nroa s ;rna e ln curbing 

violence with our prisons. 
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Fi.nally, I want to addreRs myself directly to some 

causes of v101encc wi thin the prison: admints traVI ve pol'\ ct es 

and misuse of tension management. FlrRt, let's look nt some 

facts of prison life. Cliques do exist. Why do t.hej' ('xlst? 

Because prisoners are largel:t kept idle and impoverished. 

Those who do have some sOIlt of pay numb.ers are given wages 

more humi,11,ati~g than useful., Af;> a result, a moderately 

large illegal commodities market has been created within the 

prison sYl;)tem. W,tth some variations due to increased risk 

and a laissez faire market, the same econ¥mic forces which 

operate in, the free w'orld exist within the Department of 

Corrections. In order to obta~n a larger share of, and more 

control over, this market, corporations, which the media 

describes as, ga~gs of prison militants, have arisen. To the 

extent that the present violence wi.thin the prisons in 

California is clique-related, whi,ch., incidentally, I b.elieve 

to have been ex~~gerated considerably, it can be dealt with 

most effectively by provid~ng a guaranteed minimum wage to 

all prisoners, whether assigned to work positions or not, a 

minlmum vage which is at least equal to min~mum wage standards 

presently held by this state. This would keep loansharks 

qui te effect1 vely ollt of b.usiness. 

But it 1s within th+~ framewo~k of poverty~ ~dleness~ 

and an ill~gal commodities market that we have to look at 

administrative decisi.ona which are, taken that effect the life 

of prisoners and create th.e present si tuati.on of v:f-0lence. A 

major factor is overcrowding, which leads inevitahl:t to maJor 
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losses in personal space for every prisoner, resulting in 

increased tension. The primary cause for overcrowding is 

the policy of the Adult Authorit~) and we should therefore 

look more closely at this policy. 

California has not only the largest and most 

expensive prison system in America) hut hus the longest 

sentences as well, with a median of around 36 months for a 

first-term prisoner. Permit 'me to quote, now., from Gary 

Garfinkle, principal consultant of the Assembly Criminal 

Justice Committee, in his preliminary statement to that 

committee on March 11th of thisyear. He noted that the 

percent~ge of parole dates tlros e ;from approximately 30-.40% 

in 1969, to 4Q~50% in 1970 and 1971. There was a significant 

increase to 60-70% late in 1971. . . The trend was abruptly 

and dramatically reversed early in 1972, after representatives 

of the Governor's Office conferred with the Adult Authority 

members •.. Since early 1972," the number of men with dates 

have "fallen ... down to 10%.11 It is douhly worth noting 

that at this point in time the percentage of prisoners being 

returrted with new commitments bad itself dropped to about 10%, 

half the recidivism rate of 1962. Thus> the reversal in 

policy came at a time when the department was achie~ing 

U1'1precedented levels of parole success. This change in policy 

has had the effect of creating an precedent mass of despair~ 

uncertainty and anger. It has also precipitated a s~gnificant 

jump in prison populat:$.,on.) \'{holly unne cessarily, and thus, 

created a fu.rther source of tension with overcrowding and 
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double ceIling. 

There is more than a 11 t t le ('vidence A.vn 1'1 :1b I~' t.hat. 

seems, to s~ggest that these poHcies" plus the 1aPr:c lllulVt­

prison lock down of last w.inter -- itself a major m"w illput 

of tension amid prisoners -- we;re intended with the specific 

'purpose of demonstrating the need for new: pri:;>on construction. 

One maj or aspect of need whi,ch such policies would show is 

that prisons are overcrowded, another would b.e that prisoners 

are inherently more violent now than previ,ously. If there is 

an:, truth to this latter assertion, it is the result of a more 

violent Adult Authority. When Jerry Burns was murdered at 

Tracy las;t winter, it was the Adult Authority and those 

politic:l.ans who have placed pressure on that board" such as 

Governor Reagan and Senator Ri,chardson" who were most res­

ponsible. And when the Department responded to that death 

totally out of proportion to the deaths of a number of 

prisoners, each equally victims of this situation, it only 

added to the problem. 

This leads me to my final point: the misuse of 

tensj.on man?-gement wi thin the sys;tem. Tension management is 

a common tool in any i,nstltution, be it a school~ a hospital, 

or a prison. r:t :t,nvolves rec~gni tion of potential sources. 

of tension and direction of these sources so as to arrive at 

t.he desl.red, goals,. It can b.e di.rected very, generally, such 

as wi.th the pre.vention of contact visits at some institutions 

or the ~s,udden :tncre,ase of wai.t:!-!lg tl.me for vis.its at San 

Quentin recen'tly, or no specific indiVidual is si!lgled out for 
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1 illll p:nl n c:. t,c J 

th:tn treatment. 
Wllj Lt' pt'l ~':'1mel' HI, CPHJ; 

quote from a letter received from R 

"In regard to the danger I'm in, 

my counse lor is aViare of the situation 

hecause he questioned me about that. . 

t l etter that a shank 
I told ¥ou in my las 

was found in a person's room here about 

six months ago and that this shank was 

supposedly meant for me. 
The Mexican who 

supposedly gave thi.s shank to the other 

h Of course~ I 
Mexican is still ere. 

haven't said anything about my knowledge 

of what this. person did. One Mexican is 

willing to state that he was asked to 

" kill me and that the reason for ... 

I:' ve 'omi tted th~ clique's. name and indt'V'idual:;; 

throughout. 
11 • • w.anti~g to kill me is because 

a certain officer in K Wing told the 

Mexican that ! was the O!1e ~ho set him up 

for the shank hust." 

This same man wrote in another letter of a pending 

transfer from Tracy to Soledad: 
\lIn the morning or sometime tomorrow. 

I'll be on the bus heading for Soledad 

North and th:1.s is as far as I'm concerned 

a transfer w.ith a great many risks involved. 

• • 

• • 

.' .. 
• • 

•• 

"On the same bus. gO+~8 to the same 

j oi,nt is a known enemy- and a partner of 

his. This. enenw' is tbe same one I spoke 

to you about in my last letter. 

"I' can understand why this inmate 

-wants reve~ge, be.c.ause heth:t.nks I am 

to blame for the three-:year to life sentence 

he rece1.ved. As I' already told you and 

others." thi.s isn't true and tht.s rumor 

was perpetrated by a certain officer and 

possinl:y otbers." 

Another example, thi,s time from a prisoner in 

San Quentin: 

HI am presently· in B section 

s~gr~gati.on uni.t since )v1ay 1973, due to 

hei~g a victim of attack, stabbing ... 

IIQince this time I have been under 

prote.cti ve custody status and have seeked 

help here at this institution numerous 

times w1.thout pos;i tiye res ul ts .. 

v. • • t.n relation to this stabo.ing 

incident where I w'as found victim or 

attack by the' dis'ciplinary committee, a. 

stateme.nt whichall~ges' I satd twhich 

names; said assailant' -- was .s.ubmitted b;y 

a lieutenant that :L.S fq,lse and has. put 

my 11f'ein j eo'pardy. 
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liTo bp.r,in ~ith) I did not make no 

ouch s taiem('nt and hav0 already exhnmi tod 

all procedures! appea11np; it to tile 

Warden, to the Director of Corrections 

~ith negative resultsl 

IIBehind th1:,s Lieutenant's fahricated 

statement, I amunahle to function here 

in the general population or at any insti tu­

tion ~i thout finding my life in jeopardy. 

I have heen locked up now in segregatior 

for nine months and subjected to mental­

s'train and verbal h(irassment by this 

false statement. I can't even transfer 

to anothe:.t;' institution!" 

A third example, even more extreme, again from a 

IH':1.sonst' in Tracy, whose K .... wing appears to he the mos t poorly 

:t~un unit in the CDC system: 

III was hous.ed in K-3l9.J P. C. tier. 

Noyember 13th, at or about 11 p.m. I was 

shot in the side of the head hy ~~ 

ins.t:ttutj.,on made weapon, the barrel was 

made from a hole in the concrete wall 

whet's a towel rack used to be bolted down 

at. The charge --, gunpowder -,... was made 

from matches; the bullet was the teeth 

of a zipper from a coat. ~at happen ~as 

! ltaa called to the tHole t by my neighbor 
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and asked a question, while I was 

answering I was shot. While wai tine: fot' 

the officer to corne for count, I bathed 

m~ wound, and pulled teeth of the 

zipper out of my wound. At or about 

1 am November 14th the officers came back 

for count.. 1 stopped them, showed them 

,my wound, and told them 1 had been shot 

earlier in the evening. The officers 

shook their head and left. I sat down 

and at about 1:30 am 1 am taken out of 

m~ cell and escorted to B Wing (the 

hospital). I am placed ~n the treatment 

room, and the MTA treats my wound and I 

am questioned by two sergeants and a 

picture is taken of the wound all at one 

time. After I had been ex-rayed (sic) 

1 was taken upstai rs and placed in a cell 

of the hospital ward. Immediately upon 

entering 1 am q ues ti.oned again and the 

.MTA is explaining or at least try-ing to 

tell the sergeants to let me rest. But 

they kept on. And while still in shock 

from the, acci.dent 1 told the tw.o se:rgeant.s 

.1 had heen shot through a hole by a 

zip gun bi m~' neighbor. . . 

"Later in the morning of this day 
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I conotructed a letter. . • addressed to 

my mothf.H' explaining that I had been shot 

but I wan all right" This letter was 

returned marked 'Institution Gossip I. 

"Later during the week I was moved 

back to K-w1.ng; and placed in 336 away from 

the individual that I had been shot by. 

January 5th, inmate was moved to cell 334 

two doors from me, his partner ... was 

moved into Cell 335 next door to me." 

The priaoner goes on here to explain that he 

compla.lned about the placing of the prisoner who had shot him 

no close and then ¢ontinues, 

"Meanwhile the man who shot me pulls 

out a write up and gives it to his partner 

telling him to read it aloud, which he does 

this write up is for shooting me. It states 

it plai111~ that I told on him. Now this 

is heard on both 2nd and 3rd tier. On 

these 2 tiers are members of the cliq,ue 

and another clique. 

ll,Most of these inmates will be 

transferring to other· institutions so the 

word will spread. II 

Bince this time, this prisoner has bad at least one 

\)thor attempt ma.de on his life, directly related to his baying 

llo(}n 01 ted in the wri te up. 
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All thre.e sltuations al'e p'.t'apl\tc J IltUll,1'nl.\PlHi 

of conscious decisions on the part of cor'rr--cVLonnl l.'it.Urr 

which resulted in increased vlolence, or at minimulll, 

increased risk. These letters are not unique in our files, 

merely re,cent and parti cularly graphic. They characteri 2e 

the problems of a sys.te.m operating under the conditions 

previousl:! described .. 

The~e problems can best be solved by taking broad 

steps which would effect all prisoners. Firiflg one ot' two 

guards who act out of malevolent motives is not the solution. 

Altering the Adult Authority policy> which is based in politics 

and not in reality, WOUld. The California prison population 

could· be bro~ght to less than 10,000 persons toda~ wi thout 

creating any new dangers. to the citizens of California, and 

those 10,000 prisoners -- and I personally feel this figure 

to be quite high -- could be housed in minimum-m~dium 

institutions, and California would discover that it had 

solved its problem of prison violence overnight. 

Thank you . 

CHAI'R,MAN CARPENTER: Thank ;you, Mr. Silliman. J 

might point out to you that the OPHJ organizatIon h.as not uee.n 

mentioned b~ any w.itness. 

M.R. SI:LLIMAN: I realize that> but tbere has been 

a general tendency to refer to a number of other outside 

organizations' quite a few of w,hich OU1'" organization has worked 

with. This tends to reflect and spread on literall;y every 

private social agency' which attempts to w.ork ~ith prisoners 
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and with trjf~ farn:U.1eo or prluorw.rs in t,tw (!oJmnuntt.y. 

CHAIR1-lAN CARPENTER: WC~ll, I take notIcE' of the 

fact persona.lly that I have over thp past. two OT' three years 

been in contact with a number of or~anizations interested in 

priscmcrs' welfar'e and thf> rebabilitative system such as it is 

and wbat have you. I \,lould only say in response to that that 

thio Committee in its limitad scope of interest in these 

problema does not direct itself so much toward prisoners' 

rights and the we li~are of prisoners and the rehabili tati ve 

$!.'U tem ·tnd GO forth b.ecause there are other committees and 

(,,Ither acti vi ties and interests that relate to that subj ect. 

I oidn't mean to say that we, the members of this 

Committee) have no interest in them, hut by way of explanation 

chio subcommittee is interested in violence in our societ;y 

and we've been in to a number of other areas. 

MR. SILLIMAN: I do realize that. 

So we have to take into account 

that so much has happened within that system whether you're 

all t~igl1't Or the Department is all right, and I suspect nobody 

1s totally correct in this instance. 

We1re recognizing not so much the causes, but we're 

lm}l(lng at the effect and the impact it has on th.e outside 

Hnd so forth. I just wanted to see if you could understand 

that. 

MR. SILLIMAN: That's true. Personally, one of my 

l"(W,sons tor QOm1n~ h'n~e today and for mak:tng the statement 

at) :t did,; ''Ih1011 to another comm1 ttee I mie;ht 11ave made 
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I felt that this Gommltt€'l' \>./ould 
it differently, was that 

P
roblem of violence in pcr~RpS a 

do better to look at, the 

conte xt find larBer scope. larger 
Look at the causes? CHAIRMAN CARPl1J.'l:1:~R: 

MR. SILLIMAN: 
Look at the causes of violence. I 

you that violence is a very s agree with 
erious problem. Three 

y. ears I have either had to or been a 
times in the past two 

our office tell another person 
party to watching one person in 

member of a prisoner that that person had 
or friend or family 

died, and obviously 
I am not happy with that kind of a situa-

i As I stressed, 
outside organizat~on ~. Nohody 3.n an 

We want te> change 
tiona 

i our greate,st oQstacle . prison violence ,s 

public attitude. 
1 think in some of our other 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTE:R: 
some schools~ publt c 

activities in the Committee there are 
i southern California, 

schools in our State, particularlY n 

that bear an increasing an 
t the d frightening resemblance Q 

prison s;ystem. 
In adminis.tration or violence 

.MR. SILLIMAN: 

characteristics. 
in terms of Violence that No, 

comes up. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: 
into causes there you're 

You know, when you, get 

almost in a different situation . 
They aren't related but the 

effect and cause is very' stmilar. 

The Problem wit~ the institutions 
MR. SILLIMAN: 

Mr . Moody. indirectllf brought up 
is somethi:rg that I think )"1 

· which as I satd, 
when he pointed out inside orga.YJ.izations, 
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are primi t;t va corporationo and certainly are one of the best 

examples of the natural processes of free enterprise left 

totally without control that I have seen -- their inability 

to make suhstant1 ve headway 1n a free society 1s <tn ('xnmplt' 

of what happen:; 1n that kind of an organization in a ft·(;'(' and 

(Jpen society and community, which the Department of Corrections 

1/3 not and haa not been. 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: S~nator Ayala? 

SENNrOR AYALA; Well, I. understood that this 

Committee 'Was to investigate some of these groups, not for 

the pUrpose oi,' placing guilt but for the purpose of learning 

what is happening and what t s going on and then to perhaps 

l~~"'commend oorr~ctive legislation. 

In one Of your paragraphs here at the bottom of 

pn,ge one, I kind of thinl< yoU Ire taking a shot at us bt' fore 

we even get started, a$ far as X 1m concerne,d. Governmental 

bodies., yousa,y, especially those coming from corrective and 

.teginlnt:lvo bodies have failed to look realistically at the 

pj;'otllems of violence in p11 isoos and the Senate Subcommittee 

on C,tvil Disorder 1s not an exception. I'd like to take 

exception to your exception. I think we're trying, not to 

place guilt on individuals,) but to find out what is really 

!;':.t;1ing orland p(.gl"haps come up 'w.ith corrective legislation that 

will attempt to resolve the problems. 

!tlR.SILtI'JvlAN: Okay. I suggest that you might take 

a nOl,,;tou8 look at the Adult Author! ty \ 

CHAlfUt1AN CARPENTER: Senator Wedw.'Orth" did you have 
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any questions,? 

~ENATOR WEDW,ORTH: Jus,t to inform the r;entleman 

that we're he.re to get the facts and we'll ta.ke tt':':; t.imony from 

anyone that's involved in this hoth inside and out, from 

intell~gence groups --, 

MR. SILLXMAN: I appreciate that. 

SENATOR WEDWORTH: You know~ don't think that one 

person or one group :1.s all truth or all factual any more than 

we do other people, but when we get all the testimony to­

gether, correlat~ it, put it tosether, we might come up with 

a few facts. 

~R. SlLLIMAN: J do appreciate that. And I also 

appreciate that perhaps. unfortunately the h:1.story of this 

Con:unittee and its predecessors in thl:? State and the national 

level -- I tm thinking specifi,cally of the Hous.e Internal 

Security Committee -- have been such that private organizations 

and individuals outside have been unwilli~g in the past to 

come forward and speak openl~, 

I think it's only When we begin to open up a 

dialogue honestly ori hoth aidea that we can begin to work 

cooperatively toward a solut~on Which will ~eet the needs of 

everybody concerned. 

SENATOR WEDW'ORTH: W.e11, I agree to a point, but 

there's some information that + think that "\::{e shOUld have 

that w.e can't have publicl;y'. There I:;; some, people wheo can 1 t 

talk. The person you're referring to in your letter there is 

afraid he 1 s going to get killed. 
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GEHA'rOH vl£lMOR'!'H: He can't talk. 

NH.. :a LLIrIlAN : No. 

r~ln'iAtl·OR· 1·rr,~I.luOR.tT'l{', IJ ow . t t _.I:.!l YU:' VI.I. 1 tire you gOJ.ng 0 ge :l 

P"!,[}Ol'l like that at f) pub1:1 (~ mcetinl5, hearing? 

1-1R. Sll.lL!!1At-I; Hell, the problems of a clos€'d 

community -- I think lIlt: elosost example to an outside 

a1Luatlon that would parallel that kind of fear would be 

~;tm li'X)anC10Co I r; Cbinatown and i to gang problems. There we've 

J,~ot :1 C.Ult,Ul"1111y (!loned comrnurd ty and as you may have been 

(J,.\-/~lr(! grand Juriuu havn l:v.\.cl difficulty gettin~ testimony from 

[~Ul"Gon(~ invol vod in thosf' act! vi ties. 

Hero wn have an institutionally closed communit~. 

It.' 0 tho closedrw:;s which I think creates that potential 

['or' tear and for violence and for retribution on the part of 

Lhese ind1viduulG. 

SENNl'OH WEDWOWl'U: \~e 're working nO\i after it I s 

~R. SILLIMAN: I realize that. 

SENATOR '~E:OWORTH: Not he fore . 

NR. SILLXMAN: I real:lze that. 

SENATOR WEDWOR'l'l:I: S.o don't you ?-gree that we have 

to do the bes t ''le can to get into a closed society to get 

!lOme In,i'oX'mat10n? 

MR. SILLIMAN; ! agree. 

SENATOR \1EDWORTH: Otherwise, we can't do anything. 

CIlAIRNAN CARPENTER: 1: know J Mr. Silli:man J because, I 

-154-

•• 

•• 

•• 

•• 

•• 

• • 

•• 

.' . .. 

• • 

• • 

---~-~ - - -~- ---~-

think it might be of general interes t to others here that I 

feel as you do that, that W,hen we look at this problem we take 

cognizance of the fact - ... or at least I dc - ... that Wf' I r€' 

talking about some 20,QOQ people who are inmates, 

MR. SILLI:MAN: Tw.ent~-three . 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: 23,OQO. As a former law 

enfOI'CetrjE!l''l.t o;fficial 'mys,elf J iT~' own j u~gment of our ability 

to rehabilitate appropriately the people is that it is a . . 
rather d~~mal failure. 

MR. SILLll'1AN: Yes; 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: On the other hand, we have 

more than 20 millions of people outside in society making 

their own wB.Y,' as 'best the~r can on whom some of the impact of 

violence is extremely n~gati ye i.n terms of ;rear, in terms of 

our reepon~ibility aB,~overnment to prov~de an orderly 

6'ociet~r in which the'y mU8;t Ii ve. The numb.ers are rather 

overwhelm1~g irl that context, too, when we talk about violence . 

On the other hal!d, the guy on the inside J he ha~ 

no place to hide. He can't charge, geography if he doesn't 

like where h.e~B and what have you. So he's victimized in 

qui te a di,fferent w.ar and wi.th much greater and more dramatic 

impact, r realize. 

We.ll, that's really all. w.e 're try~f1S; to find our 

w:a~ thro~gh a maze that' s ver~ comp li cq.ted . 

MR. SILLJ:MAN: Oka~. 
, 

CHAIRMAN CARPENTER: J. appr.eciate your comments. 

MR. SILLIMAN: r appreciate yo~r listening. 

-155-



CHAI.Rt1AN CARPENTER: 

Mr. Connor Nixon? 

M~. John Ellingston? 

l1r. Jan Marlnisoen? 

Thank you. 

!o there anyone else in the audience that ~lishes 

to be heard? 

. tt t~ n -w-.ei-.L-.L declare this Thank you ror your a en .... o . 

Ifl<!eting closed. 

--000 ... -

(~hereupon the above 

hearing was concluded.) 
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This is to certify that I, JOAN K. NYE, a 

qualified reporter, ~las present at the time and place the 

foregoing proceedings were had and taken before the Senate 

Subcommitte on Civil Disorder, held in Sacramento on 

March 28, 1974, and that as such reporter I did take down 

said proceedings in shorthand writing to be transcribed 

into longhand typewriting and the foregoing pages, numbered 

1 to 156, inclusive, constitute a true, complete, accurate 

and correct transcription of the aforementioned shorthand 

writing. 

Dated this 22nd day of April, 1974. 

SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 
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